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THE CASE FOR

INVESTING

IS CLEAR

The business case for investing in NOVA Chemicals is clear. Our company
is built for success, especially in a high-cost crude oil environment.

We have restructured NOVA Chemicals into two business units and one
major joint venture, each offering a powerful case for investment:

* Olefins/Polyolefins — accelerating earnings power
* Performance Styrenics — ramping up high-margin growth
* INEOS NOVA joint venture - turnaround leverage

NOVA Chemicals delivered exceptional results in 2007. We believe the
best is yet to come.
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Three-Year Review
[millions of U.5. dollars, eacept per share amounts and ratics} 2007 200g'! 20087
Revenue $46,732 $ 6519 $5616
Adjusted EBITDAM $ 885 $ 604 $ 4
Net Income (Loss) $ 347 $ (703p% $ (101)
Net Income (Loss) per Commen Share®
— Basie $ 419 $ (B.52) $1.22)
— Diluted $ 416 $ (8.52) $1.22)
Cash Provided by Operating Activities $ 329 $ 350 $ 338
Property, Plant and Equipment Additions $ 156 $ 198 5 419
Total Assets $4,836 $ 4,077 $5,178
Net Debt to Total Capitalization 60.3% 75.9% 59.8%
Return {Loss) on Average Common Equity™ 43.2% {55.6)% (7.51%
Closing Share Price _
— NYSE{US. %) $32.40 $ 27.90 $33.40
— T5X (Canadian $) $32.27 $ 3250 $38.81
1) Adjustied EBITODA equals nat income {loss) bafore pense, | tases, depreciation and amortization, other gaina and kotses, end restnucturing charges,

See Supplemental Measures on page 54.
{21 NCX peers include DOW, LYO, EMN from 199-2006, In 2007, WLK was sdded and LYO was remuved from the pesr group.
{3} Cerain comparativa figures have been restated 1o conform with adoption of new standards and with cuent year presentation.
{4) There were 83 million weighted basic sheres ding in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectivaly. Thare were 84 million, B) mallion and 83 million

' Y

waighted-average diluted common shares cutstanding in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
{5} NOVA Chemicals” results in 2004 wera negatively impacted by restructuring charges totaling $841 million shier-tax, See Note 13 on page 75.

{5) Nat income (loss) divided by average common equity. Soe Supplemental Measures on page 54,
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In 2007 NOVA Chemicals delivered the best

operating results in our history, outperforming
our peers and most observers’ expectations. We
demonstrated that our feedstock advantage in
Western Canada is not only significant to our
bottom line, but also will expand with higher
crude oil prices. Consequently, we believe the
Company is positioned for success despite
economic uncertainty, and that we will be able to
generate cash and grow earnings over the next
few years. In short, | think the best is yet to come
for NOVA Chemicals.

During the past year, performance in almost
every part of our company was exceptional.
EBITDA’ reported from our businesses totaled
$987 million compared to our previous best of
$787 million in 2004. We also set records for

polyethylene total sales and export volumes.

1. Adjusted EBITDA equals net income bafore interest expense,
Incoma taxes, depreciation and smortization, other gains and
krsses and restructuring changes.

"] hope that you will conclude as | do, that
NOVA Chemicals is a uniquely valuable
investment in just about any U.S. and
global economic environment.”

Jeffrey M. Lipton
Chief Exacutive Officer

As a result of our investments in plant moderniza-
tions, we enjoyed sharply irmproved manufacturing

reliabifity and energy efficiency.

While the styrenics markets have not yet shown
much improvement, our cost reduction work,
both before and after the expansion of our joint
venture with INEOS, resulted in positive EBITDA

performance for the first time since 2004.

Our safety record continued to improve {as de-
scribed on page 18), and was again the best | have
experienced in the chemical industry -— something
all of us are very proud of. Our technélogy orga-
nization developed new high-value products and
process and catalyst technelogy that will help us
further expand production capacity. We also grew
our sales in new market segments and in many

regions of the world.




It is very gratifying to see that the changes we've
made over the past few years have resulted in
lower costs, faster work processes and higher

quality throughout the organization. Our people

“During the past year, performance

company was exceptional.”

could easily have wilted under the strain of rapid
change, high energy prices and an uncertain U.5.
economy. Instead they focused on what they could
control, became energized by new challenges and

delivered outstanding performance.

Polyethylene — Strong Market Outlook

As we begin 2008 amidst concerns about the
economy, as well as continuing high crude oil
prices, we remain confident that NOVA Chemicals
will continue to outperform in both the short- and
long- term. Ethylene and polyethylene remain the
core of our company. And we believe the global
supply/demand balance will remain strong for
polyethylene in 2008 and beyond because supply
expansion will lag demand growth — even if there

is a U.S. recession.

Polyethylene is the most basic global plastic and
is used for food production and packaging in
every part of the world. As developing nations

like China and India work to increase agricultural

production yields and reduce food spoilage losses,
they increasingly turn to polyethylene packaging.
Consequently, demand grows at much higher

multiples of GDP in the developing world than

in almost every part of our

it does in developed economies. Most industry
experts expect global polyethylene demand out-
side of the U.S. to continue to grow at more than

1.8 times GDP growth.

On the supply side of the equation, | believe new
capacity delays will continue to surprise many ana-
lysts, As industry professionals know, construction
and equipment availability problems are common-
place everywhere in the world, and they certainly

don’t appear to be letting up.

The world is short of experienced construction
labor, engineering and supervision and is even
shorter of experienced chemical plant start-up
and operating capability. Once ethylene and poly-
ethylene plants have been built, they are complex
and difficult to operate reliably, especially by new
operators like those in the developing wdrld and
parts of the Middle East.




In Figure 1 we show our latest view of the expected
global polyethylene supply/demand balance.

We use Global Insight’s February 14, 2008 GDP
foracast, which calls for a U.S. recession in the
first half of 2008.

Figure 1,
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Source: Global tnsight - GDP forecast, Naxant Chemsystems - historical
PE operating rates, NOVA Chemicals - PE supply forecast.

As you can see, even with a significant U.S.
economic slowdown, we expect a strong global
supply/demand balance. The industry usually
cannot maintain 0% utilization of installed
capacity for a sustained period. We saw a peak in
ethylene and polyethylene margins in 1995 at only

88% utilization and have had very strong markets

at about 3% utilization in recent years.

In addition to new capacity delays, the tight supply
of naphtha, which is used for about two-thirds of
global ethylene production, also contributes to
our strong outlook. The supply situation has not
only curtailed some ethylene and polyethylene
production but also raised naphtha prices versus

other feedstocks.

More than two-thirds of U.S. production is based
on natural gas liquids feedstock and is now lower
cost than most other production, As a conse-
quence, North American polyethylene products
can be exported quite profitably. In 2007 the
North American industry exported 20% of its

polyethylene production, an all time record.

These export volumes allowed very high production
rates for North American producers and impor-
tantly, kept inventory levels quite low. This
allowed most producers to make solid returns,
even though it was hard for the industry to raise
prices fast enough in the second half of the year
to keep up with rising feedstock costs. For 2008,
we expect our industry to continue operating at
high utilization rates and to be able to raise prices

to expand margins.

NCX — Positioned for Success

NOVA Chemicals is positioned to take advantage
of these strong global supply/demand balances
with a product portfolio and cost structure that




will continue to allow us to export profitably to

all of the world's key markets. Our Advanced
SCLAIRTECH™ technology is delivering poly-
ethylene resins that are rapidly penetrating high
value markets around the world and our standard
resins are among the lowest cost in the world. In
response to growing demand for our products, we
are planning to complete the addition of 500 mil-
lion pounds of new polyethylene capacity by the
end of 2009.

Following the successful completion of an exten-
sive modernization, the Corunna flexi-cracker can
now use an expanded mix of light feeds and crude
oil and is one of the lowest cost facilities of its

type. We had record earnings contributions from
our eastern Canadian operations in 2007 and we
believe that Corunna’s margins in the future should
stay ahead of similar facilities around the world over

the long term.

Alberta Advantage — New Higher Range

Our Alberta operations have an exceptional
performance history and | believe they are uniquely
valuable assets. At Joffre, we run the world's largest
ethylene and polyethylene complex with state-of-
the-art plants that are larger and more energy
efficient than just about every similar facility in the
world. On top of that, we have the Alberta Advantage,
which provides NOVA Chemicals a significant
ethylene cash cost advantage over similar U.S.

Gulf Coast facilities.

Since the company started up, our Alberta assets
have generated a 27% EBITDA margin including
corporate charges. We have significantly outper-
formed our North American commodity peers,

In fact, our Alberta-based business as shown in
Figure 2, has regularly earned EBITDA margins
well above the average of the largest U.S.

specialty chemical companies.

Figure 2.
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NOVA Chemicals’ Alberta EBITDA Margins vs. Peers

EBITDA, as a % of revenue
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Source: Company reports, Faciset, NOVA Chemicels, Specialty group:
duPont, Rohm and Haas, and PPG. Peer Olefins/Polyolefing (O/PO)
group: O/PQ segments of Lyondell, Wastlake, and Chevron Phillips
Chemicals. NOVA Chemicals’ Alberta results include corporate costs.

If you believe, as the markets indicate most
investors do, that crude oil prices will stay
relatively high and remain priced well above North
American natural gas on an energy equivalent basis,
the future of NOVA Chemicals’ Alberta ethylene and

polyethylene business looks truly exceptional.




The Alberta Advantage is a relative one; it defines
how much better we will do than our average Gulf
Coast based competitor. (There is a full discussion
of the Alberta Advantage and its relationship to

c;rude oil on page 31 of this report.)

Fligure 3.
4 h

NOVA Chemicals’ Alberta EBITDA vs. Crude Oil
{millions of U.S, dollars)
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Sources: CMAI, NOVA Chemicals. Chart shows the range of NOVA
Chemicals’ Alberta based EBITDA potential es ¢ function of the
Alberta Advantage (as shown on page 31), and industry margins
based on CMA! estimates.

It is quite clear that as crude oil prices have moved
up, our Alberta Advantage has widened considerably.
Figure 3 provides a basis for estimating the EBITDA
likely to be earned from our Alberta business
based on two inputs: the price of crude oil for the
period and the average EBITDA margin earned by

our competitors on the U.S. Gulf Coast.

In my view, high crude oil prices create an excep-
tional opportunity for our company. We should
see returns, and hopefully equity multiples, much
more like specialty chemical companies than the
discounted multiples currently being applied to

commodity chemical companies.

Styrenics — Turnaround Underway

In the past, the quality of NOVA Chemicals’
ethylene and polyethylene business has often been
masked by our very poor Styrenics business. Over
the last two years we first created, then expanded
a styrene and polystyrene joint venture with
INEOS. The joint venture has led the industry in
consolidating assets, taking 8% of capacity out of
the European polystyrene market and 5% out of

the U.S. polystyrene market.

The joint venture also acquired the rights to
Sterling Chemicals’ styrene production which was
subsequently shut down permanently in the fourth
quarter of 2007. This action has eliminated 11% of
North American styrene capacity and 3% of global
capacity from the market. Other styrene and
pelystyrene capacity has also been idled, and
most observers expect to see further capacity

rationalization soon.




Analysts have often pointed to the high relative
cost of benzene as a big part of the styrenics
industry problem. Today, as a result of changing
supply/demand balances, benzene-to-oil price
ratios are down from abnormally high levels, and
we believe they will stay down in the long-term
historical range. Lower relative benzene costs
means polystyrene is getting more and more
competitive and is now at its best relative pricing
in the last decade versus polypropylene, its most
common substitute. The polypropylene market is
four-times larger than the polystyrene market so
a relatively modest volume shift out of polypro-
pylene should make a big difference in demand

growth for polystyrene.

It is clear to me that this business has nowhere to

go but up. Our Styrenics unit results have improved

by $120 million per year of EBITDA since 2005,
and the joint venture is projected to be EBITDA

positive in 2008 based on further cost reductions.

The improvement to date has been achieved

without much, if any, help from the market. We

believe the fact that polystyrene is more competitive

relative to other polymers will enable margins
to improve at a faster rate than many expect.

NOVA Chemicals’ significant leverage to increases

in polystyrene chain margins is shown in Figure 4.

Figure 4.
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See page 45 for the assumptions used to genersta this chart .

in our Performance Styrenics unit, investments in
facilities, technology, product development and

talent have generated exciting opportunities for
our company. This year should be the beginning

of increasingly valuable returns on our work.

The risk-to-reward ratio for our Performance
Styrenics portfolio is excellent. We have no need

for significant capital investment and we are

already at breakeven EBITDA levels. The business

has big upside potential and | believe we have the

talent in place that will deliver value — quickly.




“| remain convinced that the ethylene and polyethylene markets will

continue to be strong and styrenics markets are likely to improve.”

Looking Forward

As | look to 2008, with full appreciation of the
possibilities for continued financial system distress
and a resulting economic slowdown, ) remain con-
vinced that the ethylene and polyethylene markets
will continue to be strong and styrenics markets
are likely to improve. The chemical industry as a
whole experienced a wave of consolidation activity
in 2007 and many analysts expect that trend to

continue in 2008.

| hope you will conclude, as | do, that if you are
looking for an opportunity that takes full advan-
tage of high crude cil cost expectations for the
future, you will find NOVA Chemicals a uniquely
valuable investment in just about any U.S. and
global economic environment. We have an
ethylene cost advantage over other producers,
outside of older plants in the Middle East, unique
polyethylene technology and a series of high-
return polyethylene growth projects that will be
completed in the next two years. In Styrenics,
we have taken out costs and restructured our

business into a joint venture that will take out

even more costs in the near future. Those actions,
and improving market conditions, could have a big

positive impact on our returns.

| believe we should continue to outperform our
North American peers by a wide margin and
therefore, this is a very good time to invest in
NOVA Chemicals. My colleagues and | feel very
proud that our company set many performance
records in 2007. We also fully appreciate that our
fundamental abjective is to turn outstanding
performance into extraordinary valuel growth

for our shareholders.

| would like to close with my personal thanks to
Ted Newall who served our company admirably as
Chairman of our Board of Directors for many years
and retired in 2007. We all wish him well,

Jeffrey M. Lipton
Chief Executive Officer
February 7, 2008




IN NCX NOW?

The business case for investing in NCX is a three-part story. Each of the three major components

of our business offers a distinct and compelling investment opportunity.

« Olefins/Polyolefins is our largest operated business unit. It delivered exceptional earnings
in 2007 and has tremendous upside potential in a high-cost crude oil environment.

s Performance Styrenics is a small business unit today, with exciting growth potential.

» INEOS NOVA, our styrenics joint venture, is leveraged to the styrenics industry
turnaround that has already begun.




\OleﬁnslPolyoleﬁns

l ACCELERATING

EARN

Our Olefins/Polyolefins bhusiness delivered record
performance in 2007 and positions the company for strong
future earnings growth. High crude oil costs widen our
significant cost advantage over U.5. Gulf Coast competitors.

The business is powered by the combination of globally
competitive costs from our Alberta Advantage, our proprietary
Advanced SCLAIRTECH™ and gas-phase polyethylene tech-
nologies and cur modernized, low-cost Corunna, Cntario,

flexi-cracker.

We are exploiting our advantaged position through high-return
growth projects utilizing our existing ethylene capacity. We have
expanded output from our Joffre, Alberta, polyethylene plants
by 100 milion pounds in 2007 and plan to add another 150 million
pounds by early 2009 to meet growing demand. Projects are
also underway to expand our Ontario region polyethylene capac-
ity by up to 250 million pounds by the end of 2009,

-~
Corunna Facility

r—\ \
/l'\\;foronto

.’ New York
\D\etroil/ P
oy

//

Chicago

The expanded and modemired Conmna Rexi-cracker exploits access to both North
10 American and global feedstocks end end-use markets to deliver strong financial retumns.
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SURPASS® ilm resins deliver value through both product
performance and processing efliciencies, giving our custormers an
advantage in the marketplace. This value combination delivers
higher margins versus commaodity resins.

‘ A
Corunna Olefins Adjusted EBITDA
{miflions of U.5. doflars}
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Advanced SCLAIRTECH Technology Resin Sales

{millions of pounds)
Since production started in 2001, higher value polyethylene
Expansion resins from our Advanced SCLAIRTECH technology facility
1000 sod out ol B in Joffre, Alberta, have quickly been adepted for a wide
'—ﬁ range of applications. Superior product performance in
750 critical areas such as toughness, puncture resistance and
500 clarity enable our customers to successfully compete and

grow in markets including food packaging, industrial storage
and recreational equipment. This one-of-a-kind facility was
sold-out in 2007. With capadity increases and product mix
improverents, it will soon produce 1 billion pounds per year.

250 Start up

2001 2007 20080

New, higher range for Alberta Advantage
The Alberta Advantage is the comerstone of our long-term competi-
tiveness and a key driver of our profitability. NOVA Chemicals’
ethylene cash cost advantage over U.S. Gulf Coast producers
averaged a record 17¢ per pound in 2007, well above the 7¢ per
pound historical average. Soaring crude oil prices, which

averaged $72 per barrel in 2007, led to record feedstock costs

for U.S. Gulf Coast producers, while NOVA Chemicals’ natural

gas costs remained relatively steady, and our
. NOVA
advantage expanded dramatically. Cremicais’ JoFre,
Alberia, site capitalizes on the
lewest cos: of producuion in Notth
Ameriza wath sales in North America & Asia,

4 N\ ' )
Higher Advantage Linked to High Crude Qil Prices Global Ethylene Cash Costs
$/bbl ¢ per pound Cumulative C.apacity Rank'
80 20 i i
&0 15 Corunna i
Avg. Middle East propane
Joffre ; !
40 10 : ;
20 5 Avg. hilidcﬂe East uth;ane
0 0 25% 50% 3% 100%
! DEurope D US,  BAsiA  Souwce: CMAL baed on 2007 trergy pricin
OAlberta Advantage  BWTI Crude Cil  Source: Pany ($72/bl erude end $7/mmbitu gas)
AN /
Our Alberta Advantage has strangthenad to a new, highar range in NOVA Chemicals’ Joffre, Alberta, site is the lowest cost ethylene
paralle! with high crude oil prices. facility in North America and is ranked in the top 25% of ethylene
- facilities worldwidle, ahead of some Middle East producers.
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\ Performance Styrenics

RAMPING UP HIGH-MARGIN

Performance Styrenics includes ARCEL® advanced
foam resin, our expandable polystyrene {EPS} business
and several downstream ventures that market EPS-based

product and technology innovations around the world.

A large portion of our Performance Styrenics portfolio of
premium products and ventures is built on the energy-
efficiency benefits of EPS. Sustainability is a key business
driver today, and our unique high-efficiency, energy-saving
ofterings help our customers reduce their costs and

environmental impact.

We are now largely past the investment phase and are

positioned for rapid revenue growth.

12
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In the consumer electronics industry, product retuns cost brand owners
$10 billion annually. The protective properties of ARCEL resin enable
customers to receive the product damage-free ~ and brand owners
enjoy lower tatal costs and increased customer satisfaction.

4 h Providing brand owners with a sustainable
Grourt!\ of ARCEL resin in flat-panael packaging solution
television packaging ) . .
Packaging molded with ARCEL resin reduces the amount
Telarvizions frations) R
of foam cushioning needed to protect a product —
4 ultimately reducing package size and related waste.
This increases the shipping capacity of every
container, truckload and pallet, translating
? into significant cost savings and the
environmental benafit of lowering
- The number of flat-panc! . .
o ) ielevisions parkaged in ARCEL diesel fuet consumption by
2005 resin has groven 280% i tree yoa mare than four million
\_ Worldwde in 2007, maeg than feur mafior plasma 0
anat LD televisions were packaged in ASCEL resin. ) gallons per year.
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Elemix™ Concrete Additive

accelE™ Composite Wall Systems

Ventures Snapshot

IMx™ Technology Cups

/

Value

Opportunity

Products and Channel

Elemix Concrete Additive
« Direct to North American markets
* Globally through panners

accelE Composite Wall Systems

* Direct to Narth American
markets through Accelerated
Building Technologies

Btructural Insulating Panels (SIPs)
Insulating Concrete Forms (ICFa)

+ ICFs sold in Mexico through
NOVIDESA

* 51Ps sokd in Chile through NOVA Chile

IMx Technology Cups
* Direct to North American markets

* Licensing cutside of North America

* Up to 25% lighter than traditional
concrete

» Superior durability with the same
structural strength

* Faster installation time

* More cost effective and thermally
efficient than traditional materials

*» Point contributor for the LEED*
"Graen Building” rating system

* Excellent thermal insulation
* Reduced construction time

» Lower labor costs for builders

* Premium alternative to traditional
paper cups for high-end coffee market

« Superior thermal benefits eliminate
wasteful paper sleeve or double cupping

» Industry-leading graphics

« Global concreta production totals
1.6 billion cubic yards annually

+ Approximately 10 pounds of
Elemix concreta additive per yard
of ready-mix lightwaight concrete

* U.S. market for Bght commercial
and industrial construction
700 million square feet annually

* Enables builders to meet rapidly
growing demand for sustainable
buildings while reducing overall costs

» Opportunity within residential
construction market in Mexico
and Chile approximately $750
million annually

+ Global Market 400 billion
cups annually

¢ U.S. market 120 billion
cups annually

13




\INEOS NOVA

TURNAROUND

' LEVERAGE

The global styrenics industry is consolidating rapidly. ¢/~ i ™
NOVA Chemicals is positioned to take full advantage INEOS NOVA Adjusted EBITDA™

of the expected upturn in profitability through INEOS {millions of U.S. dollars)

NOVA, the expanded 50:50 joint venture between INEOS $ 50

and NOVA Chemicals. The joint venture is the largest

styrene/polystyrene manufacturer in North America and

the largest polystyrene/EPS manufacturer in Europe. Since 2 l : l
start-up in 2005, the existing European component of the ' '
Inewjoint venture has delivered more than $80 million in $ ©0

annual synergies — zhead of schedule. The expanded

joint venture, which now includes assets in North America, $ (100)

is targeting an additional $80 million in synergies per year, 2008 2006 2007

(1} NOVA Chemicals” 5% sharo,

\ _ y,

- I
INEOS NOVA Synergies (millions of U.S. dollars}
$160

Since the expanded joint venture was launched on October
1, 2007, INEOS NOVA has taken immediate action to lower
costs, including the shutdown of two polystyrene plants

which represent 5% of North American capacity. The joint

ventura also acquired the production rights to Sterfing

P Chemicals’ 1.7 billion pound Texas City styrene plant in
the fourth quarter of 2007; Sterling Chemicals subsequently
C . shut down the plant — eliminating 11% of North
so 1 American capacity.
goo6 20090
O Europe @ North America
. J




Styrenic polymers deliver cost-effective Crystal palystyrena is spedified for applications High-impact polystyrene provides a high-gloss
performance and processing advantages requiring low cost and high strength, such as finish and excellent impact strength for smalf
for demanding applications, such as single-use drinking cups and cutlery. appliance housings.

refrigarator components.

INEQS NOVA is the largest styrene producer
in North Amarica

BINEOS NOVA
O Total/SABIC
B Dow/Chevron Phillips
O LyondelBasell

8 Shell Chemicals

0 Others (4 producers)

Sauvce: CMAY
TYLAR

Jeryhc co-polymerns deliver
_ excoptonal clanty and tcughness
for madh.cafl device anplications,

-~

Global Ranking of INEOS NOVA Styrene Reactors

[millions of pounds}

1700 { Baypor. TXit1)
Texas City, TX {013}
Samia, ON {#25)
Iiem,

The Bayport, Texas, plant has the langest styrene reactor in the world. i ﬂ]{ﬂ]l[m‘“m
All three INEOS NOVA styrene plants are in the top quartlle giobally in Sourcw: CMA
torms of scale. Larger scale leads to greater efficiencies and fower unit \_

fixed costs.
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\NOVA Chemicals At-A-Glance

We produce chemicals, polymers and plastic products that are essential to
‘everyday life. The key components of our business are two operating units,
Olefins/Polyolefins and Performance Styrenics, plus our 50% share of the
INEOS NOVA joint venture.

Olefins/Palyolefins Performance Styrenics

INE(E)S NOVA Joint Venture

16

Snapshot J

Outlook J L

L

2007 Revenue: $4.5 hillion

¢ Products include: ethylene; linear
low-density, low-density and high-

density polyethylene; and chemical

and energy ¢o-products

¢ Market unique technology
* Exploit low-cost Alberta Advantage

by exporting 1o all major global
markets

* Future EBITDA growth from low-
cost polyathylena expansions
utilizing existing ethylene capacity

* Ongoing margin growth of
Advanced SCLAIRTECH Technology
polyethylene

* Continued profitable growth
in export markets

2007 revenue: $412 million

* Products include: Performance
Polyrners and EPS focusing on
differentiated protective packag-
ing, insulation, construction and

* Leverage energy efficiency of our
products to meet sustainability
driven demand

¢ Capture value downstream through
proprietary product design and
innovative business models

* Development costs largely past —
opportunity to capitalize

* Rapid growth expected in 2008

+ Sustainability driven demand
accelerating

{1) Estimated revenus lor 1otal joiny venture, NOVA Chemicals owns 50% of INEQOS NOVA

2007 revenue: $3.8 billion™

* Products includa: styrene, polysty-
rene, EPS and acrylic co-polymers

North American Rankings:
Styrene/Polystyrene #1

: e automaotive applications
Narth American Rankings: . - European Rankings:
Polyethylene #3 ¢ New ventures leveraging unique Polystyrene/EPS #1
Ethylene #5 downstream plastics applications
and technologies

=
B * Leverage position as the world's » Utilize strategic partnarships to * Maximize efficiency and returns
1] lowest cost ethylene/polyethylane increase speed-to-market and from large, low-cost operations
5 producer outside of Middle East accelerate growth « Leverage leading positions and

industry turnaround in North
America and Butope

« Turnaround underway in Europe

» Tumaround started in North
America, expected to accelerate
in 2008

s Ongoing global styrenics industry
consolidation expected to
continue




NOVA Chemicals Around The World

N

{8, Operating Locations & Joint Venture Locations (® Tochnology Licensees

The location of our production facilities  INEOQS NOVA, NOVIDESA and Accel- W license a variety of proprietary

provides manufacturing cost advan- erated Building Technologies' facilities  technologies, induding SCLAIRTECH™
tages, as well as logistical advantages are positioned in strategic locations in  polyethylene technology, to leading
serving our key markets. (NOVA Chile  North America and Europe. manufacturers around the world.
not shown)

\ Operating Location Capacities mions of pounds) | /

Olefins/Polyolefins Ethylene Co-preducts @ Standard Advanced
Polyothylens SCLATRTECH
H Polyethylene
b
! Jofire, AB 4800 830 1450 200
Corunna, ON 1850 4700
Moaretown, ON 815
St, Clair River, ON 410
Total 5650 5530 2675 00
Performance Styrenics Styrene Expandable Btyrenic Other
Polystyrene Performanco Styrenio
Polymers' Polymers
Channelview, TX® 400
Monaca, PA 285 158 32
Painesvilta, OH 85
Total 400 7o 158 32

(1) Ethylene and co-product capacities are dependent on feedstock mix,

12) Co-products indude energy co-products, such s vacuum gas oil and distillates, and chemical co-products, such as propylene, aromatics, crude C4 hydrocarbans, CS disnes,
dicyclopentadiene, C? resin oils and hycrogen. '

(3) Rupresents NOVA Chamicals’ minority equity position in the LyoncieliBase!l Channalview, Taras, facility.
{4} Styrenic Parformance Polymers include ARCEL and DYLARK® resins. Total includes finishing capacities available at third-party toll manufacturers,
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‘\Corporate Social Responsibility

18

“We remain committed to continucus economic,
social and environmental performance improve-
ment. These elements are the foundation of our
business and help us deliver on our commitments

X to our shareholders, customers and the

communities where we live
Chris Pappas,
President and

. and work,”

Chie! Operating Officer

At NOVA Chemicals, we believe that a sustainable business
is a profitable and socially responsible business.

* We facus on safety at all times

* We exhibit high standards of corporate social responsibility

* We create economic value for our stakeholders

* We act as good stewards of the environment and
our natural resources

* Qur products deliver benefits to society

Our approach to social responsibility is primarily imple-
mented through Responsible Care®, a global chemical
industry performance initiative that helps member

companies continuously improve in the critical areas of

health, safety, security and environmental protection.

Safety, Environment, Health, and Security
*NOVA Chemicals shows how a company can be
truly guided by the Responsible Care ethic in
all it does through leading-edge practices in -

—

product stewardship, process safety,
protection of employees e

Brian Wastle,
Vice President, Canadion
Chemical Praducers’ Assogiaticn

and the environment.”

I

Safety: A key measurement of our Responsible Care
performance is the safety of our operations for employees.
In 2007, we had the best overall safety performance

in our history. We reduced our "Total Recordable Case
Rate” for the fifth straight year, and we reduced process
fires to their lowest level since we started collecting data.

4 N
Employee Total Recordable Case Rate (TRCR}

2.0

1.5

1.0

0.5

0.0
2002 2003 ROD4 2003 2000 2007

® NOVA Chemicals
® American Chemistry Council Average

TRCR: The nurmber of lost time and restricted work cases
{where wark routine is restricted due to a work related
injury or illness) 23 a rate per 200,000 hours worked.

. w,

' Y
Process Fire Prevention indax {(1998=1)

100 —
0.75

0.50

L UUUDDDO.

1908 2001 2005 2007

NOVA Chamicals defines procoss fires as any fire or
evidence of a flame (even those smaller than a candle flame).
Proventing process fires reduces the risk of serious injuries
and major equipment damage.




Environmental Protection: We believe that sound
environmental stewardship and careful management

of our natural resources are fundamental to a sustainable
business. NOVA Chemicals is investing in energy-
efficiency projects and reducing greenhouse gas (GHG)
emissions at our manufacturing facilities. As a result of
our approach, we anticipate an overall GHG emissions
intensity reduction of 20% in the 2000-2010 time frame,

Product Stewardship: We work with our customers

to manage the impact of our products throughout the
product lifecycle. This process integrates health, safety
and environmental safequards as part of the development,
manufacturing, handling and use of our chemical products,
plastic resins and finished products.

Emergency Preparedness and Security: Each of
our facilities is ready to respond to crisis situations
in order to protect our workers, the community and
the environment. We believe in proactive involvement
and planning, and we continually re-evaluate and
test our security systems through drills with local

emergency responders,

Our Responsible Care Review provides a detailed
overview of our programs and performance in the areas
of environmental protection, product stewardship,
health and safety, emergency preparedness and
security. The report is available on our website at

www.novachemicals.com.

Community Involvement

We are committed to maintaining open, long-term relation-
ships with all of our stakeholders. As part of this commitment,
we work to inform our communities about our operations
and seek input about concerns through Community Advisory
Panels, open houses, community forums and personal visits.

“NOVA Chemicals employs our students, funds
our scholarships and provides leadership on our
Board of Governors. Last year, NOVA Chemicals
took a leadership position as the first private-

_ sector company to invest in the Red Deer

College Building Communities
Through Learning
Program.”

Ron Woodward,

Prasident, Rad Deaer N

Cobege, Red Daer, Alberta

We also invest in the well-being of our communities by
lending a hand to organizations that positively impact
the overall quality of life. These investments focus on

education and research, health and community services,

and arts programs.

Our employces are also involved - providing helping hands through
the United Way Days of Caring and other outreach programs.

On average, we donate approximately 1% of our

pre-tax profits in our communities. Our investment in the
community is more than just monetary. We provide gifts-
in-kind to support local community organizations, such as
surplus computers and furniture.

Qur operations create both direct and indirect employment
and economic benefits; in 2007 the company paid $270
million in salary and wages in the communities where

we operate.
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\ Executive Leadership Team

Pictured from left to right.

Larry A. MacDonald Christopher D. Pappas  Jeffrey M. Lipton Jack 8. Mustoe

Senior Vice President and Chief President and Chief Oparating Chief Exocutive Officer Senior Vice President, Chief Legal
Financial Officer Officar Officer and Corporate Secretary

For more biographical information about the
Executive Leadership Teamn and the Board of Directors,
20 please visit www.novachemicals.com/governance.




\\ Board of Directors

Pictured from left to right.

James Stanford, Q.C.

Cheirman of the Board — director since 1999
M. Stanford is President of Stanford
Resource Management, Inc. and retired
President, Chief Executive Officer and
Director of Petro-Canada (1993-2000).

Arnold M. Ludwick

— dirgctor sinca 2000

Mr, Ludwick is the formar Presidant and
CEQ of Claridge Inc. and the former Vice
President of the Seagram Company Limited.

Dr. Joanne V. Creighton

— ¢hrector snce 2001

Pr. Creighton is President and Professor
of English of Mount Holycke College in
South Hadley, Massachusetts.

Jeffrey M. Lipton

— director since 1994

Mr. Lipton joined NOVA Corporation
in 1994 as Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer. He was named
President and Chief Operating Officer

in December 1994. Mr. Lipton assumed
his position as Chief Executive Officer of
NOVA Chemicals a1 its start-up on

July 1, 1998.

Christopher D. Pappas

— director since 2007

Mr. Pappas joined NOVA Chemicals as
Senior Vice Prasident, Styrenics in July
2000 and assumed his current role as
President and Chief Operating Officer
in January 2008,

L. Yves Fartier, C.C., Q.C.

— diractor since 1998

M. Fortier is Chairman and a senior
partner of Ogilvy Renault, Barristers and
Solicitors, Montréal, Québec.

Jacques Bougie, 0.C.

— director sincg 2001

Mr, Bougie is the former President and
Chief Executive Officer of Alcan Inc.

Kerry L. Hawkins

— director since 1998

Mr. Hawkins retired from his position as
President of Cargill Limited and Chief
Executive Officer of Canadian
Operations for Cargill in 2005.

Dr. F. Peter Boer

~— diractor since 1991

Dr. Boer is President and Chicf Executive
Officer of Tiger Scientific Inc.

Jerald Blumberg

- director since 2000

Mr. Blumberg is a retired Executive Vice
President of E.|. du Pont de Nemours
and Company.

Robert E. Dineen, Jr.

— dlirector sinco 1973 )

Mr. Dineen is of counsel at Shearman

& Sterling, LLP Attorneys-at-Law, New
Yark, New York, having previously served

as a partner of the firm since 1974.
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\ Corporate Governance

The Board of Directors is responsible for the overall
stewardship of NOVA Chemicals, including overseeing
the development of both our strategic direction and
policy framework. The Board is also responsible for the
corporate governance of NOVA Chemicals and primarily
discharges its responsibilities through its four committees. In
2007, NOVA Chemicals' Board of Directors held eleven
meetings. NOVA Chemicals’' Executive Leadership Team
works under the supervision of the Board to ensure cor-
porate governance issues are appropriately addressed.

All directors, officers and employees of NOVA Chemicals
must act in accordance with NOVA Chemicals’ Business
Conduct Policy, which can be accessed on NOVA
Chemicals’ website at www,.novachemicals.com,

The four committees of the Board have been delegated
responsibility for select NOVA Chemicals’ corporate
govermnance responsibilities. These committees are the
Audit, Finance and Risk Committee, the Corporate Gov-
ernance Committee, the Human Resources Committee
and the Public Policy and Responsible Care Committee.

Audit, Finance and Risk Committee: Members of
the committee, all of whom are independent for
purposes of applicable corporate governance rules,
are: Messrs, Hawkins (Chairman), Bougie, Dineen,
and Ludwick. In 2007, the Audit, Finance and Risk
Committee held eight meetings.

Corporate Governance Committee: Members of the
committee are: Messrs. Stanford (Chairman), Blumberg,
Dineen and Fortier. In 2007, the Corporate Governance

Committee held three meetings.

Human Resources Committee: Members of the com-
mittee are: Mr, Blumberg (Chairman}, Drs. Boer and
Creighton and Mr. Hawkins. In 2007, the Human Re-
sources Committee held four meetings. '

Public Policy and Responsible Care Committoe: -
Members of the committee are: Dr. Boer {Chairman) and
Messrs. Bougie, Fortier and Ludwick and Dr. Creighton.
In 2007, the Public Policy and Responsibie Care Com-

mittee held three meetings.

The mandate for each committee is available on NOVA
Chemicals’ website at www.novachemicals.com/governance.




\_Disclosure Regarding Forward-Looking Information

This Annual Report containg lorward-coking information with respect 1o NOVA Chemicats. By its naturg, jonward-iooking information requires us to make assumptions and is
subjaci o inhgren risks and uncertalntiss. There is significant risk that procictions, Ioecasts, conciusions and projsctions that consiitute lnwardHooking information wit not
Prove to be accurats, thal our assumptions may ot be comec! and thal actual results may vary from the lorwarg-looking information. Forward-ooking information for the
ﬂmspedod:beywdMMWI'-Mnwnpdmsandeslimamsmanbmru-boldnghbmmionbrmmhmamywbbamgmtuwmmm
caution reagers of this Annual Haponnonoplaoeundwmﬂaruonombmam—lool&ngInhmmuonuammrmmmummwu.mm
or eventts to differ materialy from the targats, expectations, astimatas or intentions exprassad in the forwardHooking information.

The words "beliove,” "axpact. "pian.” "intend* “sstimate.” or “anticipats” and simitar expressions, as wall as future or conditional vorbs such as “will" “should,” “would,” and
'umld'nﬂanbamilybwd-bowinhnnmm.smbmard-lmmgimmmhmmwmmmmmmmhmwr
expeczadfmmhlpnrbmumlnfxmnperbds;mbelhfsabomlrwesﬁnghwrnmdundllumnwmnybbulﬂbtmlnahiﬂi-oas!wuwiumt;u
befisfs about and expeciations for our Olefins/Folyolufins business unk, imctuding our balia! that this business unit has tremendous upside potentia! in a high-cost energy
environment, our gxpocintion thet this business unll may have o sustained porod of Strong samMings, our axpectation that sthylana/polyethylene markets conditions wil
mmlnstmngthmghubasi2009,ourbdisfuhwuumreoilnndmwm!gasmmm«xmmmmmmam.mmmmtwﬂmm
long-tarm average bor the foreseeable Auture, our beliets about and expectations lor owr Advanced SCLAIRTECH tachnology polyeliyiene business, including owr
mmmmmmwwmmmnummmwmmmm.wmmmmwmm.mmmm
dmﬂmaWthmmmmmwmwﬁu.wwrmmmdmmmh
Alberta, inclucing our expectations concsming the pelantial produttion capacitiea of te proposed davelopment of an ethane extraction plant with Aux Satie Canada Lid.
and our axpoctations conceming our letter of intent with Willlams Energy Canada o ovaluate off-gas strsams irom the Aiborta od sands to extraci ethana; our besefs and
expectations regarding our Perlormance Styrenics business unlt, inckiding our expectation that this business unlt will become a meaningful contributor to our revanuo and
earnlngsbythaonduizoos.mbolie!snbmﬂwrsmeticpolyml’emmarmmwmnmmuMQﬂmwrwrm.wrmmlmr
styranicpolytmPanormanmhwmmnm:mmmmwhnmsnmm.wﬂphmmmmdmrmmmmmw
mmmrmm-enmmmmmmmwmmewmmwurmmwmu
u\dmmmmhgmmmthWoMmINEOS.mmwdmmmmprwumewrthmm
venturesrunnncﬁons:ourmmmremeawmog!walummk:imarynndwbewummamhnwﬁwmﬂmmmmamwmwm
operpling rates and restorad profitabllity; our bebiets abou INEQS NOVA'S lavarags 10 improvernents In industry profilability and how that will impect our eamings; cur beliats
about lower Canaglan corporate (ax rates; our competitva dvaniages; and abliity to compata succosshully; and ganeral econornic canditions,

\Mmraspecltolnmam-lonldnghbmmﬁonnmminedi\lrisAmuaIRmm.mhmmwammﬂdampmm.mwmmtmmw.mwmlm.
natumlgas'llmioawbon:enepﬁoes:wrnblﬂwlnobtalnmmW;thmﬁﬂMmewmﬁwmm:hﬁhpﬁdw
anmpaﬁnm;eurmmtaxmm;mwm;wGDPgmm;andourawrymmhhandngmmpuuuwm.mofwmwuumbuedupm
mnalesummsarﬂmn1curmmmmmmwmnds.mmmﬂamWMwﬁMMaMomwmlmmﬂw
subject 10 riska and uncertainties inherent in projecting future conditions and resukts.

Somadunrisksm!mudufhctourh.mnrmbﬂmummmwmmmmmthrmmmm:m
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\_Management’s Discussion & Analysis

Tha lollowing Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) should be read in conjunction with the information contained in the Consolidated Financial $tatements and
i the notes thereto starting on page &7. This MDEA is based upan financis! statements prepared in accordance with Canadian Genurally Accepted Accounting Principles
{GAAP). These sccounting principles are different in sama nespects from those genenally accepted in the United States, and the significant d:fferences are described in
Note 21 to the Comsolidated Financial Statements. Relerences may be made to several non-GAAP measures throughout this MDSA. These measures are discussed in
Supplemental Mepsures on page 54. This MDA is the responsibility of management. The Board of Directors canies out its resporibility for review of this disclosure
principally through its Audit, Finance and Risk Commitiee comprised eaclusively of indepandent directors. The Audit, Financa and Risk Commitiee reviews this disclosure
and recommends its approva! by the Board of Directons, This MD&A was prapared as of Feb. 7, 2008,

All references in this Annual Repodt, including the MD&A 10 “NOVA Chemicals,” the “Company,” “we,” "us,” and simifar terma re’er 1o NOVA Chemicals Corporation
alone or together with its comsolidated subsidiaries and affiliates, depending on the context in which such terms are used. All amounts are presented in U.S. dollars unless
atherwiss nated.

\_NOVA Chemicals — A Plastics and Chemical Company

NOVA Chemicals is a plastics and chemical company whose products are used in a wide variety of applications, including
food and electronics packaging, industrial materials, appliances and a variety of consumer goods.

The Company operates two business units and holds a 50% interest in a major joint venture with INEOS Group Limited
(INEQS), called INEOS NOVA.

BUSINESS UNITS
* Olefins/Potyolefins manufactures and sells ethylene, polyethylene (PE) and chemical and energy co-products.

¢ Performance Styrenics manufactures and sells expandable polystyrene (EPS} in North America and higher-value
styrenic Performance Polymers. This business unit also has interests in EPS-based downstream ventures and
businesses for end-use consumer and industrial applications,

INEOS NOVA
+ INEOS NOVA is a 50:50 joint venture between NOVA Chemicals and INEQS that manufactures and sells styrene,
solid polystyrene (SPS} and EPS.

Until Sep. 30, 2007, NOVA Chemicals operated a commodity styrenics business unit known as STYRENIX, which
manufactured and sold styrene and SPS in North America. It also manufactured and sold 5PS and EPS in Europe
through NOVA Innovene, its 50:50 joint venture with INEOS.

On Oct. 1 2007, NOVA Chemicals and INEQS expanded their European joint venture to include the North
American styrene and SPS businesses of both companies. NOVA Chemicals no longer reports the results of its
STYRENIX business unit but rather its interest in INEOS NOVA. This MD&A includes discussion and analysis of
INEOS NOVA's results of operations and outfook, and the styrenics market due to the Company’s significant
investment in INEQS NOVA.

Figure 1. NOVA Chemicals’ business structure.

NOVA Chemicals INEOS NOVA
Olafins/Polyolefins Parformance Styrenics
Ethylene : ARCEL*and DYLARK® resins INorth American Styrene and S5PS
Polyethylene EPS-based Business Ventures [European SPS and EPS
Co-Products North American EPS SPS-based Specialty Polymers

: Styrene Equity Position
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\_ Key Drivers of Financial Performance

NOVA Chemicals' earnings and cash flow are primarily influenced by the margins earned on the products it manufactures.
Margin is the difference between the selling price of products and the direct cost to produce and distribute them. Margins
for companies in the plastics and chemical industry are driven by the supply/demand balance and tend to be cyclical.

SUPPLY/DEMAND BALANCE — THE KEY DRIVER OF PROFITABILITY

The supply/demand balance, as measured by industry operating rates, is generally the best indicator of profitability in the
plastics and chemical industry. During peak conditions, when operating rates tend 1o be high, prices and margins tend to
increase as customers attempt to secure scarce supply to meet their production needs. Conversely, during trough
conditions, which tend to occur when operating rates are low, margins tend to decrease since there is ample supply

to meet customer demand.

NOVA Chemicals' fow-cost position provides for enhanced earnings leverage during the peak of the commodity
business cycle.

PLASTICS AND CHEMLCAL INDUSTRY EARNINGS ARE CYCLICAL

By its nature, profitability in the plastics and chemical industry is cyclical. Demand growth is driven by economic growth,
which is relatively consistent over time. In contrast, new product supply grows in farge increments through the
construction of large new plants, which generally require significant capital and lead-time of four to six years to complete,

As industry operating rates increase, prices and producers’ margins tend to increase. Extended periods of profitability
encourage new investment in plants to serve growing demand. New supply added in excess of demand growth causes
industry operating rates and profitability to decline. Periods of reduced profitability deter investment in new plants and
force high-cost, unprofitable producers to rationalize capacity. Continued demand growth and lack of new investment
lead to tightening capacity utilization and a return to increased profitability. This alternating pattern of supply surplus
and shortage creates the earnings cycles that are typical in commeodity industries.

PRICE, VOLUME AND COST INFLUENCE PROFITABILITY

Price is driven by feedstock costs

Pricing for NOVA Chemicals’ polymer and chemical products is based on the amount its customers are willing to pay for
its products compared to similar available or competing products. Prices can change rapidly as a result of feedstock costs
and fluctuations in the supply/demand balance. While feedstock costs heavily influence the price of NOVA Chemicals’
products, margins drive profitability.

Volume is driven by economic growth

Sales volumes for plastics and chemical products are most heavily influenced by economic growth, a key driver

of demand. Sales volumes may also be influenced by short-term changes in customer buying patterns which are driven
primarily by expectations of price volatility. Anticipation of higher prices or fimited product avaifability can motivate
customers to purchase beyond short-term needs and build inventories. Conversely, expectations of lower prices can
motivate customers to delay purchases and consume inventories. These short-term buying patterns can create quarterly
earnings volatility for plastics and chemical producers and are not necessarily representative of lenger-term profitability.

Costs — feadstock cost advantage is critical to sustained profitability

Feedstock costs are the single largest component of NOVA Chemicals’ costs and account for 70-80% of the total cost of
its products. NOVA Chemicals’ primary feedstocks include ethane, crude oil, propane, butane and condensates, while
INEOS NOVA's primary feedstocks are benzene and ethylene. Feedstock costs heavily influence the price of NOVA
Chemicals’ products, and in recent years, feedstock cost volatility has led to rapid changes in product prices. Since
feedstock costs represent the most significant portion of total production costs, a feedstock cost advantage, like NOVA
Chemicals’ Alberta Advantage, can lead to enhanced profitability relative to industry peers and is the key to sustainable
profitability throughout the cycle.

The remaining 20-30% of total cost of the Company’s products consist of variable conversion costs and fixed costs

such as: plant operating and distribution costs; selling, general and administrative costs (SG&A); and research and
development costs (R&D). SG&A costs represent all direct and most indirect expenses incurred in directing and managing
tha Company. R&D costs relate to technical activities that support the development and commercialization of new
products, technologies and applications.
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\_ NOVA Chemicals’ Earnings Sensitivities

The following table illustrates how changes in various factors could affect NOVA Chemicals' profitability, assuming all
other factors are held constant, Changes in the opposite direction would have the opposite effect.

Potential Impaci to NOVA Chemicals’ Profitability of:

{billions of pounds) {millions of L.S. §}
Annual Annunl Annual
Annual Before-Tux Afer-Tax Earniogs
Production Incoma [noome Per Share
(as of Jan. 1, 2008} Capaoity'" Lncrensa Increase™ Inorease™
Increase of U.S, 1¢ per pound in profit margin
Ethylene®™ 5.0 $30 $35 50.42
PE 3.4 36 25 0.30
Styreng® 1.9 19 19 0.23
Sps® 1.9 19 19 0.23
EPS™ 04 4 4 0.04
Daecrease in natural gas cost by U.5. 10¢ per mmbty™ — 11 B 0.10
Deacrease in benzana cost by U.S. 10¢ per gallon® - 20 20 0.30
Decrease in Canadian dollar of 1¢ vs. U.S. dollar® — " 7 0.08

{}) Estimane baved on current production capacity assuming 100% wvtilization,

(2) Ansumans 31% corpocate ten rate, exzapt for styrane, SPS, snd EPS which are not subiecy to Waws dus 1o wie of net operating loss cary forwards, Ses Note 15 on pege 97
) Baved on 83.5 million shares,

(4) Excludes 1.6 bilion pounds ethylene capacity that is subject to toll snd margin-charing agreemants.

{5) Reprevants NOVA Chemicals' 50% share of INECS NOVA'S praduction.

{6) NOVA Chemicals’ North American EPS production,

{71 Natural gas cost indudes gas purchased for athany ion and gay d a3 fusl at production sites.

{8} Represanis Impact 1o fined couts and deprecistion related to changes in the Cansdlan doflar.
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\ 2007 Financial Overview

NOVA Chemicals’ Highlights

{miftions of LS. dollars, except pec share amounts and whera noted)} 2007 2008 2005
Total assets $4.836 £4.077 $5,178
Jotal long-term liabilities £2,315 $2,350 $2,623
Revenue £6,732 56,519 $5,616
Adjusted EBITDA®
Olefins/Polyolefins
Joffre Olefins $ 588 $ 587 $ 340
Corunna QOlefing 209 3 79
Potyathylene 196 141 234
Eliminations (18) {4 13
Total Olefins/Polyolefins 975 817 666
Performance Styrenics 4] an 7
INEOS NOVA Joint Venture™ 17 (43) (102)
Corporate {102) (153) (110
Adjusted EBITDA® 885 604 461
Operating Incoma {lossP® $ 553 (680) 3
Net income (loss) $ 347 $ (703) $ (101)
Net income (loss) per common share
Basic $ 419 $(8.52) $(1.22)
Diluted $ 4.8 $(8.52) $(1.22)
Dividends per share (in Canadian dollars) $ 040 $ 0.40 $ 0.40
Weighted-average common shares outstanding {millions)
Basic .83 83 83
Diluted 84 83 83
(1) On Ocr. 1. 2007, NOVA Chemicals expancded its Europesn joint venture 1o inchude NOVA Chernicals’ STYRENDX and INECS' North American styrenics busl As s result,

NOVA Chemicals re-segmunted its busi and d all prior pericds dingly. The 2007 annuat INEOS NOVA joint venture’y rosults sre comprised of the resutts from
the first nine menths of the formar NOVA Chemicals’ STYRENIX business unit and NAS® and ZYLAR® resing [formery inchuded in Peclormance Styranica). a3 well ax NOVA
Chamicals’ S50% share of INEOS NOVA's rusults for the last three manths of 2007,

(2} Seo Supplemental Measures on page 54,

Changes in NOVA Chemicals’ Not Incoms (Loss)

{miflions of LS. dollars) 2007 v8. 2006 2006 vs. L0058
Higher operating margin® $278 $146

Lower (higher) research and development 1 (n
Lower {higher) selling, general and administrative 2 {2}
Lower (higher) restructuring charges 89¢ {817}
Lower (higher) depreciation and amortization 53 #
Higher interest expense 7} (S5)
Higher {lower) gains and losses 19 @
(Higher) lower income tax expense {195) 143

Increaso (decroase) in net income $1,050 $(602)

{1) Restated — See Note 2 to the Consclideted Financial Statements.
{2) Oparating margin equals Revenue less Feedstock and operating costs,
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\Consolidated Financial Results of Operations

2007 VERSUS 2006

Net Income was $347 million, or $4.14 per share diluted in 2007, compared to net loss of $703 million, or $8.52 per share
loss in 2006. The Company's 2006 results were negatively impacted by a number of items totaling $847 million after-tax.
in addition to lower restructuring changes in 2007, margins improved for ethylene and PE as industry price increases,
driven by record industry feedstock costs, outpaced the Company’s Alberta-based feedstock costs. In addition, costs were
significantly lower as a result of restructuring activities.

NQOVA Chemicals had several items impacting its 2007 results that roughly offset each other.

Items Impacting 2007 Resulis After-tax impact (millions)
Restructuring $(55)
Impact of stronger Canadian dollar {25)
Canadian rail strike (8}
Sale of Chesapeaks, Virginia, facility and other land 14
Canadian federal tax rate reduction benefit and foreign tax settlement ' 78
Total Impact $4

Revenue was $6,732 million in 2007, up from $6,519 million in 2006. Average prices for all of the Company's products
increased in 2007, particularly in the second half of the year. In addition, PE sales velume set a new record due to strong
demand in North American end global markets.

Feedstock and Operating Costs were $5,598 million in 2007, down from $5,663 million in 2006. Despite higher crude oil
and benzene prices, the Company's total feedstock costs declined in 2007, due primarily to lower feedstack purchases by
INEQS NOVA. While industry feedstock costs increased significantly, the Company's feedstock costs increased less in
comparison due largely to its advantaged Alberta-based feedstock.

Depreciation and Amortization expense was $246 million in 2007, down from $299 million in 2006. Expenses were lower
in 2007 due to NOVA Chemicals’ STYRENIX asset write-down that occurred at the end of 2006. The impact of this
reduction was partially offset by higher depreciation expense resulting from a stronger Canadian dollar.

Selling, General and Administrative expenses were $199 million in 2007, down slightly from $201 million in 2006.
Costs were lower in 2007 as realized savings from cost-reduction efforts offset the increase in stock based compensation
expense [net of the forward transactions) and profit sharing.

Research and Development expenses were $50 million in 2007, down slightly from $51 million in 2006.

Restructuring Charges were $86 million before-tax ($55 million after-tax) in 2007, down from $985 million before-tax
($861 million after-tax) in 2006. NOVA Chemicals has undertaken a series of restructuring actions, both alone and with its
partner INEOS, to improve the cost structure of its styrenics business (see Note 13 on page 95 for details),

Interest Expense (Net) was $175 million in 2007, up from $168 million in 2006. The increase in interest expense is due to
higher accounts receivable securitization balances, increased draws on the revolving credit facilities and higher interest
rates during 2007 compared to 2006.

Other Gains were $20 million before-tax ($14 million after-tax) in 2007, up from §1 miillion before-tax in 2005. In 2007,
NOVA Chemicals sold the previously shut-down Chesapeake, Virginia, facility and other incidental land.

Income Tax Expense (Recovery) was a $51 million expense in 2007, compared to a $144 million recaovery in 2006.
The year-over-year change was due to strong earnings in Canada in 2007, which lead to higher tax expense and the tax
recovery related to the large write-down of STYRENIX assets in 2006 (see page 56 for details).

|
N
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2006 VERSUS 2005

Net Loss in 2006 was $703 million, or $8.52 per share loss, due primarily to a number of items totaling $847 million after-
tax. The largest of these items was a $772 million STYRENIX non-cash asset write-down (see page 56 for details). 2006
results compare to a net loss of $101 million, or $1.22 per share loss, in 2005.

Jtems Impacting 2008 Results After-tax impact (millions)
Restructuring {induding STYRENIX non-cash asset write-down} $(861)
Corunna facility start-up delay 25)
Mutual insurance company wind-up costs (13)
Corunna facility cutage (June) {B)
Canadian tax-rate reduction benefit 60
Total impact $(847)

Revenue was $6,519 million in 2006, up from $5,616 million in 2005. The increase was primarily due to higher sales
volumes due to improved cperations at the Company’s manufacturing sites in 2005, as well as higher product selling
prices. In 2005, a series of planned and unplanned outages of the Joffre and Corunna ethylene and PE plants limited
production, Selling prices for NOVA Chemicals’ products increased in 2006 as higher industry-wide feedstock costs and
strong demand led to price increases.

Feedstock and Operating Costs were $5,663 million in 2006, up from $4,906 million in 2005. The increase was primarily
due to higher feedstock consumption, driven by increased production at NOVA Chemicals’ plants and higher crude oil
and benzene prices in 2006.

Depreciation and Amortization expense was $299 million in 2006, up from $290 million in 2005. Expenses were higher in
2006 as the Company began to depreciate new assets installed as part of the Corunna ethylene flexi-cracker and Bayport,
Texas, styrene modernization projects. Expenses were also higher in 2006 as the Company began to amortize the costs of
the Corunna maintenance turnaround that occurred in late 2005. '

Selling, General and Administrative expenses were $201 million in 2004, up slightly from $199 million in 2005. Despite
higher expenses in 2006, the Company realized savings in the fourth quarter related to its restructuring and cost-
reduction efforts.

Research and Development expenses were $51 million in 2006, up slightly from $50 million in 2005.

Restructuring Charges were $985 million before-tax ($861 million after-tax) in 2006, up from $168 millien before-tax
(8125 million after-tax} in 2005. NOVA Chemicals has undertaken a series of restructuring actions, both alone and with its
joint venture partner INEOS, to improve the cost structure of its styrenics business. (See Note 13 on page 95 for details).

Interest Expense {Neot) was $168 million in 2006, up from $113 million in 2005, due to higher average debt levels and
higher interest rates.

Other Gains were 31 million in 2006, down from $8 million in 2005. The 2005 gains primarily relate to a tax settlement
with the U.5. Internal Revenue Service.

Income Tax Recovery was $144 million recovery in 2006, up from $1 million recovery in 2005, The increased recovery is
largely the result of the tax recovery related to the write-down of STYRENIX assets in 2006 (see page 56 for details).
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\_Olefins/Polyolefins Business Unit

The Olefins/Polyolefins business unit produces and sells ethylene, PE resins and co-products from its two manufacturing
centers located in Alberta and Ontario, Canada. The business is built on its significant and growing feedstock cost
‘ advantage in Alberta, world-scale and energy-efficient manufacturing facilities and proprietary Advanced SCLAIRTECH™

and gas-phase polyethylene technology.
The Olefins/Polyolefins business unit contains three reporting segments:

1) Joffre Olefins, which produces and sells ethylene and co-products and includes the Joffre, Alberta, site’s three
ethylene crackers.

2) Corunna Olefins, which produces and sells ethylene and co-products and includes the Corunna, Ontario, ethylene
flexi-cracker.

3) Polyethylene, which produces and sells PE and includes both the Alberta and Ontario based PE assets. In addition, the
Polyethylene segment licenses its proprietary process technology and catalysts.

Figure 2. Olefins/Polyolefins Business Unit Snapshot

Reporting Segment Primary Products Annual Caparity Manufacturing Sites Key Feedstocks

I
Joffre Olefins Ethylene 4.8 Blbs Joffre, Alberta Ethane 1
Co-products 0.8 Blbs ¥
Corunna Olefins Ethylene 1.85 Bibs Corunna, Ontario Crude Oil T
Co-products 4.7 Blbs Condensate t
Propane and Butane »
Polyethylene Low-density PE Joffre, Alberta Ethylene
High-density PE 3.6 Blbs Mooratown, Ontario {internally supplied by |
Linear-low density PE St. Clair River, Ontario Joffre/Corunna Olefins)  }
£

Advanced SCLAIRTECH PE

. 2007 OLEFINS/POLYOLEFINS HIGHLIGHTS
. - Record Olefins/Polyolefins adjusted EBITDA of $975 million

Record Alberta Advantage of 17¢ per pound

Record PE sales volume of 3,375 million pounds, including a record 424 million pounds of export sales

1 |

Record sales volume and adjusted EBITDA for PE produced using Advanced SCLAIRTECH technology
Increased Joffre-based PE annual production capacity by 100 million pounds

Announced intent to evaluate two separate projects to expand low cost ethane feedstock supply in Alberta

“ﬁ[a.rket Overview

ETHYLENE is the most widely produced petrochemical in the world and is the primary feedstock used in the production
of PE. It is a key building block for a variety of polymers and other chemicals used to manufacture products such as
packaging, containers, films and construction products. Ethylene is primarily transported via pipeline and is regionally
traded. Ethylene margins typically reach peak conditions when operating rates are at or above 90% of nameplate
capacity.

POLYETHYLENE is used to produce consumer end-use applications, such as packaging film, plastic bags, toys and
bottles, and is the most widely used plastic material in the world. industrial applications include storage drums, industrial
wrap, retail packaging and building products. PE resin is globally traded with established merchant markets. PE margins
typically reach peak conditions when operating rates exceed 90% of nameplate capacity.
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CO-PRODUCTS are produced in the ethylene manufacturing process and can be grouped into two categories: chemical
co-products and energy co-products. Chemical co-products include propylene, benzene and butadiene - building blocks
that are used to make items such as tires, carpet and clothing fibers, and household goods. Energy ca-products include
gasoline blending components and fuel oil. The profitability of co-products depends on energy prices and the
supply/demand balance for each co-product. The choice of ethylene feedstock mix determines the type and volume of
co-products manufactured.

Business Overview

NOVA Chemicals’ largest-volume product is ethylene, which is the key feedstock for the production of PE. The Company
produces ethylene and co-products at its Joffre, Alberta, and Corunna, Ontario, manufacturing complexes. These sites are
large, energy-efficient and among the lowest-cast in the world.

JOFFRE OLEFINS produces and sells ethylene and co-products and includes three world-scale ethylene crackers in Jofire,
Alberta, where NOVA Chemicals operates the largest ethylene and PE complex in the world. NOVA Chemicals’ share of
production capacity from the Joffre crackers, which excludes Dow Chemical Company’s 50% interest in the Ethylene 3 (E3)
cracker, is 4.8 billion pounds per year and represents approximately 75% of the Company’s total nameplate ethylene
production capacity. Approximately half of NOVA Chemicals’ production capacity at Joffre supports internal PE
production, while the remainder is sold to third parties. The Joffre crackers have the capacity to produce approximately
830 million pounds per year of ethylene co-products such as hydrogen, propylene, and C4 and C5 hydrocarbons.

The primary feedstock of the Joffre ethylene crackers is ethane, which is extracted from natural gas by third-party straddle
plant operators and delivered to the Joffre site via pipeline. The majority of ethane used at the Joffre site is extracted and
delivered under medium- to long-term contracts. The Company can also directly purchase ethane and has the flexibility to
use propane to meet a portion of its feedstock requirements when the economics are favorable.

ALBERTA ADVANTAGE — ETHYLENE PRODUCTION COST ADVANTAGE

The Joffre site enjoys an ethylene praduction cost advantage over simitar U.S. Gulf Coast (USGC) ethylene plants, known
as the “Alberta Advantage.” This advantage is due to:

- Structurally lower ethane costs — Since there is no significant commercial market for ethane in Alberta, NOVA
Chemicals buys natural gas, plus pays an extraction and delivery fee, to replace the energy content of the ethane
removed from the gas stream. Therefore, its feedstock costs are directly linked to the natural gas price in
Alberta. In comparison, its USGC peers pay a market price for ethane, which often sells at a substantial premium to
the underlying natural gas value. Alberta’s historically lower cost of natural gas, due to structural transportation
differentials, and more efficient ethane extraction plant infrastructura compared to the USGC, also contribute to the
Company's feedstock cost advantage.

- Lower ethane-to-ethylene conversion costs — The scale and efficiency of NOVA Chemicals’ newer, larger ethylene
crackers enable the Company to convert feedstocks to ethylene at a lower cost than its USGC peers.

The combination of these factors has historically yielded an average cash-cost advantage of 7¢ per pound of ethylene
versus a typical USGC natural gas liquid (NGL}based ethylene cracker.

Alberta Advantage enters a new, higher range

in 2007, NOVA, Chemicals realized a record cash-cost advantage of 17¢ per pound of ethylene, exceeding the previous
record of 11¢ per pound set in 2006. Strong demand for ethane on the USGC, coupled with record high crude oil prices,
pushed USGC ethane prices to record levels. In comparison, Alberta ethane prices, which are linked to natural gas prices,
remained stable for most of the year. The Alberta Advantage increased each quarter in 2007 and reached an all-time high
of 27¢ per pound in the fourth quarter. Since the only major use for ethane is as a feedstock for production of ethylene,
USGC ethane prices generally follow the prices of other ethylene feedstocks such as propane and naphtha, which closely
follow crude oil prices. Figure 3 shows the strong link between USGC ethane prices and WTI crude oil. Figure 4 shows the
strong correlation between the Alberta Advantage and WTI crude oil prices.
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Figure 3. Figure 4.
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While this ethylene cost advantage will continue to fluctuate from year to year, NOVA Chemicals expects that the
structural advantages associated with the lower cost of ethane feedstock in Alberta and the efficiency gained from
its large-scale Joffre facility are sustainable. The Company believes that the Alberta Advantage has entered a new,
higher range that will exceed the long term average for the foreseeable future due to the:

e Continued strong link between crude oil prices and USGC ethane costs.
* Likelihood that WT! crude oil prices will remain well above histerical averages.

* Prospect of stable North American natural gas prices due to start-up of new gas pipelines and new liguefied
natural gas {LNG) import capacity.

Future Ethane Feedstack Supply
In 2007, NOVA Chemicals announced it was evaluating opportunities to expand the supply of advantaged ethane
feedstock in Alberta.

NOVA Chemicals reached an agreement with Williams to evaluate processing current and future off-gas streams from
the Alberta oil sands to extract ethane for use in the Company’s Joffre, Alberta, facility. Under the terms of the
agreement, Williams would modify the existing oil sands off-gas liquids fractionation facility near Redwater, Alberta,
to enable extraction of ethane and ethylene. Development of this project is progressing well. This facifity is expected
to produce up to 20,000 barrels per day of ethane and begin operating as early as 2011.

NOVA Chemicals and Aux Sable Canada Ltd. are exploring altematives for the removal of ethane from the Alliance
Pipeline.

CORUNNA OLEFINS produces and sells ethylene and co-products that result from the manufacture of ethylene and
processing of crude oil and other feedstocks. The Corunna gthylene flexi-cracker has annual production capacity of
1.85 billion pounds of ethylene and 4.7 billion pounds of co-products following the recent completion of an
expansion and modemization project. Most of Corunna’s ethylene production is consumed by NOVA Chemicals’ PE
plants and INEOS NOVA's styrene monomer plant in Sarnia, Ontario, while the majority of its co-products are sold to
third parties.

Corunna Flexi-cracker’s Advantages .
The Corunna facility has three distinct advantages relative to typical USGC naphtha based crackers:

1) Access to a diverse range of feedstock types from various geographies
2) Flexibility to process a wide range of feedstock types

3) Access to end-use markets
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The facility's location in the Sarnia, Ontario, region gives it access to a large variety of feedstocks from both local

and global sources. The Corunna facility can access NGLs such as propane and butane from local producers, Western
Canada or the United States. The Corunna facility can also access crude oil and condensates from North America and
overseas via marine transportation and pipelines.

Corunna’s manufacturing assets have the flexibility to process a large range of feedstocks and produce diverse
chemical and energy co-products. NOVA Chemicals is able to quickly adjust Corunna’s feedstock slate between
crude oil, crude oil derivatives and NGLs to maximize margins as market conditions fluctuate. Corunna’s crude oil
processing unit allows NOVA Chemicals, unlike most of its peers, to purchase crude oil and produce its own naphtha
when it is economically favorable to do so - while most producers must purchase naphtha at market prices.

Finally, Corunna’s location in the heart of major markets for both the U.5. and Canada greatly reduces freight

costs and delivery times to customers.

POLYETHYLENE produces and sells finear low-density polyethylene (LLDPE), low-density polyethylene (LDPE} and
high-density polyethylene (HDPE). :

NOVA Chemicals has approximately 3.6 billion pounds of annual PE production capacity from its Mooretown and
St. Clair River sites in Ontario and its two units in Joffre, Alberta. During 2007, the Company increased the capacity of
its two Joffre PE plants by 50 million pounds each, for a tota! of 100 million pounds, with minimal capital investment.

Advanced SCLAIRTECH technology enables production of differentiated PE

One of the Joffre PE plants — PE2 — utilizes Advanced SCLAIRTECH technology to manufacture and sell higher
value SURPASS® and SCLAIR® PE resins. SURPASS resins deliver a unique combination of properties not found in
traditional PE resins and are used in film applications, such as food packaging; injection molding applications, such as
ice cream containers and packaging lids; and rotational molding applications, such as dumpsters and industrial
storage containers. SCLAIR resins are used in a variety of flexible packaging applications.

NOVA Chemicals is one of only three PE companies worldwide with independent, patented process and single-site
catalyst technologies which enable the Company to produce differentiated higher-value PE resins on a commercial
scale. Made with patented Advanced SCLAIRTECH technology and proprietary single-site catalysts, NOVA
Chemicals’ octene co-polymer resins deliver enhanced value to customers because of their performance attributes
and processing benefits. They therefore are expected to generate higher, more sustainable margins throughout the
chemical industry cycle.

in 2007, NOVA Chemicals sold 885 million pounds of PE produced using Advanced SCLAIRTECH technolagy, selfing
out the Joffre PE2 unit's capacity. In response to the growing demand for resins made with Advanced SCLAIRTECH
technology, NOVA Chemicals increased the annual capacity of the Joffre PE 2 plant by 50 million pounds in 2007. By
early 2009, the Company plans to increase annual capacity by another 100 million pounds to a total of 1 Gillion
pounds with minimal capital investment.

Figure 5.
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PE exports — logistical advantage

NOVA Chemicals’ PE is primarily sold into North American markets. The Company has also historically sold 10 - 15% of its
total sales volume to China, other Asian countries and Europe. in 2007, NOVA Chemicals exported a record 624 million
pounds, which represents 19% of its total PE sales. Higher international PE selling prices, driven by high global feedstock
costs and strong demand, created significant export opportunities for North American producers.

NOVA Chemicals has a distinct advantage over its USGC peers when exporting PE to China through its packaging joint
venture located in Tianjin, China. The Company ships bulk PE resin out of the Port of Vancouver to Tianjin where it is
bagged for distribution to customers in China, The combination of efficient packaging operations and favorable bulk
shipping rates from Vancouver allow the Company 1o enjoy a logistics advantage exporting to China compared to its
USGC peers. .

PE Technology Licensing — capturing value from proprietary technology

NOVA Chemicals licenses its proprietary SCLAIRTECH™ technology and NOVACAT™ family of catalysts. The Company's
SCLAIRTECH technology is licensed for use in 11 plants around the world. In India, one of the fastest growing economies
in the world, NOVA Chemicals’ SCLAIRTECH technology is now used in nearly 40% of the country’s total PE production.

' Since Joffre’s PE2 plant is now fully commercialized, NOVA Chemicals intends to license Advanced
SCLAIRTECH technology.

NOVACAT catalysts are a series of advanced Ziegler-Natta catalysts designed specifically for gas-phase PE reactors that
can produce butene and hexene LLDPE with improved performance characteristics and manufacturing economics.

\_Outlook for Olefins/Polyolefins Business Unit

NOVA Chemicals believes that there are several factors supporting a sustained period of strong earnings from
Olefins/Polyolefins:

1. CONTINUED STRONG ETHYLENE/PE MARKET CONDITIONS THROUGH AT LEAST 2009
NOVA Chemicals expects global PE supply and demand balances to remain strong through at least 2009 based on the
following expectations:

¢ Limited capacity additions in North America

» Continued delays in planned global PE capacity additions due to shortages of skilled labor, increased lead times for
fabricated components, and increased costs

+ Global GDP growth of 3.5% from 2008-2012 as forecasted by economic consultant Global insight. The Chinese and
Indian economies continue to register near double-digit growth rates for plastics and chemicals and the developed
economies of the world continue to grow.
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Figure 6.
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2. ALBERTA ADVANTAGE IN A NEW, HIGHER RANGE

Record high crude oil prices, strong demand for USGC ethane and moderate North American natural gas prices
contributed to the record Alberta Advantaga in 2007, Continued high crude oil prices are expected to continue to
support high USGC ethane prices. In contrast, continued high natural gas inventories in North America along with the
start-up of new natural gas pipelines and increased LNG import capacity would support moderate natural gas prices.
Continued dislocation of natural gas prices relative to crude il prices would likely lead to a sustained Alberta Advantage
that is well above the historical average of 7¢ per pound.

3. NOVA CHEMICALS’ FAST PAYBACK PE DEBOTTLENECK OPPORTUNITIES

In 2007, NOVA Chermicals increased the production capacity of its two Joffre-based PE plants by a total of 100 million
pounds and has announced plans to further expand capacity by another 150 million pounds {50 million pounds at the gas-
phase PE plant and 100 million pounds at the Advanced SCLAIRTECH PE plant) by early 2009 with minimal capital
investment.

In January 2008, the Company also anncunced plans for a series of modemnization and expansion projects at its two PE
sites in the Sarnia, Ontario, region, These projects are expected to increase annual capacity by up to 250 million pounds,
improve reliability, and upgrade the product slate at these sites. These projects, which will be implemented in stages in
2008 and 2009, are expected to cost a total of $80 million and should have approximately a two-year payback.

4. LOWER CANADIAN CORPORATE TAX RATES

In 2007, the Canadian federal government announced a series of reductions to the corporate income tax rate.

In combination with similar tax rate reductions enacted in 2006, NOVA Chemicals' corporate tax rate is expected
to drop from 33.1% in 2007 to 26% in 2012, Since the Olefins/Polyolefins business results are predominantly taxed
at the Canadian federal rate, lower tax rates will translate Olefins/Polyolefins results into higher earnings for
NOWVA Chemicals.
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Olefins/Polyolefins Financial Highlights

{millions of L.5. doflars, except as noted) 2007 2006 EOOB
Revenue
Jofire Olefins™ $1,803 $1,744 $ 1,704
Corunna Olefins™ . 2075 1,997 1,430
Polyethylene™ 2,022 1922 1,628
Eliminations (1,367) {1,382} (1,176}
$4,533 $4,281 $ 3,586
Adjusted EBITDAZ
Joffre Olefins $ 588 $ 587 $ 340
Corunna Olefins 209 93 79
; Polyethylene 196 ALY 234
; Eliminations™ {18) (4) 12
' $ 975 $ 817 $ 665
' Operating income™
Joffre Olefins $ 53t $ 537 $ 290
Corunna Qlefins 144 34 30
Polyethylene 127 75 172
Eliminations™ {18) (4} 12
$ 784 $ 644 $ 504
Polyethylene Sales Volumes (millions of pounds)
Advanced SCLAIRTECH resins® Bas 854 7130
All other polyethylene resins 2,490 2,385 2,111
3,375 3,239 2,841
{1) Bafore inter-segment eliminstions b the business units.

{2) See Supplemantal Measures on page 54.
{3) Represants inter-segment profic skminstions,
{#} PE resins produced wning Advanced SCLAIRTECH technology a1 the Joffre site, Induding SCLAIR snd SURPASS resins.

Olefins/Polyolefins Operating Highlights

2007 Annual
{U.S. dollars per pound, except whers noted) Q _ as QA Qe 2007 2008 £000
Benchmark Principal Product Prices:™
Ethylene® $ 040 $045 $ 050 3 040 $ 0.49 $ 048 $ 044
PE — linear low-density butene liner® $056 $062 $0467 $075 $ 0.63 $ 065 $ 060
PE — weighted-average benchmark® $058 $064 $070 $077 $ 0.68 $ 047 $ 043
Benchmark Raw Material Prices:™
AECO natural gas (dollars per mmBTU $ 632 $ 643 $ 496 $ 6.26 $ 5.99 $ 575 $ 7.25
’ NYMEX natural Gas (dollars per mmBTU $69 $ 758 %613 § 7.03 $ 6.92 $ 7.2 $ 855
WTI Crude Qi (dollars per barrelf $58.27 $65.03 $75.38 $90.58 $72.34 $66.21 $56.56

1) Avarage benchmark prices do rot necessardy miffect sctual prices realized by NOVA Chemicaly or any other chemical company.
(2) Source: Chemical Market Associstes, inc. (CMAD - USGC Not Transaction Price.

[3) LLDPE butens brer. Source: Towraand Polymer Services Information (TPSL,

[4) Prices weighted sccording to NOVA Chemicals” cales volame mix in North America. Sowrce for benchmark prices: TPSI.

[5) Source: Canadian Gas Price Reporter, waighted-avarage dally tpot gas prices, vatues in millions of British Tharrnal Units (mmBTW),
(&) Source: NYMEX Henry Hubr 3-Day Averags Closa, values in mmBTY,

() Sourca: NYMEX WTI daily spot-settied price sverage for calendwr manth,

36 Management’s Discussion & Analysis




\ Discussion of Financial Results

In 2007, the Olefins/Polyalefins business unit delivered record results due to a record Alberta Advantage, strong
domestic PE demand and record PE exports. The business delivered record results despite the sharp increase in
the Canadian dollar which increased 17% compared to the U.5. dollar since the end of 2006.

JOFFRE OLEFINS, 2007 VERSUS 2006

Revenue was $1,803 million in 2007, up from $1,744 million in 2006. Total ethylene sales were 2% higher in 2007
compared to 2006 due to stronger merchant ethylene demand and higher internal consumption of ethylene for
Joffre PE production. In addition, average selling prices for ethylene and co-products, which were 2% higher in 2007.

Feedstocks and Operating Costs were $1,205 million in 2007, up from $1,143 million in 2006. Costs increased
in 2007 due to higher Alberta natural gas prices, which were 3% higher in 2007, and stronger consumption of
feedstocks to support higher ethylene sales. In addition, costs were negatively impacted by the appreciation of
the Canadian dollar in 2007.

In 2007, NOVA Chemicals realized an average cash-cost advantage of 17¢ per pound of ethylene versus its USGC
peers, the highest in Company history. The Alberta Advantage increased from 11¢ per pound in 2006, as strong
demand for ethane on the USGC, coupled with high crude oil prices, pushed USGC ethane prices to record levels.
Alberta athane costs, which closely track natural gas prices, remained stable for most of the year.

Adjusted EBITDA was a record $588 million in 2007, up slightly from $587 million in 2006. Margins in 2007 remained
at a similar high level to 2006 as stronger revenue offset the impact of higher feedstock costs and a stronger
Canadian dollar. The expansion of the Alberta Advantage, which was primarily due to higher USGC feedstock costs,
enabled NOVA Chemicals to maintain margins while industry margins declined.

JOFFRE OLEFINS, 2006 VERSUS 2005

Revenue was $1,744 million in 2004, up from $1,704 milfion in 2005. Revenue increased as higher ethylene and
co-product selling prices in 2006, which were 6% higher in 2006, more than offset lower sales volumes, which were
4% lower in 2006, Sales volumes were lower due to slightly weaker demand from third-party ethylene customers.

Feedstocks and Operating Costs were $1,143 million in 2006, down from $1,353 million in 2005 due primarily
to lower Alberta natural gas prices, which were 21% lower in 2006 compared to 2005,

tn 2006, NOVA Chemicals’ Alberta Advantage averaged 11¢ per pound of ethylene, the highest in Company history
at the time, compared to &¢ per pound in 2005. The Alberta Advantage increased from 2005 as strong demand for
ethane on the USGC, coupled with high energy prices, pushed USGC ethane prices to near-record levels. Alberta
ethane costs, which closely track natural gas prices, remained stable for most of the year.

Adjusted EBITDA was $587 million in 2006, up significantly from $340 million in 2005. The year-over-year
improvement is due to lower feedstock costs and higher ethylene selling prices.

CORUNNA OLEFINS, 2007 VERSUS 2006

Revenue was 52,075 million in 2007, up from $1,997 million in 2006. The year-over-year improvemnent was due primarily
to increased ethylene sales, which were 9% higher in 2007 due to stronger internal demand for ethylene. Co-product
revenue in 2007 was down slightly compared to 2006, Higher selling prices for energy and chemical co-products, which
rose in response to higher WTI crude oil prices, mostly offset the impact of lower energy co-product sales.

Feedstocks and Operating Costs were $1,856 million in 2007, down slightly from $1,885 million in 2006. Costs in
2007 were lower, despite higher feedstock prices, primarily due to reduced feedstock purchases from lower energy
co-products sales. The average WT! crude oil price was 9% higher in 2007 compared to 2006; however, NOVA
Chemicals’ crude oil costs increased 4% due to the flow through of costs. In addition, gains from the Company's
feedstock purchasing program totaling $36 million in 2007 contributed to lower feedstock costs.
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Adjusted EBITDA was $209 million in 2007, up from $93 million in 2006. The improvement was due primarily to higher
selling prices for co-products which were 15% higher than 2006. Despite the sharp rise in industry crude oil costs in the
second half of 2007, Corunna’s crude oil costs in 2007 were only 4% higher than 2006 due to the flow through of costs.
Gains from NOVA Chemicals' feedstock purchasing program minimized the year-over-year increase in feedstock costs and
contributed to the adjusted EBITDA improvement.

CORUNNA OLEFINS, 2006 VERSUS 2005
Revenue was $1,9%7 million in 2006, up from $1,430 million in 2005 due to higher selling prices and sales volumes.

Compared to 2005, average ethylene selling prices were 18% higher in 2005, while energy and chemical co-product
prices were 22% higher in 2006. Energy co-product prices were driven by higher crude oil prices in 2006, while
chemical co-product prices were driven by higher propylene and butadiene prices.

Total sales volumes were approximately 16% higher in 2006 due to improved operations at the Corunna ethylene
flexi-cracker. In 2005, the Corunna facility experienced an unplanned shutdown in the second quarter due to a power
outage and a delayed re-start in the fourth quarter following the facility’s expansion and modernization project.

Feedstocks and Qperating Costs were $1,885 million in 2006, up from $1,334 million in 2005. Costs increased in 2006 due
to higher feedstock prices and higher feedstack consumption driven by increased production at the Corunna flexi-cracker.

Adjusted EBITDA was $93 million in 2006, up from $79 million in 2005. The year-over-year improvement was due
primarily to higher average selling prices and sales volumes which more than offset higher feedstock and operating costs.

POLYETHYLENE, 2007 VERSUS 2006

Revenue was $2,022 million in 2007, up from $1,922 million in 2006. The year-over-year improvement was. primarily due
to higher PE sales volume. PE sales volumes in 2007 were a record 3,375 million pounds, up 4% compared to 2006 due to
record PE exports and sales of PE manufactured using Advanced SCLAIRTECH technology and solid domestic demand
for standard resins.

International sales volumes rose 48% to 624 million pounds in 2007 compared to 423 million pounds in 2006. International
sales represanted approximately 19% of total PE sales volume in 2007, up from 13% in 2006 as strong international
PE pricing, driven by higher global preduction costs and robust demand, supported profitable export opportunities.

Sales of PE manufactured using Advanced SCLAIRTECH technology totaled a record 885 million pounds in 2007, up from
854 million pounds in 2006. Sales increased due to continued market penetration of higher value products.

Feedstocks and Operating Costs were $1,772 million in 2007, up slightly from $1,747 million in 2006. Feedstock and
operating costs were higher in 2007 as lower ethylene unit costs, which were 5% lower than 2006, were offset by higher
PE sales volume, which required 4% more ethylene consumption. All of the ethylene feedstock consumed by the
Polyethylene reporting segment is supplied by the Company's Joffre, Alberta and Corunna, Ontario, facilities.

Adjusted EBITDA in 2007 was $194 miilion, up from $141 million in 2006. The year-over-year improvement was due to
higher PE sales volumes and increased margins, despite higher costs related to the stronger Canadian dollar.

POLYETHYLENE, 2006 VERSUS 2005
Revenue was $1,922 million in 2006 compared to $1,628 million in 2005. Revenue grew in 2006 due to increased sales
volumes and higher average selling prices.

Sales volume was 14% higher in 2006 due to improved ethylene availability from both the Joffre and Corunna ethylene
plants. In 2005, ethylene production at Joffre and Corunna was constrained due to a tornado that damaged third-party
NGL extraction facilities in Alberta, as well as planned and unplanned outages at the Corunna flexi-cracker. In addition,
average PE prices were 4% higher in 2006.

International sales volumes rose 6% to 423 million pounds in 2006 compared to 398 million pounds in 2005. International
sales increased in 2006, representing 13% of tota) PE sales volume in 2006 versus 14% in 2005, as the Company pursued
profitable export opportunities, particularly in the fourth quarter.

In 2006, sales of total PE made with Advanced SCLAIRTECH technology increased 17% to 854 million pounds which
exceeded the plant’s nameplate capacity.
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Feedstocks and Operating Costs were $1,747 million in 2006, up from $1,360 million in 2005. Feedstock and operating
casts rose in 2006 due to higher PE production and feedstock consumption and higher average prices for ethylene.

Adjusted EBITDA was $141 million in 2006, down from $234 million in 2005. The year-over-year decline was primarily
due to higher feedstock costs, which more than offset higher PE revenue.

\_ Performance Styrenics Business Unit

Performance Styrenics is a growing business unit that produces unique styrenic Performance Polymers and standard EPS,
and has a portfolio of EPS-based downstream ventures and businesses that aim to create and capture value beyond the
sale of EPS resin. Specifically, the Perfarmance Styrenics unit contains the following:

* ARCEL and DYLARK Parformance Polymers
+ North American EPS

« EPS-based downstraam ventures: Elemix™ concrete additive, IMx™ technology, NOVA Chile EPS molding aperations,
and joint venture interests in Accelerated Building Technologies and NOVIDESA.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

Performance Styrenics’ portfolio of products and ventures applies proprietary technology to the energy-efficiency benefits
of EPS to help customers reduce their costs and environmental impact (see Figure 7). For example, several of the
ventures’ building and construction products enable builders to create structures that have higher energy efficiency than
traditional homes, in less time and using fewer skilled workers. Performance Polymers like ARCEL resins can reduce the
amount of protective packaging used which leads to lower packaging and logistics costs and reduced packaging waste.
These benefits are especially important in a high-energy cost and sustainability driven environment. As a result, NOVA
Chemicals’ premium-products can earn higher margins over standard, non-differentiated products.  ~

Styrenic Performance Polymers are used in protective packaging, automotive interiors, food packaging and consumer
goods. The products created by the EPS-based downstream ventures are used in premium beverage applications as well
as in the building and construction industry. Standard EPS resins are used in the production of packaging for food and
consumer products and in insulation for the building and construction industry.

Currently, sales of standard EPS resins account for the majority of Performance Styrenics' revenue. As 2 result, profitability
of the business unit is dependent on the cydlica! supply/demand balance for EPS. As sales from Styrenic Performance
Polymers and the downstream business ventures grow, Performance Styrenics offers the prospect of enhanced earnings
stability throughout the chemical cycle.

| Figure 7. EPS Technology Value Chain

! PACKAGING BUILDING AND CONSTRUCTION
| Protective & Insulated Packaging Accolerated Building Technologies

EPS / Cups and Containers Elemix Concrete Additive

ARCEL Resin - Pratective Packaging
Insulated Concrete Forms
IMx Technology Cups

NOVA Chile - Fish & Fruit Packaging Structural Insulating Panels
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STYRENE FEEDSTOCK

Styrene is the primary feedstock for the production of NOVA Chemicals’ EP$ and styrenic Performance Polymers. NOVA
Chermicals’ minority interest in LyondellBasell's Chemical Company’s Channelview, Texas, propylene oxide/styrene
monomer (PO/SM) facility supplies 400 million pounds per year of cost-competitive styrene 1o the Performance Styrenics
business unit, meeting virtually all of its styrene requirements.

EXPANDABLE POLYSTYRENE

NOQVA Chemicals has the capacity to produce 370 million pounds per year of standard EPS at its production facilities in
Monaca (Beaver Valley), Pennsylvania, and Painesville, Ohio. NOVA Chemicals’ downstream businesses and ventures build
on the foundation of EPS resin technology to create new consumer and industrial applications that deliver enhanced value,

STYRENIC PERFORMANCE POLYMERS

NOVA Chemicals has annual production capacity of approximately 160 million pounds for styrenic Performance Polymers,
which are manufactured at its Beaver Valley facility and through tolling agreements with outside manufacturing partners.
Approximately 105 million pounds per year of ZYLAR and NAS Performance Polymers capacity was transferred to the
INEOS NOVA joint venture that commenced aperations on Qct.1, 2007,

ARCEL resin is a parformance resin that is molded into foam for protective packaging and used by producers of damage-
sensitive goods such as electronics, appliances, and furniture. Packaging made from ARCEL resin is resilient, tough and
flexible and can reduce product breakage and returns. In addition, packaging made from ARCEL resin is compact, which
reduces overall package size and packaging waste and decreases transportation and fuel consumption costs for finished
goods, contributing to the sustainability goals of NOVA Chemicals’ customers.

NOVA Chemicals has annual ARCEL resin production capacity of 70 million pounds between NOVA Chemicals’ Beaver
Valley, PA, facility and the ARCEL finishing plant in Ningbo, China. The finishing plant provides a local source of ARCEL
resin in Asia and is operated under a long-term strategic partnership with Loyal Chemical Industrial Corporation.

DYLARK resins are used in automotive applications, such as soft instrument panels, structural consoles, roef-mounted
LCD video supports and interior trim. DYLARK resins are specified for their temperature resistance, stiffness and strength,
lot-to-lot consistency and exceptional foam adhesion.

DOWNSTREAM VENTURES USE EPS TECHNOLOGY TO CAPTURE VALUE

NOVA Chemicals’ Performance Styrenics business unit has a portfolio of downstream ventures that seek to capture value
beyond the manufacturing and sale of plastic resins. The ventures are based on the attributes of EPS which offers energy-
efficiency and insulating benefits to customers looking for superior product performance and enhanced sustainability.

Through strategic relationships with downstream partners, NOVA Chemicals plans to leverage its inteflectual property and
market expertise to eamn royalty ravenue and create pull-through sales of the Company’s standard polymers and Performance
Polymers. This combination of technology licensing and sales of finished products is expected to generate and sustain
profits throughout the chemical industry cycle. Descriptions of the key ventures and 2007 business activities follow:

+ Elemix Concrete Additive contains proprietary polymeric spheres that have been specially formulated for use
in concrete. By distributing uniformly in conerete, Elemix additive provides lighter weight concrete and enhanced
durability in structural and non-structural concrete applications. Structures built with lightweight concrete made with
Elemix additive require less supporting structural steel and offer superior insulating properties compared to traditional
concrete. NOVA Chemicals recorded its first sale of Elemnix additive in 2007,

* Accelerated Building Technologies is a 50:50 joint venture between NOVA Chemicals ard Dietrich Metal Framing, a
Worthington Industries company. This joint venture develops and manufactures durable, energy-saving, composite wall
systems under the trademark accelE™ for residential, commercial and light industrial use. These systems combine the
insulating and lightweight characteristics of EPS with the strength of light-gauge steel framing. The joint venture
commarcialized its first product in 2007. Its products have successfully passed key structural and environmental
performance tasting that have atlowed it to make initial sales in each of its target segments: residential, commercial
and light industrial. ‘
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* Insulating Concrete Forms {ICFs) are molded EPS forms that can be interlocked and filled with concrete to become
the foundations and walls of structures such as residential homes. Structures built with ICFs are more energy-efficient
and require less maintenance than traditional buildings. ICF structures can better withstand damage caused by
hurricanes and earthquakes and are easy to assemble, potentially reducing both construction time and labor costs,
Currently, ICFs are produced and marketed in North and South America through NOVIDESA, in the U.S. through toll
manufacturers, and in Chile through NOVA Chile.

e NOVIDESA is a 50:50 joint venture formed by NOVA Chemicals and Grupo IDESA, that produces and sells building
systems such as ICFs and steel-reinforced EPS partition wall panels and decking that target the rapidly growing Mexican
construction market. The joint venture also sells EPS in Mexico. During 2007 NOVIDESA doubled its sales of building
and construction systems from 2006.

» NOVA Chile is fully owned by NOVA Chemicals and operates two EPS molding plants in Quilicura and El Tepual, Chile,
which mold products for local fish and produce packaging, housing and construction markets. NOVA Chile continues
to grow and provide industry leading products to the Chilean construction market.

+ [Mx technology for cups and containers enables NOVA Chemicals to produce labeled cups in a single-step process.
These cups combine the superb insulation properties of EPS with the outstanding graphics quality traditionally offered
only by paper. The Company is pursuing both direct sales of cups and containers, as well as technology licensing
opportunities. During 2007, NOVA Chemicals signed a licensing agreement with the exclusive provider of hot
beverage cups to a globally recognized quick-service restaurant chain in Singapore and also with a leading consumer
products company in Eurcpe for ice cream containers.

« LRM Industries is a 50:50 joint venture with Envirokare Compaosite Corp. that plans to commercialize TPF
ThermoPlastic Flowforming™ technology, an emerging process technology for low pressure, fully automated molding
of long-fiber reinforced thermoplastic and unreinforced thermoplastic large structural parts. During 2007, LRM
commercialized its Sheetless ThermaFonming™ process technology, which is a proprietary, one-step, low-cost process
for producing conventional single-sheet thermoformed parts.

\ Outlook for Performance Styrenics Business Unit

In 2007, NOVA Chemicals continued to make progress growing its Performance Styrenics business unit. NOVA Chemicals
believes that its Performance Styrenics business unit now has the infrastructure, intellectual property, and crganization in
place to deliver a return on the investment made over the last few years. Each of the ventures recorded revenue during
the year while ARCEL resins continued to gain acceptance as a superior packaging material for high-end consumer
electronics. NOVA Chemicals also took steps to reduce annual costs in its standard EPS business by $8 million during the
year. While Performance Styrenics business unit results improved measurably in 2007, it did not meet the Company's
aggressive growth expectations.

In 2008, NOVA Chemicals plans to continue to drive improvements in its standard EPS business and accelerate sales of
ARCEL resin. In addition, the Company will continue 10 develop its downstream business ventures and expects that by the
end of 2008, Performance Styrenics will become a meaningful contributor to NOVA Chemicals’ revenue and earnings.

Performance Styrenics Financial Highlights'"

{millions of U.5. dollars, except whaere noted) 2007 2008 2008
Revenue $412 $385 $363
Adjusted EBITDA® $ (5 s $ 7
Operating loss® $(30) 529 $
Sales volumes™ {millions of pounds) 418 415 345

(1) ZYLAR and NAS resin assats that were formerly included in NOVA Chemicals’ Parformance Styrenics segment were contributed to INEOS NOVA on Oct. 1, 2007. Tha results
for these resins are now included in the INEQS NOVA joint ventura’s results, Prior period results have been revised to reflect this change.

(2) See Supplamental Measres on page 54,
(3 Third-party sahes,
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Performance Styrenics Operating Highlights
2

007 Annual
{U.S. dollars per pound) Q! Qe Qs Q4 2007 2008 2008

Benchmark Raw Material Prices:™
Styreng™ $0.45 $0.71 $0.68 $0.69 $0.48 $0.65 0.63

[1) Avmragn berchrmark prices de not mecessarly reflect sctusl prices realized by NOVA Chemicals or any other petrochemical company
{2) Source; CMAI Contract Market.

Qiscussion of Financial Results

2007 VERSUS 2006

Revenue in 2007 was $412 miltion up from $385 million in 2006, The improvement was due 10 higher sales volume of EPS
and higher selling prices, particularly for EPS and DYLARK resins. EPS sales volumes were 13% higher in 2007 due to
stronger domestic demand in the construction market.

Feedstocks and Operating Costs in 2007 were $380 million, up from $343 million in 2006. Costs were higher in 2007
primarily due to the 6% increase in styrene, which more than offset lower operating costs as a result of NOVA Chemicals’
restructuring activities.

Adjusted EBITDA in 2007 was a $5 million loss, an improvement from the $17 million loss in 2006. Margins expanded in
2007 as increased selling prices more than offsat higher styrene input costs. The impact of restructuring activities in 2007
also contributed to the year-over-year improvement.

2006 VERSUS 2005

Revenue in 2006 was $385 million, up from $363 million in 2005, Stronger EPS sales and continued acceptance of
Styrenic Performance Polymers led to a 6% increase in sales volume compared to 2005, This impact was partially offset
by lower average EPS prices.

Feedstocks and Operating Costs were $363 million in 2006, up from $314 million in 2005. Higher feedstock
consumption, due to higher sales volume, and higher styrene costs contributed to the year-cver-year increase in costs.

Adjusted EBITDA in 2006 was a $17 million loss, compared to 2 $7 million profit in 2005. The year-over-year decline was
due to higher development costs, higher styrene feedstock costs, and lower EPS selling prices which more than offset
higher sales volumes.

\INEOS NOVA Joint Venture

On Cct. 1, 2007, NOVA Chemicals and INEOS expanded their 50:50 European joint venture to include the North
American styrene and SPS businesses of both companies. INEOS NOVA is headquartered in Joliet, lllinois, and includes:

* SPS and EPS assets in Europe (previously part of the NOVA Innovene joint venture).

e NOVA Chemicals' North American styrene and SPS assets (previously in its STYRENIX business unit} and NAS and
ZYLAR performance resins (previously in its Performance Styrenics business unit).

* INEOS' North American styrene and SPS assets and its line of specialty polymers.

MARKET OVERVIEW

Styrene is a globally-traded commodity and a key feedstock in the production of styrenic polymers, such as 5P5 and EPS.

Polystyrene is used to make products such as electronics packaging, small appliances, construction components and food

packaging. While SP$ and EPS resin production accounts for approximately 60% of global styrene demand, styrene Is also
used in other styrenic polymers such as ABS, synthetic rubber and unsaturated polyesters.

Margins in the styrene and 5P5 industries are primarily driven by supply/demand dynamics. Styrene is the supply
bottleneck in the styrenics chain and therefore the key indicator of supply/demand tightness for both styrene and
SPS. Operating rates in excess of 92% for styrene generally lead to margin expansion.
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW
INEOS NOVA is the largest combined styrene/SPS producer in North America and SPS/EPS producer in Europe.

Figure B. INEOS NOVA production profile

Capacity (billlons of pounds) Capacity Rank
North North
America _Europe Glcbal Americs __Europe Gcbal
Styrene 3.7 - 37 1 — S
5PS 1.6 1.2 2.8 3 2 2
EPS — 0.9 09 - 1 4

Styrene. INEOS NOVA can produce approximately 3.7 billion pounds of styrene from its three production sites in
Bayport and Texas City, Texas, and Sarnia, Ontario. The majority of styrene production is consumed intemally to
manufacture styrenic polymers, with the balance sold to third parties.

The primary raw materials for the production of styrene are benzene and ethylene. INEQS NOVA has entered into
long-term supply agreements with NOVA Chemicals and INEOS to supply virtually all of its ethylene and a portion of
its benzene feedstock requirements. The balance of feedstocks is obtained through purchases in the open market.

While INEOS NOVA has roughly the same capacity 1o consume styrene as it does to produce it, the joint venture has
a long styrene position in North America and a short position in Europe. To achieve a more balanced global styrene
position, the joint venture engages in transatlantic swap arrangements with other producers and merchant sales.

SPS/EPS. INEOS NOVA has the capacity to produce approximately 1.6 billion pounds per year of SPS from its three
production sites in North America and 2.1 billion pounds per year of SPS and EPS from its five sites in Europe. Styrene
feedstock is supplied from INEQS NOVA's production facilities, swap agreements and third-party merchant contracts.

\\ Profitability Improvement Potential

Profitability in the global styrenics industry has been poor in the last several years, primarily due to the over supply of
styrene and relatively high cost of benzene feedstock. However, the Company believes that the efficiency enhancing
actions taken by INEQS NOVA and others in the industry, coupled with steady demand growth will raise operating rates
and restore industry profitability.

RAPID COST REDUCTION

Since its inception in October 2005, the INEQS NOVA European joint venture has aggressively reduced costs through
asset rationalizations, reductions in corporate overhead expenses and operating synergies, In 2007, the joint venture
achieved annual cost-savings of $82 million in Eurape, double the original target. The newly expanded joint venture is
expected to build upon the success of the European joint venture and is initially targeting $80 million per year of
additional cost reductions and EBITDA improvement. The benefit of these cost reductions is shared equally between
NOVA Chemicals and INEOS.

Within the first 60 days of expanded operation in North America, INEOS NOVA announced its plan to close the Montreal,
Quebec, and Belpre, Ohio, SPS facilities and shift production to its mare efficient sites. The combined annual capacity of
these facilities is 340 million pounds which represents 5% of North American capacity. Bath of these sites have stopped
production as of Jan. 17, 2008, INEQS NOVA expects that thesa actions will yield $14 million per year in synergies.

in November 2007, INEQOS NOVA acquired the exclusive production rights to Sterling Chemicals’ styrene facility in Texas
City, Texas. The 560 million cost of the transaction was fully funded by INEOS NOVA from cash on-hand. Sterling's styrene
facility has 1.7 billion pounds of annua! production capacity, which represents approximately 11% of North American
capachty and 3% of global capacity.
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INEOS NOVA nominated zero production from the Sterling asset for December 2007 which prompted Sterling Chemicals
to announce its intention to exit the styrenics business and exercise its right to permanently shut down and decammission
the Texas City styrene facility. NOVA Chemicals expects the impact from the Sterling deal will contribute to INEQS
NOVA's stated $80 million annual synergy target.

IMPROVING STYRENICS MARKET FUNDAMENTALS

In addition to benefiting from its own cost reduction and consolidation activities, NOVA Chemicals believes that INEQS
NOVA is well positioned to benefit from an improvement in industry fundamentals. The activity of other global styrenics
producers, further industry consolidation and relatively few global capacity additions between 2008 and 2011 could improve
the health of the traditionally oversupplied industry by raising operating rates, reducing costs and restoring margins.

in addition, moderating relative costs of benzene, the key feedstock required in the SPS value chain, could allow
producers to recapture demand that had been fost to competing polymers and materials, such as polypropylene (PF) for
some applications.

Figure 9 shows that the price of benzene relative to the price of WTI crude oil. Since the feedstocks of competing
polymers such as PP tend to be derived from crude oil, this ratio generally provides a good indication of the feedstock
cost pressures facing each polymer. At the end of 2007, benzene prices relative to crude oil were below the historical
range and significantly below the record highs in 2004

As a result, SPS pricing has become more competitive relative to PF, and as of the end of 2007, was at its lowest level in
the last ten years, as shown in Figure 10. Continued competitive pricing of 5PS could lead to demand substitution and
improved SPS demand growth. Since the PP market is four times the size of the SPS market, even a small shift in
applications from PP could have a significant positive impact to SPS demand growth,

Figure 9. Figure 10,
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\, Significant Leverage to Market Improvements

In addition to INEOS NOVA, several global producers

announced plans in 2007 for consolidation and efficiency
generating asset rationalization. For example, Dow Figure 11.
Chemical Company and Chevron Phillips Chemical

Company announced a styrenics joint venture for North (NOVA Chemicals’ Leverage to

~

and South America, The BASF Chemical Company Styrenics Improvements '
announced its intention to pursue strategic options for its
styrenics business. Total Chemicals announced plans to ERITDA Improvement, §M Eaming par share improvemant

consclidate its styrene capacity in Europe and Sterling
Chemicals announced its exit from the styrene business.

NOVA Chemicals expects that the actions of INEOS

NOVA and other global styrenics players will have a 150 $2.00
meaningful impact on operating rates and industry $1.50
profitability. Due to INEOS NOVA's size and scale in 100 $1.00
the global styrenics market, it has significant leverage to

improvements in indust fitabili h 50 $0.50

ry profitability. For each one cent .
improvement in industry margins, NOVA Chemicals’ share o & $0.00
1 4 4 a 8 10 18

of the improvement is $19 million per year EBITDA which
translates to $0.23 per share as shown in Figure 11. This Polystyrane Chain Margin improvemant (¢/1b)

assumnes production capacity is sold-out and no taxes are \ /
incurred due to the use of tax loss cany forwards.

250 $3.00

200 $2.50

INEOS NOVA Joint Venture Financial Highlights"

{millions of U.5. dollary, except where noted) - 2007 2006 £008
Revenue $2,092 $2,186 $1.937
Adjusted EBITDA® s 17 $ (43) $ (102)
Operating loss® $ @ $ (149) $ (211)
Sales Volumes (millions of pounds) 2.929 3,3 3,444

{1) Results represent NOVA Chemicals’ 50% share of INEOS NOVA. Tho 2007 annual INEOS NCVA joint ventures results are comprised of: (5] resuits from the first nine months of
NOVA Chemicals’ former STYRENIX businets unit, (b) NAS snd ZYLAR resins {formerly inchuded in Performance Styrenics) and {c NOVA Chemicals’ 50% share of INEOS NOWATs
results for the last three montha of 2007,

(2) See Supplemental Messures on pege 34,

INEOS NOVA Joint Venture Operating Highlights
2007

Annusl
{U.S. dollars per pound, except where noted) Q1 Qe Q3 Q4 2007 20048 2005
Benchmark principal product prices:"
Styrenc® $0.65 $0.77 $0.68 $0.69 $0.68 $0.65 $0.63
SPS™
North America $0.94 5099 5098 $1.00 $0.98 $0.89 $0.98
Europe $0.76¢ $0.83 S0.82 $0.83 $0.81 $0.68 $0.65
Benchmark raw material prices:"
Benzene (dollars per gallon}® $353 $3.95 3355 S$3.44 $3.62 $3.26 $2.90

(1) Average benchmark prices do nat necessarily reflect actual prices reslized by NOVA Chemicals or sny other patrochemical compsny.
{2) Source: CMAI Contract Market.
{3) Source for benchmark prices: CMAJ,
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\Discussion of Financial Results

2007 VERSUS 2006

Revenue was $2,092 in 2007, down from $2,186 in 2006, The year-over-year decrease was due to higher selling prices for
styrene and SPS, which were more than offset by the impact of lower sales volumes. North American average styrene and
SPS prices increased by 5% to 10%; respectively, due primarily 1o higher benzene feedstock costs. In addition, European
SPS prices increased by 19% in 2007, in part due to higher feedstock costs.

Total sales volumes were 13% lower in 2007 than in 2006, due in part to a lack of styrens export opportunities in the
fourth quarter of 2007. The combination of higher styrene prices in North America in the fourth quarter, due to sharply
higher ethylene feedstock costs, and lower styrene prices in Asia resulted in few profitable export opportunities. In
contrast, North American styrene producers exported significant valumes to Asia in the fourth quarter of 2006 due

to attractive economics. '

Feedstock and Operating Costs ware $2,031 million, down from $2,183 million in 2006. The year-over-year decrease in
feedstock costs was due to lower feedstock purchases from lower sales volume.

Adjusted EBITDA was $17 million in 2007, compared to a loss of $43 million in 2006. The year-over-year improvement

was primarily due to restructuring activities taken in North America and Europe. Since the middle of 2006 the following
cost-reduction actions were taken: closure of the Chesapeake, Virginia, Carrington, UK, and Berre, France, polystyrene

sites, expiration of a long styrene supply contract, and continued cost reductions in Europe.

INEOS NOVA is initially targeting $80 million per year of additional cost reductions and EBITDA improvements. The joint
venture has announced a series of actions that will contribute to this synergy target. The impact of these synergies will be
realized starting in 2008.

2006 VERSUS 2005

Revenus was $2,184 in 2006, up from $1,937 in 2005. The year-over-year improvement was due primarily to higher selling
prices which more than offset the impact of lower sales volumes. North American styrene and PS prices were each higher
by 3% and European SPS and EPS selling prices were 5% and 17% higher, respectively. Producers were able to increase
selling prices due to higher benzene and ethylene feedstock costs. In addition, tighter Eurogean EPS market conditions
lead to price increases which expanded margins.

Feedstock and Operating Costs were $2,183 in 2006, up from $1,994 million in 2005. The year-over-year increase was
due primarily to increased feedstock costs. Industry benzene prices were 12% higher in 2006, while ethylene prices were
9% higher.

Adjusted EBITDA was a loss of $43 million in 2006, an improvement from the loss of $102 million in 2005. The
improvement was due to restructuring activities taken in North America and Europe. In the second half of 2006, the
Chesapeake, Virginia, Carrington, UK, and Berre, France, polystyrene sites were closed. Fixed costs were alse removed
as a result of other restructuring activities. In addition, stronger market conditions in Europe lead to increased margins,
particularly for EPS.
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\,_Corporate Adjusted EBITDA and Other Items

A listing of before-tax corporate and other items for the periods presented is as follows:

{milions of U.S. dollars) 2007 2006 2005
Corporate oparating costs $ (100) $ (o8} | $0139)
| Stock-based compensation and profit sharing (52) ) 38
i Forward transactions on stock-based compensation 146 20) {15)
Mark-to-market feedstock derivatives 21 {20 12
Restructuring charges (86} {985) (148)
Insurance credit (charge) 4 19 {22)
Tax settlement —_ —_ 8
$(197} $(1,146) $(286)
Add back:
Corporate depreciation 9 8 8
Restructuring charges 86 985 168
Adjusted EBITDA ${102) $ {153) $(110)

(1) See Supplemantal Measures on page 54.

Corporate Operating Costs

Beginning with the first quarter of 2007, NOVA Chemicals ceased allocating interest, income taxes and corporate
operating costs to the business segments. Prior period results have been revised to reflect this change. Corporate
operating costs include corporate depreciation,

2007 VERSUS 20046
Corporate operating costs were $100 million in 2007 compared to $108 million in 2006, 2 decrease of $8 million primarily
due to one-time lower employee retirement accruals.

2006 VERSUS 2005
Corporate operating costs were $108 million in 2006 compared to $13% million in 2005, a decrease of $31 million due to
a significant decrease in Selling, general and administrative expanse in conjunction with restructuring activities in 2006.

Stock-Based Compensation, Forward Transactions and Profit Sharing

NOVA Chemicals has two cash-settled, stock-based incentive compensation plans that are marked to market with
changes in the value of its common stock price. In November 2005, NOVA Chemicals entered into forward transactions in
order to hedge the portion of its stock-based compensation, which is subject to quarterly mark-to-market accounting
adjustments. The forward transactions are cash-settled at the end of a three-year term (November 2008), or at any time
priar to that at the option of NOVA Chemicals, based on the difference between NOVA Chemicals’ common stock price
and the execution price plus accrued interest.

The transactions effectively give NOVA Chemicals the same economic effect as if it had borrowed money, purchased
NOVA Chemicals' common shares and held them as assets. The average execution price was $37.56 on approximately 3.4
million shares, which approximates the number of outstanding shares refated to the stock-based compensation units as of
November 2005. As NOVA Chemicals' stock price changes, the mark-to-market impact related to the stock-based
compensation liability is largely neutralized by the mark-to-market impact related to the forward contracts.

Stock based compensation also includes the amount expensed related to the fair value of stock options earned by
employees. Additionally, NOVA Chemicals has a profit sharing program that is available to most employees and is based

on the achievement of shareholder return on equity targets. ‘

Stock based compensation and profit sharing expenses net of forward transactions were $3& million in 2007, $22 million
higher than 2006. The year-over-year increase was due to increased profit sharing of $12 million, due to record
profitability and $10 million due to the impact of adopting EIC 162, Stock Based Compensation for Employees Eligible to
Retire Before Vesting Date, which accelerated recognition of compensation costs for stock options granted to employees
eligible for retirement. Under former standards this charge would have been expensed evenly over a three-year period.
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Mark-to-Market Feedstock Derivatives

NOVA Chemicals maintains a derivative program to manage risk associated with feedstock purchases. The gain or loss
resuhing from changes in the market value of these derivatives is recorded through earnings each period. Beginning in
the first quarter of 2006, NOVA Chemicals began classifying mark-to-market adjustments on feedstock derivative
positions as corporate items, as they are non-cash items and are not relevant in measuring business performance.
Previously, these amounts were allocated to the business units. Prior periods have been restated. Once positions are
realized, any income effects are recorded in business results.

The mark-to-market impact to earnings was $21 million in 2007 versus a $20 million loss in 2006. The $41 million
improvement was a result of increases in forward propane and butane prices relative to crude cil and the number of
feedstock positions put in place.

The mark-to-market impact to eamings was a $20 million loss in 2006 versus a $12 million gain in 2005. The $32 million
decline was a result of the unfavorable difference between the forecasted and actual relationship of liquefied petroleum
gas (LPG) markers to WTI crude oil prices for the period hedged.

Restructuring Charges

2007

In 2007, NOVA Chemicals recorded total restructuring charges of $86 million ($55 million after-tax) related to actions
taken by INEQS NOVA, as well as NOVA Chemicals to reduce costs. During the fourth quarter of 2007, INEOS NOVA
announced the planned closure of the Befpre, OH, and Montreal, Quebec, sites, resulting in restructuring charges of $38
million (NOVA Chemicals share) comprised of before-tax non-cash asset write-downs of $32 million and severance costs of
$6 million.

During the fourth quarter of 2007, INEOS NOVA, acquired the exclusive production rights from Sterling Chemical's Texas
City, Texas, styrene plant and nominated zero production volume from that facility. Sterling Chemicals subsequently
announced plans to permanently shut down the facility. As a result, NOVA Chemicals recorded a charge of $29 million,
the Company's 50% share of the charge.

During 2007, NOVA Chemicals recorded a $7 million before-tax restructuring charge related to the elimination of
approximately 90 positions in the United States and Europe. NOVA Chemicals also recarded $6 million before-tax charges
for other restructuring actions to reduce costs.

INEOS NOVA had severance costs related to North American employees resulting in a $3 million before-1ax charge for
NOVA Chemicals’ share of those costs.

NOVA Chemicals also accrued restructuring charges of $3 million before-tax refated to additional actions taken in Europe
by the INEQS NOVA joint venture,

2006

in 2006, NOVA Chemicals recorded total restructuring charges of $985 million ($861 million after-tax) related to the
following: the write-down of the STYRENIX assets, the write-down of the Carrington, UK, SPS facility, severance costs for
the North American restructuring, severance costs for the Chesapeake, Virginia, SPS plant closure and NOVA Innovene
restructuring costs.

NOVA Chemicals recorded a non-cash write-down of $860 million in 2004 ($772 million after-tax) related to STYRENIX
assets (see discussion on page 55 related to Property, Plant and Equipment).

The Company accrued $56 million (346 million after-tax) of restructuring costs related primarily to non-cash asset write-
downs for the Carrington, UK, SPS facility dlosure following the announcement to permanently close that site, The charge
included $8 million related to total expected severance and other departure costs, all of which have been paid to date.
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The Company also accrued $53 million ($33 million after-tax) of restructuring costs related to severance, pension and
other employee-related costs associated with the North American restructuring announced on June 26, 2006. To date,
$33 million has been paid related to severance costs for employees.

NOVA Chemicals accrued $15 million (510 million after-tax) related to severance costs for the Chesapeake, Virginia,
polystyrene plant closure. As of Dec. 31, 2007, $% million has been paid to employees.

Lastly, $1 million {less than $1 million after-tax) of restructuring costs related to actions taken by NOVA Innovene were accrued.

2005

In 2005, NOVA Chemicals recorded total restructuring charges of $168 million ($125 million after-tax) related to the
following: write-down of the Berre, France, and the Carrington, UK, EPS facilities and associated severance costs; write-
down of the Chesapeake, Virginia, polystyrene plant; and the write-off of certain other non-productive assets.

On Oct. 1, 2005, NOVA Chemicals and Innovene combined their European polystyrene businesses into a 50:50 joint
venture known as NOVA Innovene. Shortly thereafter, NOVA Innovene announced it would cease EPS production at
Berre, France, and permanently shut down the previously idled EPS plant at its Carrington, UK, facility. Accordingly, NOVA
Chernicals took a write-down on the value of its 50% interest in the value of the plants in the amount of $76 million (360
million after-tax). NOVA Chemicals also reduced the recorded benefit of certain tax loss carry forwards by $9 million, as
the utilization likelihood was reduced due to the formation of the joint venture and closure of the plants. NOVA Chernicals
incurred additional restructuring charges of $7 million ($4 million after-tax) for severance costs refated to these plant
closures all of which have been paid to date.

NOVA Chemicals recorded a non-cash 574 million {$46 million after-tax) write-down related to the permanent closure of
the Chesapeake, Virginia, plant. Certain other non-productive assets were written off, amounting to $9 miflion (36 million
after-tax).

Insurance Charge

NOVA Chemicals is one of many participants in OIL and sEnergy — two mutual insurance companies formed to insure
against catastrophic risks. The Company continues to participate in OIL, an insurance pool for property and liability;
however, sEnergy, an insurance pool for business interruption, is in the process of winding-up its operations. NOVA
Chemicals believes the Company’s reserves are adequate to cover any outstanding claims.

2007
NOVA Chemicals recorded a $4 million (83 million after-tax} credit due to the reduction of estimated future claims

payments.

2006 and 2005
NOVA Chemicals recorded a $19 million {$13 million after-tax) charge in 2006 and a $22 million ($15 million after-tax)
charge in 2005 related to its share of potential incremental future payments required to meet losses in OIL and sEnergy.

Tax Settlement

2005

An amount of $B million (§5 million after-tax) was recorded in 2005 related to the 2004 tax settlement that resulted from a
tax dispute regarding the deductibility of foreign taxes in certain returns filed with the U.S. Internal Revenue Service prior
to 1982,

Other Gains

2007

In 2007, NOVA Chemicals recognized other gains of $20 million ($14 million after-tax) refated to the sale of the previously
shut-down Chesapeake, Virginia, facility and other incidental land. NOVA Chemicals received cash proceeds of $6 million

for these transactions and entered into a $14 million note receivable, bearing interest of B.75% per annum and dus in full
in 2012, in connection with the sale of the Chesapeake, Virginia, facility.
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\_Liquidity and Capital Resources

NOVA Chemicals’ principal sources of liquidity are cash flows from operations, cash on-hand, accounts receivable
securitization programs and borrowings under its revolving credit facilities. NOVA Chemicals’ principal uses of cash
are operating expenditures, capital expenditures and debt service,

CASH FLOW
The following is a summary of the cash inflows and outflows, which contributed to the changes in NOVA Chemicals’ cash
and debt:

{millions of U.S. dollars} 2007 2006 20051
Inflows
Funds from operations® ‘ $ 557 $3N1 $ 153
Changes in non-cash working capital (228) 39 49
Cash provided by operating activities 329 350 222
Proceeds from sale of assets, investments and other capital transactions é 3 11
Commen shares issued 8 3 ) 13
Affiliate long-term notes — 3 -—
Tax-related setdement — — ' 116
Total inflows 343 359 362
Outflows
Property, plant and equipment additions {156) {198) 419
Turnaround costs, long-term investments and other assets (42) (48) ' {(176)
Common share dividends {31) (29 (27
Stock options retired for cash Y] (2 (1
Common shares repurchased - - {125)
Cash paid for business acquisitions {30) — ‘ —
Fareign exchange on long-term debt and other (30) (1) (8)
Total outflows (295) (278y ' (746}
Net debt reduction (addition)® $ 48 $ 81 $(404)

{1} Canain comparative ligures have been restated to conform with adeption of new accounting standards and 1o conform with the current periods’ presentation {see pagu 81}
(2] See Supplemantal Measures on page S4,
{3} Includes forelgn exchange changes.

INFLOWS OF CASH

Funds from operations increased to $557 million in 2007 from $311 million in 2006 primarily due to an improvement in
business unit results due to record PE sales volume and margin improvements. Funds from operations increased to $311
million in 2006 from $153 million in 2005 due to improving business conditions despite the large non-cash asset write-
downs that occurred in 2005.

Operating working capital increased by $228 million in 2007 due to rapidly rising feedstock costs which increased the
value of inventory, as well as product price increases which increased receivables. Operating working capital decreased by
$39 million in 2006 primarily due to a decrease in receivables and inventory. Operating working capital decreased by $69
million in 2005 primarily due to lower-priced feedstock inventories.

tn 2007, NOVA Chemicals sold the previously closed Chesapeake, Virginia, site and other incidental land for $20 million,
of which $6 million was received in cash and $14 million in the form of a note receivable due in 2012 and bearing interest
of B.75%.

Cash collections of $116 million in 2005 were received from the settlement of a tax dispute related to the deductibility of
foreign taxes in certain retums filed in the U.S. Internal Revenue Service prior to 1982.
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in total, NOVA Chemicals generated $329 million in cash from operations in 2007 versus $350 million in 2006 and $222
million in 2005 (excluding the tax-related settlement). Cash generation in 2007 and 2006 was primarily due to improved
business unit eamings.

OUTFLOWS OF CASH

NOVA Chemicals' capital expenditures were $156 million in 2007, compared to $198 million in 2006 and $419 million in
2005. The reduction in capital expenditures reflects the significant investments made in prior years to modemize and
expand the Company's assets. In 2005, capital expenditures reflect the spending on the Corunna ethylene flexi-cracker
expansion and modernization project, which increased the site’s production capacity and energy efficiency. During 2007,
NOVA Chemicals spent $42 million for turnaround costs, long-term investments and other assets compared to $48 million
and $176 million in 2006 and 2005, respectively. The Company incurred significant turnaround costs in 2005 to ensure its
plants were at peak operating performance. Capital expenditures in 2008 are expected to be approximately $220 million.

No share repurchase programs were initiated in 2007 or 2006. In July 2005, a share repurchase program for up to
approximately 7.2 million shares was announced. The repurchase program was terminated on July 26, 2006. The
Company did not repurchase any shares under this program. In July 2004, a share repurchase program for up to
approximately 7.5 million shares was initiated. NOVA Chemicals purchased the entire number of shares available under
that program for an aggregate cost of $313 million of which $125 million was paid in 2005. The Company also paid stock
option exercise values in cash of $4 million in 2007, $2 million in 2006 and $11 million in 2005 in lieu of issuing stock.

In 2007, INEOS NOVA acquired the exclusive rights to production from the Sterling Chemicals Texas City, Texas, styrene
plant for $60 million, of which NOVA Chemicals’ 50% share was $30 million. INEOS NOVA nominated zero production
from Sterling in December 2007, which prompted Sterling to permanently shut down the Texas City plant.

In 2007, NOVA Chemicals was able to reduce debt despite the significant investment in working capital from rapidly
escalating feedstock and product prices. In May 2006, the Company repaid $300 million of medium-term notes upon
maturity, This debt repayment was funded by an issuance in October 2005 of $400 million of senior floating rate notes
due 2013. In September 2005, the Company repaid $100 million of 7% notes upon maturity. This debt repayment was
funded by cash on hand.

\_ Commitments

NOVA Chemicals has varicus commercial commitments, including operating leases for office space and railcars and
unconditional purchase obligations related to minimum amounts of feedstock and other raw material purchases pursuant
to agreements entered into to secure short- and long-term supply. NOVA Chemicals has raw materials agreements that
are typically market-based, Obligations have been calculated using current pricing for purposes of the chart below.

Contrastual Cash Obligations

__Payments dus by period
as of Dec. 31, 2007 (millions of U.5. dollars) Total 2008 2009 to £010 2011 to 201B Afer 2018
Long-term debt? $ 1,803 $ 257 $ 570 $ 456 $ 520
Operating leases™ 490 5 93 76 270
Unconditional purchase obligations 8,990 2,811 2,068 945 3,186
Total contractual cash obligations $11,283 $3.119 $2,731 $1,477 $3,956

{1) Includes current portion and bank loars.
{2) tncludes property, reilcar and other equipment leasing commitments,
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LIQUIDITY

In 2007, the Company reduced net debt by $48 million, In 2004, the Company repaid $300 million of medium-term notes
upon maturity. This debt repayment was funded by an issuance, in October 2005, of $400 million of senior floating rate
notes due 2013, In September 2005, the Company repaid $100 million of 7% notes upon maturity. The debt repayment
was funded by cash on hand.

NOVA Chemicals is able to meet short-term liquidity needs through the generation of funds from operations, cash on-
hand, accounts receivable securitization programs and borrowing capacity under revolving credit facilities. At Dec. 31,
2007, the Company had total liquidity of $552 million, comprised of $118 million cash on-hand and $434 million {net of
letters of credit) of available borrowing capacity under its revolving credit facilities.

CREDIT FACILITIES

During 2007, NOVA Chemicals added a new $65 million revolving credit facility expiring on Mar. 20, 2010. This facility is
in 2ddition to the two existing $100 million revolving credit facilities expiring Mar, 31, 2008 and Mar. 20, 2011, and the
$325 million facility that expires June 30, 2010. As of Dec. 31, 2007, NOVA Chemicals had utilized $156 million of these
facilities, of which $50 million was in the form of letters of credjt.

The $100 million facility expiring on Mar. 31, 2008 and the $325 million facility are governed by financial covenants. Using
the covenant methodology in the relevant revolving credit facilities, the debt-to-capitalization ratio was 48% at Dec. 31,
2007. NOVA Chemicals continues to comply with all financial covenants under the applicable facilities. The $100 million
fadility expiring on Mar. 20, 2011 and the $45 million facility have no financial covenants associated with them.

Financinl Convenants

Covenant Requirsment Deo. 31, BODT Aptual
Interest Coverage™ 2.0x when net debt to total capitalization ratio > 40% 4.7
Dabt to Total Capitalization® 60% 48%
Consolidated Shareholders’ Equity™ $1.25 billion plus 50% of positive eamings $2.0 billion

{1} Aa defined in NOVA Chemicaly’ tevolving credit facility, interest coverage s the ratio of cash fiow to interest axperaa for the preceding twelve-manth peried.

(&) As dafined in HOVA Chemicahs” revolving aedit fadlity, debt includes items not in sccordence with Conadian GAAP such as obligations under cpenting leases (i in excuss of »
spacified percantage of comolicated sssets) and amounts outstanding under the Company’s sccounts receivable securitization programs, The smended definition sbo provid
for debt 10 be offset by cash, other than restricted cash and the smeur of NOVA Chemicals” wholly-cwned subsidiary’s (NOVA Chemicals inc.} praferred thares to be txduded
in wiriving ot debt for purposes of this covenant, As o resutt of NOVA Chamicaly’ wmardment o its financial crentnts giriming these oredit facilities, the debt-to-capitalization
ratio financial covensnt was raised from 55% to 60%. This amendments i in effect for the period Dec. 31, 2004 to Mo, 30, 2008,

13) Comalidated shareholders’ aquity is defined in accordance with Canadian GAAP pha the smount of NOVA Chemicals” wholly-owned subsidiary’s (MOVA Chemicals Inc.)
prefarrad shares and exctudes any write-down up to $750 million of NOVA Chemicals’ former STYRENIX business that occurmed during the fiscal pear endad Dec. 31, 2005,

CURRENT DEBT MATURITIES OR REDEMPTIONS

NOVA Chemicals has $254 million of debt that is maturing or may be redeemed in the coming year from principally two
financings: (i) $126 million relates to the Series A preferred shares discussed below under the heading Total Return Swap
and (ii) $125 million relates to notes due August 2028, which are redeemable at the option of the holders on Aug, 15,
2008 and are therefore classified as current maturities. NOVA Chemicals plans to finance the maturities or redemptions
through cash flows from operations.

NOVA CHEMICALS' OFF-BALANCE SHEET ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE SECURITIZATION PROGRAMS

NOVA Chemicals’ off-balance sheet financing activities are limited to participation in accounts receivable securitization
programs. NOVA Chemicals has engaged in the current programs since 1999 to obtain lower financing rates than those
available from other sources. The capacity of trade accounts receivable sold to a third party on a revolving basis is a
maximum of $350 million. At Dec. 31, 2007, $264 miillion in receivables were sold under the programs. Of the total amount,
$128 million was sold via a special purpose entity (SPE) that is 100% owned by NOVA Chemicals. The SPE isolates the
sold receivables and the related cash collections for the exclusive benefit of the purchasers. The Company has no right

to any cash collected from these receivables; therefore, neither the receivables nor any obligation to the purchasers is
reflected in NOVA Chemicals Consolidated Financial Statements. No other business is conducted through SPEs.

As a result of the INEOS NOVA joint venture, the Company was required to pay down $52 million at Oct. 1, 2007 related
to receivables generated by the business units and contributed by NOVA Chemicals to the INEOS NOVA joint venture.
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INEQS NOVA OFF-BALANCE SHEET ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE SECURITIZATION PROGRAM ;

in November 2006, the INEOS NOVA joint venture (formerly NOVA Innovene European joint venture) entered into a five-
year, €120 million accounts receivable securitization program. In 2007, NOVA Chemicals changed its accounting for its
interest in the European accounts receivable securitization program to reflect that the accounts receivable securitization
transactions are recorded as sales of receivables and not a financing arrangement. To properly reflect this change, NOVA
Chemicals restated the 2006 Balance Sheet by decreasing Cash and cash equivalents by $22 million and Accounts
receivable by $11 million and decreasing Long-terrn debt by $33 million. NOVA Chemicals’ 50% share of the outstanding
balance was €37 million and €9 million at Dec. 31, 2007 and Dec. 31, 2006, respectively. The program expires in
November 2011, '

TOTAL RETURN SWAP

In connection with the acquisition of styrenics assets from Huntsman Corporation in 1998, the Company's subsidiary,
NOVA Chemicals Inc., issued retractable preferred shares with a liquidation preference of $198 million as partial
consideration. Holders of the retractable preferred shares originally had the right to exchange the shares (a retraction) for
NOVA Chemicals’ common shares (plus NOVA Chemicals’ preferred shares if the market value of such common shares
was less than $198 million) on or after Apr. 1, 2001. In September 2005, the terms of the retractable preferred shares
were amended to eliminate this right. In connection with this amendment, the retractable preferred shares were re-
designated as Series A preferred shares. Additionally, the dividend rate on the Series A preferred shares was reduced
from 2% to 0.5% in December 2005.

NOVA Chemicals has the right to repurchase the Series A preferred shares at any time. However, any such repurchase
may obligate NOVA Chemicals to pay an early termination fee under the terms of the total retum swap described below.

NOVA Chemicals also entered inta a total return swap with respect to the Series A preferred shares. On the initial closing
date of the total return swap in 2001, the counterparty through its hedge providers purchased the Series A preferred

. shares from Huntsman Corporation for $191 million plus accrued unpaid dividends. NOVA Chemicals subsequently
posted $65 million of cash collateral with the counterparty that is held by the counterparty as a prepayment against
settlement, Accordingly, the equity notional amount of the Series A preferred shares is now set at $126 million and on
settlement of the total return swap at the end of the term, NOVA Chemicals will owe the counterparty $126 million.

Under the terms of the total return swap: (i) the counterparty pays NOVA Chemicals the total return on the Series A
preferred shares (periodic dividends plus positive changes in the equity value of the Series A preferred shares upon
termination of the swap); and (i) NOVA Chemicals pays the counterparty a spread to London Inter-Bank Offered Rate
{LIBORY), as well as any negative changes in the equity value of the Series A preferred shares upon termination of the
swap. Because of its short term nature and immaterial balance sheet effect, the derivative feature of the total return swap
is reported as part of the Series A preferred shares and is not accounted for separately. All periodic dividends, changes in
equity value of the Series A preferred shares and interest payments are charged to earnings as incurred.

If the equity value of the Series A preferred shares decreases by a certain amount, NOVA Chemicals is required to post
maintenance collateral. Once the margin-posting requirement is triggered, if the equity value of the Series A preferred
shares increases by 5% or more, any excess margin may be returned to NOVA Chemicals. Changes in equity value of the
Series A preferred shares during the term of the swap will be determined based on changes in the average price of the
outstanding 6.5% medium-term notes due 2012, issued by NOVA Chemicals.

if NOVA Chemicals defaults on other debt of at least $25 million or the closing price of its common shares is $12.00 or
less and upon certain other events, the counterparty would have the right to sell the Series A preferred shares to a third
party and terminate the swap. NOVA Chemicals would then owe the counterparty the difference between the actual sale
price received by the counterparty and $12¢6 million. Subsequent to such termination of the swap, NOVA Chemicals may,
at its option, repurchase the preferred shares for $198 million plus accrued and unpaid dividends.

The total return swap was scheduled to terminate on Oct. 31, 2007. However, in October 2007, NOVA Chemicals and the
counterparty agreed to extend the term until Oct. 31, 2008. Because the term expires within the next 12 months, these
Series A preferred shares have been reclassified under Long-term debt due within one year on the Consolidated Balance
Sheets presented on page 72 of this Annual Report.
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\_Capitalization

NOVA Chemicals’ net debt-to-total capitalization ratio was 60.3% at Dec. 31, 2007, 75.9% at Dec. 31, 2006, and 59.8%
at Dec. 31, 2005. The ratio declined in 2007 compared to 2004 as cash on-hand increased as well as shareholders’ equity
improved with positive earnings.

The increase in the ratio from 2005 to 2006 was mainly a result of a decline in shareholders’ equity. In December 2006,
NOVA Chemicals wrote down the STYRENIX assets by $860 million ($772 million after-tax), which negatively impacted
shareholders' equity.

Financial Ratios

Dec. 31 [millions of U.S. dollars, except as noted) 2007 2006 2008
Long-term dabt" $1,797 $1.780 $1,974
Less: cash and cash equivalents, (118) (53) {164)
restricted cash and other assets (4) {7} —
Total debt, net of cash, cash equivalents, restricted cash and other assets 1,675 1,720 1,808
Shareholders’ equity 1,104 546 1,215
Total capitalization® $2,774 $2,266 $3,023
Net debt to total capitalization®™ 60.3% 75.9% 59.8%
{4)Gn Jan. 1, 2005, NOWA Chemicals adopted new Canadian accounting standardy, which require the Series A prefermed thares of NOVA Chemicshr’ subsidiary, NOVA Chemicabs inc.,

to be classified as debt. Maturity dates for NOVA Chemicaly’ curment and long-term dabt range from October 2008 to Augus! 2028. Long-term debt inchses ourrent portion of
loog-term debt, the stcured revolver and benk loerm.

(2) Total capitalization caflects shareholkdars’ equity and total dabe, nat of cath, cash equivalents, restricted cash and othet axtats,

(3) Computad after taking o account the meclasaification of the Serles A prafarmed shares to long-term dabt dua within one year (see Supplemental Messuros below).

Senior Debt Ratings®™

Senlor Unsscured Dobt

Daminion Bond Rating Service Limited BB (negative)
Fitch Ratings Ltd. 8B- (stable}
Moody's Investor Service Ba3 (negative)
Standard & Poor's 8+ (stable)

{1) Credit ratings are not recommendations to purchase, hokd or sell securities and do not comment on markey price o suitability for & particular iwvestor. There 18 no sssurance
that any rating will remain in affect for any given pariad of time or that any rating will not be revised or withdrawn enticely by 8 rating sgency in the future,

SUPPLEMENTAL MEASURES

In addition to providing measures in accordance with Canadian GAAF, NOVA Chemicals presents certain supplemental
measures as follows. The following supplemental measures do not have any standardized meaning preseribed by
Canadian GAAP and are therefore unlikely te be comparable to similar measures presented by other companies.

Adjusted EBITDA equeals net income (loss) before interest expense, income taxes, depreciation and amortization, other
gains and losses, and restructuring charges. This measure is provided to assist investors in determining NOVA Chemicals
ability to generate cash.

Funds from operations assists investors in determining NOVA Chemicals’ cash flow, before ctxanges in working capital
and other items. Refer to page 50 for reconciliation,

Net debt equals long-term debt, net of cash, cash equivalents, restricted cash and other assets.

Net debt to total capitalization equals net debt, as defined above, divided by the sum of net debt and shareholders’
equity. This measure can be used to analyze the leverage of the Company.

Operating income (loss) equals net income (loss) before income taxes, interest expense and other gains and losses. This
measure is provided to assist investors in analyzing NOVA Chemicals’ income from operations.
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Common shareholders’ equity at year-end is equal to common shareholders’ equity divided by outstanding
common shares.

Return {loss) on average common equity is equal to net income (loss) divided by average common equity.

Reconciliation of Net Income to Adjusted EBITDA

{millions of U.5. dollars) 2007 2000 2005
Net income (loss) $347 $(703) $(101)
Income tax expense (recovery) 51 (144) n
Other gains {20 ) (8)
Restructuring charges 86 985 168
Irtarest expense {net) 175 168 113
Depreciation and amortization 236 299 290
Adjusted EBITDA $885 $ 604 $ 461

\ Dividends and Distributions

COMMON SHARE DIVIDENDS

Historically, NOVA Chemicals has paid quarterly dividends on its common shares at the rate of $0.10 Canadian per share,
representing an aggregate of $0.40 Canadian per share annually. In 2007, a total of $31 million in dividends was paid on
the Company’s common shares. There are currently no material contractual restrictions on NOVA Chemicals’ ability to
declare and pay dividends on its common shares. The declaration and payment of dividends is at the discretion of NOVA
Chemicals’ Board of Directors, which will consider earnings, capital requirements, financial condition and other relevant
factors. It is, however, the Company's current intention to retain most of its eamnings to support current operations, reduce
debt and continue to pay dividends at historic levels.

SERIES A PREFERRED SHARE DIVIDENDS

NOVA Chemicals pays 0.5% annual dividends on the $198 million Series A preferred shares of its subsidiary. On Jan. 1,
2005, NOVA Chemicals adopted new Canadian accounting standards that require these instruments to be classified, on a
retroactive basis, as liabilities rather than equity. In addition, any dividends associated with these preferred shares have
been reclassified to interest expense. All prior periods have been restated.

\_ Application of Critical Accounting Estimates

The following represents the estimates most critical to the application of NOVA Chemicals’ accounting policies. For a
summary of the Company's significant accounting policies, please see Note 2 to the annual Consolidated Financial
Statements. Management has discussed the development and selection of these critical accounting estimates with the
Audit, Finance and Risk Committee of NOVA Chemicals’ Board of Directors, and the Audit, Finance and Risk Committee
has reviewed the disclosure relating to such estimates in this Management's Discussion & Analysis.

tnventories. NOVA Chemicals carries invantories at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost is determined on a first-
in, first-out (FIFQ) basis with no allocation of fixed production overhead. NOVA Chemicals uses the FIFO method because
it believes the FIFQ basis is a better method to match actual costs incurred with the related revenue.

Proparty, Plant and Equipment (PP&E). NOVA Chemicals’ PP&E consists primarily of land, buildings for producing
petrochemicals and manufacturing equipment. NOVA Chemicals values PP&E at historical cost. Financing costs incurred
during major construction projects are capitalized as part of the cost of the asset until the asset is available for use. Costs
related to turnaround activities are capitalized and amortized over the period remaining until the next tumaround activity,
while maintenance and repair costs are expensed as incurred.

Judgmental aspects of accounting for PP&E involve estimates of the life of the assets, the selection of an appropriate
method of depreciation and determining whether an impairment of NOVA Chemicals' assets exists and measuring such
an impairment. These assessments are critical due to their potential impact on earnings and equity.
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NOVA Chemicals is able to choose from alternative methods of depreciation, The straight-line method was chosen rather
than other methods, such as units of production, because the straight-line method is more conservative, requires less
estimation and judgment and is a systematic and rational basis reflecting the period over which the assets’ benefit is realized.

Net PP&E at Dec. 31, 2007, totaled approximately $3 billion. PP&E is tested for impairment at the lowest level for which
identifiable cash flows exist, which in NOVA Chemicals’ case is the plant asset level. Impairment testing of the plant assets
occurs whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets may not be
recoverable. The Company assesses recoverability by comparing the carrying amount of the asset group to the estimated
future cash flows expected to be generated by the assets, undiscounted and without interest charges. If an asset is
considered impaired, the impairment loss to be recognized would be measured as the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its fair value.

The estimate of PP&E fair value is based on estimated discounted future cash flows expected to be generated by the
asset. The assumptions underlying cash flow projections represent management’s best estimates at the time of the
impairment review. Factors that management must estimate include: industry and market conditions, sales volume and
prices, costs to produce, inflation, etc. Changes in key assumptions or actual conditions, which differ from estimates,
could result in an impairment charge. The Company uses reasonable, supportable and, where available, third-party,
industry expert assumptions when performing impairment reviews.

NOVA Chemicals’ Olefins/Polyolefins business has an established, long-term record of profitability and, based on current
asset carrying values and expected future cash flows, NOVA Chemicals has concluded the carrying value of the assets of
the Clefins/Polyalefins business unit is appropriate.

During 2006, NOVA Chemicals restructured its traditional Styrenics business into two business units, Performance
Styrenics (which included North American EPS and Styrenic Performance Products) and STYRENIX (which included the
reportable segments of Styrene Monomer, North American SPS and NOVA Chemicals’ interest in NOVA Innovene, the
50:50 European joint venture with INEOS). In 2006, the Company recorded an after-tax charge of $46 million to write-off
the asset value of its Chesapeake, Virginia, SPS plant and another $46 million to write-off the asset value of NOVA
Innovene’s Carrington, UK, SPS facility as a result of the dosure of these STYRENIX plants. As of Dac. 31, 2006, NOVA
Chemicals used third-party forecasts of market conditions and product margins to assess the recoverability through
projected future cash flows of the STYRENIX plant carrying values. The assets’ carrying value at Dec. 31, 2006, prior to
write-down, was $1.1 billion. Fair value was estimated 1o be $242 million. Thus, the assets were written down to the
estimated fair value, resulting in a non-cash charge of $860 million ($772 million after-tax).

On Oct. 1, 2007, NOVA Chemicals and INEOS expanded their European joint venture to include the North American
Styrene and SPS businesses of both companies. The expanded joint venture is called INEQS NOVA. The cantribution of
assets was completed on a book value basis. Based on current asset carrying values and expected future cash flows of the
expanded INEOS NOVA joint venture, NOVA Chemicals concluded that the carrying value of the assets as of Dec. 31,
2007 was appropriate.

NOVA Chemicals also conducted a review of its Performance Styrenics assets. Based on current asset carrying values and
expected future cash flows of the Performance Styrenics assets, NOVA Chemicals concluded that the camrying value of the
business unit as of Dec. 31, 2007 and 2006 was appropriate.

Assot Retirement Obligations. United States and Canadian GAAP require companies to record liabilities associated with
future plant decommissioning and site restoration costs on both active and inactive plants at their fair value, based on a
discounted value of the expected costs to be paid when the assets are retired. At Dec. 31, 2007, NOVA Chemicals had
$23 million of accumulated reserve for these activities.

As 2 result of the commencement of the INEOS NOVA joint venture on Oct. 1, 2007, the asset retirement obligations
associated with the plants that were contributed to the joint venture were removed from NOVA Chemicals’ liabilities.
However, the joint venture was required to establish asset retirement obligations associated with the assets contributed by
NOVA Chemicals and INEQS, and NOVA Chemicals induded 50% of this obligation through proportionate consclidation in
its results.

During 2006 and 2005, there were no business conditions or decisions that resulted in a requirement to increase or
decrease the asset retirement obligations associated with active or divested sites. The obligations were increased as
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a result of the accretion of the liabilities. For inactive sites or sites that became inactive in 2007, 2006 and 2005, the
reserves were generally considered adeguate for the environmental remediation work required.

tn 2003, the Company undertook an evaluation of the costs to conduct decommissioning and site restoration to satisfy
the projected obligations under applicable environmental requirements upon termination of operations at currently
operating plant sites. Canadian GAAP required that the present value of inflation-adjusted decommissioning and site
restoration costs be recorded as increases to the canrying values of the assets at that time and that this amount be
depreciated over the estimated remaining lives of the assets. NOVA Chemicals determined that $131 million, at that time,
might be required to decommission and rastore operating plant sites. This amount does not include any deduction for
salvage or land value that may be realized; however, these will be taken into consideration as the assets are depreciated.
Because these plants may be in operation in excess of 40 years, significant uncertainty exists concerning the nature of the
decommissioning and site restoration activities that may be required. Furthermore, significant judgment is involved in the
estimation process, because the degree of natural attenuation, evolution of new technologies and potential land uses may
mitigate future environmental liabilities and potential costs. There have been no changes in assumptions since the

initial evaluation.

The present value of this future amount (using a credit-adjusted risk-free rate of 10.5% to discount the estimated future
cash flows) was approximately $19 million and was accrued in 2003 in anticipation of these activities. This estimated
liability will increase, or accrete, each year over the lives of the active plants until it reaches the $225 million to $250
million expected to be incurred on closure of the plants. The resulting expense is referred to as accretion expense and is
included in operating expenses. In each of 2007, 2006 and 2005, this expense was $2 million.

Pension Plans. NOVA Chemicals sponsors both defined benefit and defined contribution pension arrangements covering
substantially all of its employees. For the defined contribution plans, the cost is expensed as eamed by employees. For
the defined benefit plans, obligations and expense are determined using actual discount rates and assumptions for
mortality, termination, retirement and other rates, as well as the expected retum on plan assets and the rate of increase
for future compensation. The Company uses current mortality rate tables commonly used for actuarial calculations and
selects other assumptions in line with past experience and current economic conditions. The retum on plan assets is not
the actual return, but an expected rate based on estimates of long-term rates of return for various asset classes and the
investment strategy of the plans. The discount rate is based on actual market interest rates at the measurement date on
high guality debt instruments with cash flows that match the timing and amount of expected benefit payments of NOVA
Chemicals' plans.

Canadian GAAP requires that actuarial gains and losses be recognized in NOVA Chemicals’ income using a systematic
and consistent methodology. For defined benefit pensions, the Company amortizes such gains and losses over the
estimated remaining service lifetime of the employee group to the extent these gains or losses exceed 10% of the greater
of the accrued benefit obligation or market value of assets. This altemative avoids recognizing into income large unrealized
gains or losses in individual years. Immediate recognition of such gains and losses would introduce significant volatility
into NOVA Chemicals' earnings. Cumulative unrealized actuarial gains and losses have ranged from a $61 million gain at
Dec. 31, 1999, to a $229 million loss at Dec. 31, 2007. On Dec. 31, 2007, unrealized actuarial losses were $229 million.

On Sep. 28, 2007, NOVA Chemicals amended certain defined benefit pension plans in the United States. The
amendments provided for benefits to be frozen as of Jan. 1, 2008 and transition relief to be provided to plan participants
meeting certain age and service requirements. At the same time, NOVA Chemicals also enhanced benefits under cne of
its defined contribution plans. These actions serve to ascertain more certainty with regards to pension cost.

A total of $52 million, $65 million and $49 million was contributed in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively, to all of NOVA
Chemicals’ defined benefit pension plans. The contributions were based on the most recently filed valuations with pension
regulators in various countries. NOVA Chemicals contributed $8 million, $8 million and $7 million in 2007, 2006 and 2005,
respectively, to the defined contribution plans.

Funding for NOVA Chemicals’ defined benefit pension plans is largely driven by the North American pension plans, as
they constitute a significant portion of the Company's pension plan assets and obligations. For 2008, NOVA Chemicals’
funding is expected to be approximately $40 million as employees accrue additional pension benefits and special
payments are made to cover the shortfall between assets and liabilities. Contributions to defined contribution plans for
2008 are expected to be $14 million. The increase in funding to defined contribution plans in 2008 reflects changes made
to the Company’s U.S. pension plans discussed above.
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Income Taxes. The objective of accounting for income taxes is to recognize the amount of taxes payable or refundable
for the current and future years for events that have been recognized in NOVA Chemicals’ financial statements or tax
returns. Judgment is required in assessing future tax consequences. Variations in the actual outcome of these future tax
consequences could materially impact NOVA Chemicals' financial position or results of operations.

NOVA Chemicals has a valuation allowance and a tax reserve to provide for uncertain tax positions. The valuation
allowance is used in situations where it is uncertain that the recorded tax benefit can be utilized in the future. This
allowance primarily relates to the uncertain utilization of tax loss carryforwards. The allowance was increased by §14
million in 2007, $226 million in 2006 and $16 million in 2005. The tax reserve is used to provide for potential disputes with
tax authorities. During 2007, the reserve was reduced by $13 million due to the successful resolution of a dispute with the
Belgian tax authorities. There were no changes to the tax reserve in 2006 and 2005

\_Accounting Standards

CANADIAN INSTITUTE OF CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS {(CICA) 1506, CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ESTIMATES AND ERRORS

This new standard applies to fiscal years beginning on or after Jan. 1, 2007. It provides that an entity is permitted to
change accounting policies only when it is required by a primary source of GAAP, or when the change results in a reliable
and more relevant presentation in the financial statements.

CICA 1530, COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Adopted by NOVA Chemicals on Jan. 1, 2007, this standard establishes standards for reporting and presentation of
comprehensive income {loss), which is defined as the change in equity from transactions and other events and
circumstances from non-owner sources, As a result of adopting CICA Section 1530, two new statements, Consolidated
Statemeants of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity and Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss), have been
presented. Comprehensive income (loss) is composed of NOVA Chemicals’ net income (loss) and other comprehensive
income (loss). Other comprehensive income (loss) includes unrealized gains (losses) on available for sale financial assets,
foreign currency translation gains (losses) on the net investment in self-sustaining foreign operations and changes in the fair
market value of derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedges {not including the amount of ineffectiveness, if any),
all net of income taxes. The components of comprehensive income (loss) are disclosed in the Consolidated Statements of
Changes in Shareholders’ Equity and Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss).

CICA 3251, EQUITY

This standard establishes rules for the presentation of equity and changes in equity during the reporting periods. The
requirements of this Section have been effected in the presentation of the Consolidated Statements of Changes in
Shareholders’ Equity. This standard was adepted by NOVA Chemicals on Jan. 1, 2007.

CICA 3862, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — DISCLOSURE AND CICA 3863, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

These two standards replace CICA Section 3861, Financial Instruments — Disclosure and Presentation, The new standards
revise and enhance the disclosure requirements and carry forward, substantially unchanged, the presentation
requirements. These new standards emphasize the significance of financial instruments for the entity’s financial position
and performance, the nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments and how these risks are managed.
These new standards are applicable to interim and annual periods relating to fiscal years beginning on or after Oct. 1,
2007. NOVA Chemicals has chosen to early adopt these new standards as of Dec. 31, 2007.

CICA 3855, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — RECOGNITION AND MEASUREMENT AND CICA 3865, HEDGES

These standards are effective for interim and annual periads relating to fiscal years beginning on or after Oct. 1, 2006. The
required effective date for NOVA Chemicals was Jan. 1, 2007. CICA 3855 is intended to harmonize Canadian, U.5. and
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and establishes standards for recognition and measurement of financial
assets, liabilities and non-financial derivatives. Previous standards addressed disclosure and presentation matters only, Al
financial instruments, including derivatives, are included on the Consolidated Balance Sheets and are measured at fair value,
except for held to maturity investments, loans and receivables and other financial liabilities, which are measured at
amortized cost. CICA 3855 alse requires financial and non-financial derivative instruments to be measured at fair value and
recorded as either assets or liabilities, with the exception of non-financial derivative contracts that were entered into and
continue to be held for the purpose of receipt or delivery of a non-financial item in accordance with NOVA Chemicals’
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expected purchase, sale or usage requirements. Certain derivatives embedded in non-derivative contracts must also be
measured at fair value. Any changes in fair value of recognized derivatives are included in net income in the period in
which they arise unless specific hedge accounting criteria are met. Also, it is NOVA Chemicals’ policy that transaction
costs related to all financial assets and liabilities be added to the acquisition or issue cost, unless the financial instrument is
classified as held-for-trading, in which case the transaction costs are recognized immediately in net income. Because the
standard requires long-term debt to be measured at amortized cost, certain deferred debt discount and issuance costs
that were previously reported as long-term assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheets were reclassified on a prospective
basis and are now being reported as a reduction of the respective debt obligations (517 million was reclassified as of Jan.
1, 2007). CICA 3865, which replaces and expands AcG-13, Hedging Refationships and the hedging guidance in CICA
1650, Foreign Currency Translation sets the standards for when and how hedge accounting may be applied, further
restricting which hedging relationships qualify for hedge accounting. Also included in the standard is the concept that the
ineffective portion of an atherwise qualifying hedging relationship would be included in earnings of the period. Hedge
accounting ensures the recarding, in the same paeriod, of counterbalancing gains, losses, revenues and expenses from
designated derivative financial instruments as those related to the hedged item. As a result of adopting CICA 3865,
NOVA Chemicals has reclassified, on a prospective basis from various current and long-term liability accounts to Long-
term debt on the Consolidated Balance Sheets, a deferred gain of $4 million which represented the remaining gain on
settlement of a derivative instrument previously {under Ac3-13) designated as a hedge.

CICA 3251, EQUITY AND CICA 3861, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - DISCLOSURE & PRESENTATION

The standards were updated in October 2006 for additional disclosure and presentation requirements to comply with
CICA 3855, CICA 3865 and CICA 1530. NOVA Chemicals adopted the disclosure and presentation changes, as required,
effective Jan. 1, 2007.

EIC 166, ACCOUNTING POLICY FOR TRANSACTION COSTS

This standard, issued by the Emerging Issues Committee (EIC) requires an entity to disclose the accounting policy for
transaction costs for all financial assets/liabilities other than those classified as held for trading. Transaction costs can
either be recognized in net income or added to the initial carrying amount of the asset/liability it is directly attributable to.
The same accounting policy must be chosen for all similar fimancial instruments, but a different accounting policy may be
chosen for financial instruments that are not similar. EIC 166 should be applied retrospectively to transaction costs
accounted for in accordance with CICA Section 3855 in financial statements issued for interim and annual periods ending
on or after Sept. 30, 2007. NOVA Chemicals’ accounting policy with respect to transaction costs has been to capitalize all
transaction costs for all financial instruments (except for those classified as held for trading). This policy did not change as
a result of adopting EIC 166.

EIC 162, STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION FOR EMPLOYEES ELIGIBLE TO RETIRE BEFORE THE VESTING DATE

This standard, issued by the EIC, clarifies inconsistencies regarding accounting for stock-based awards granted to
employees who are either eligible for retirement at the grant date or will be eligible before the end of the vesting period.
Compensation costs for stock-based awards for employees eligible to retire at the grant date must be recognized at the
grant date. Compensation costs for stock-based awards for employees who will become eligible to retire during the
vesting period should be recognized over the period from the grant date to the date on which the employee becomes
eligible to retire. Application of this standard has resulted in acceleration of the recognition of stock-based compensation
expenses. EIC 162 is to be applied retroactively, with restatement of prior periods and is effective for interim and annual
periods ending on or after Dec. 31, 2004. Accordingly, NOVA Chemicals adopted EIC 162 in the fourth quarter of 2006,
Prior periods presented have been retroactively adjusted, reducing net loss in 2005 by $3 million {$0.04 per share diluted).

MEASUREMENT DATE

Effective Jan. 1, 2006, NOVA Chemicals changed the measurement date for reporting related to its defined benefit plans
from Nov. 30 to Dec. 31. This change in measurement date has been used consistently in 2007 and will be for future
periods. The change in measurement date had no significant impact on the 2006 Consolidated Financial Statements.

\_Market and Regulatory Risk

The Audit, Finance and Risk Committee of NOVA Chemicals’ Board of Directors regularly reviews foreign exchange,
interest rate and commodity hedging activity and monitors compliance with the Company’s hedging policy. NOVA
Chemicals' policy prohibits the use of financial instrurents for speculative purposes and limits hedging activity to the
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underlying net economic exposure. See additional information in Note 20 on page 107. Additional risks inherent in the
Company’s business and operations are discussed in the Company's Annual Information Form among other publicly filed
disclosures.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE HEDGING

NOVA, Chemicals has U.S., Canadian and European-based petrochemical operations. As a result, the Company is exposed
to currency risks from its investing, financing and operating activities. Risks from foreign currencies may be hedged using
cash contracts, spot contracts, forward contracts and swap transactions to minimize the gains and losses due to short-
term foreign currency exchange rate fluctvations. The exposure that may be hedged in accordance with the Company's
foreign exchange policy is limited to operational transaction exposure and is generally used only to balance out NOVA
Chemicals’ cash positions. Foreign currency risks resulting from the translation of assets and liabilities of foreign
operations into NOVA Chemicals’ functional currency are generally not hedged; however, NOVA Chemicals may decide to
hedge this risk under certain circumstances.

COMMODITY PRICE RISK MANAGEMENT AND HEDGING

NOVA Chemicals sells petrochemical products at prices denominated in various currencies, purchases energy
commodities, invests in foreign operations, issues short- and long-term debt, including amounts in foreign currencies; and
utilizes a number of stock-based compensation plans. These activities result in exposures to fluctuations in foreign
currency exchange rates, commaodity prices, interest rates and common stock prices. NOVA Chemicals may choose to
modify these exposures by entering into contractua! arrangements {derivatives), which reduce the exposure by creating
offsetting positions. Derivative instruments are used only for economic hedges of foreign exchange rate, commodity
price, interest rate and stock price volatility risks. NOVA Chemicals enters into derivative finandial instruments with high
credit quality counterparties and diversifies its positions among such counterparties in order to reduce its exposure to
credit losses. In addition, the credit risk of financial instruments with a positive fair value is minimized by way of limit
management, which sets individual relative and absolute figures for risk exposure depending on the counterparty's credit
rating. The Company has not experienced any credit losses on derivatives during the three-year period ended Dec. 31,
2007. Negative fair value is also minimized by way of limit management. If the aggregate negative fair valué is at or above
the corporate market risk limit, the appropriate level of management must be immediately notified and an appropriate
course of action will be determined. These derivative instruments are not utilized for trading or speculative purposes.

NOVA Chemicals uses commodity-based derivatives to manage its exposure to price fluctuations on crude oil, refined
products and natural gas transactions. The instruments are used to moderate the risk of adverse short-term price
movements. Occasionally, longer-term positions will be taken to manage price risk for anticipated supply requirements,
The extent to which commodity-based derivatives are used depends on market conditions and requires adherence to the
Company’s hedging policy. NOVA Chemicals limits its positions in futures markets to proprietary feedstock requirements
and does not use derivative instruments for speculative purposes.

NOVA Chemicals may choose to use commodity-based derivatives to manage its exposure to price fluctuations on crude
oil, refined products and natural gas transactions. The instruments are used to moderate against adverse short-term price
movements. Occasionally, longer-term positions will be taken to manage price risk for anticipated supply requirements.

When considered appropriate, NOVA Chemicals enters into interest rate swaps in order to manage the fixed and floating
interest rate mix on its long-term debt portfolio. The interest rate swap agreements generally involve the periodic
exchange of payments without the exchange of the notional principal amounts upon which the payments are based,

Changes in the fair value of derivative instruments are reported in income or Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income
{AOCI), depending on the use of the derivative and whether it qualifies for hedge accounting treatment under the
provisions of CICA 3865, Hedges. Unrealized gains and losses on derivative instruments qualifying as cash flow hedges
are recorded in AQCI to the extent the hedges are effective, until the underlying transactions are recognized in Feedstock
and operating costs on the Consolidated Statements of Income (Loss). To the extent effective, unrealized gains and losses
on derivative and non-derivative instruments used as hedges of the Company's net investment in foreign operations are
recorded in AQCI. The ineffective portions of cash flow hedges and hedges of net investment in foreign operations, if any,
are recagnized in income immediately.

60 Managoment’s Discussion & Analysis




Unrealized gains and losses on derivative instruments designated and qualifying as fair value hedging instruments, as well
as the offsetting unrealized gains and Josses on the hedged items, are recognized in Feedstock and operating costs on
the Consolidated Statements of Income (Loss) in the same accounting peried. Unrealized gains and losses on derivative
instruments that do not qualify or are not designated as hedges are marked-to-market at the end of each accounting
period with the results included in feedstock and operating costs on the Consolidated Statements of Income (Loss).

EQUITY FORWARD CONTRACTS

Equity forward contracts are used to manage exposures to fluctuations in NOVA Chemicals’ stock-based compensation
costs, as the costs of the plans vary as the market price of the underlying commeon shares changes. For further details on
NOVA Chemicals’ equity forward contracts, see Stock-Based Compensation, Forward Transactions and Profit Sharing on
page 47.

CREDIT RISK MANAGEMENT

NOVA Chemicals is exposed to credit risk on financial instruments in cases where a counterparty to an instrument fails to
make payment of unrealized gains. The Company has established a limit on contingent exposure for each counterparty,
based on the counterparty’s credit rating. Credit exposure is managed through credit approval and menitoring
procedures. Concentration of credit risk can result primarily from receivables, as certain customer groups are located in
the same geographic area and operate in the same industry. NOVA Chemicals manages its credit risk relating to these
receivables through credit approval and monitoring procedures.

GOVERNMENT REGULATION AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Like other companies in the plastics and chemical industries, NOVA Chemicals is subject to extensive environmental laws
and regulations at all levels of governmant. These laws and ragulations concern the manufacturing, processing and
importation of certain petrochemical substances; discharges or releases (air, land or water); and the generation, handling,
storage, transportation, treatment, disposal and clean-up of regulated materials. Although NOVA Chemicals believes that
its businesses, operations and facilities are being operated in material compliance with applicable environmantal laws and
regulations, the operation of any petrochemical facility and the distribution of petrochemical products involve the risk of
accidental discharges of toxic or hazardous materials, personal injury and property and environmental damage.

Furthermore, applicable environmental laws and regulations are complex, change frequently and provide for substantial
{ines, regulatory penalties and criminal sanctions in the event of non-compliance. In addition, substantial costs can
sometimes result from orders that require rectification of environmental conditions. NOVA Chemicals cannot provide
assurance that it will not incur substantial costs or liabilities as a result of such occurrences or the enforcement of
environmental laws.

From time-to-time, NOVA Chemicals has entered into various consent agreements or been subject to administrative
orders for pollution abatement or remedial action. Under some environmental laws, NOVA Chemicals may be subject to
strict and, under certain circumstances, joint and severa! liability for the costs of environmental contamination on or from
its properties and at off-site locations where NOVA Chemicals disposed of or arranged for disposal or treatment of
hazardous substances and may also incur liability for related damages to natural resources. NOVA Chemicals has been
named as a potentially responsible party undar the U.S, Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and
Liability Act of 1980, or its state equivalents, at several third-party sites. NOVA Chemicals cannot provide assurance that
significant costs will not be incurred.

In 1985, NOVA Chemicals adopted the Responsible Care initiative as the basis for its overall safety, health, environment,
security and risk program. Responsible Care is a global chemical industry performance initiative created by the Canadian
Chemical Producers’ Association {CCPA) in 1985 and adopted by the American Chemistry Council (ACC) in the United
States in 1988, Responsible Care is currently practiced by chemical industry associations in more than 53 countries
worldwide. Responsible Care requires participants to commit to the responsible management of the total iifa cycle of
their products. In 2006, the ACC honored NOVA Chemicals as co-winner of their Responsible Care Leadership award in
the medium-sized company category. The award recognizes outstanding leadership and performance under the
Responsible Care initiative.

Management’s Discussion & Analysis 81




NOVA Chemicals is active in a number of voluntary environmental initiatives to reduce emissions and wastes from its
facilities. NOVA Chemicals participates in the CCPA's National Emissions Reduction Master plan and is also directly
involved in the Canadian Chemical Industry’s Environmental Performance Memoranda of Understanding with the Federal,
Ontario and Alberta governments, which is a voluntary program designed to achieve reductions in air emissions from the
chemical industry. Through a greenhouse gas emissions management program, NOVA Chemicals is committed to
economically viable solutions to climate change concerns. This includes NOVA Chemicals’ participation in the joint venture
with ATCQ Power Canada Ltd. and EPCOR Power Development Corperation to operate a natural gas-fired cogeneration
power plant at its production site at Joffre, Alberta. This joint venture has substantially reduced greenhouse gas emissions
when compared with supplying the electrical needs of the Joffre site from Albenta’s primarily coal-fired electrical
generation facilities.

In 2002, Canada ratified the Kyoto Protocol thereby committing it to legislating reductions in air emissions that contribute
to climate change.

On Apr. 27, 2007, the Canadian federal government released its plan for industrial air emission reductions with its
"Tuming the Corner” plan including an ultimate goal of reducing greenhouse gas emissions by 20% from 2006 levels by
the year 2020 and by 60 to 70% by 2050. Existing facilities will be required to reduce greenhouse gas emissions intensity
by 18% from 2006 levels beginning in the year 2010. The federal plan will be implemented through a series of
amendments to existing regulations, which are expected to begin in the spring of 2008. As a result, legally binding
greenhouse gas emission reduction targets will be imposed on NOVA Chemicals’ operations in Canada.

In addition to the anticipated federal regulations, most of the Canadian provinces are also contemplating some form of
greenhouse gas emissions reduction legistation. In Alberta, the Specified Gas Emitters Regulation under the Climate
Change and Emissions Management Act came into force on July t, 2007, imposing annual reductions targets on facilities
that emit greenhouse gases. Established facilities are required to reduce carbon dioxide equivalent gases by 12% from a
2003-2006 average emissions intensity (baseline). Baseline emissions data were required to be submitted by each facility
by Dec. 31, 2007. Alberta’s ultimate goal is to reduce greenhouse gas emission relative to gross domestic product by 50%
' from 1990 levels by 2020.

: There is no national greenhouse gas emissions reduction program that imposes reduction targets in the United States, but
some states have announced an intention to implement such programs and NOVA Chemicals’ operations in the United
States could have targets imposed. INEOS NOVA's European operations are also located in countries where greenhouse
gas emission targets are currently being imposed.

NOVA Chemicals is developing and implementing a variety of initiatives to reduce greenhouse gas emissions and improve
energy efficiency across its operations. Due to the uncertainty of long-term regulatory requirements, NOVA Chemicals
cannot provide assurance that it will not incur substantial costs to meet greenhouse gas emission reduction requirements
or whether they will be material,
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Summarized Quarterly Financial Information

three months ended
{millions of U.S. dollars,
except where notod) 2007 2008
Dec. 31  Bept. 30 Jun, 30 Mar 31  Deo, 31 Sepl. 30 Jun. 80  Mar 31

Revenue $1,795 $1,755 $1,676  $1,506  $1,635 $1,712 $1,619 1,553
Operating income (loss) $ 114 § 188 $ 150 § 101§ (837 $ 3 $ 107 8% ¥
Net income (loss) $ 126 § 97 $ 80 S 44 $(781) $ (24) $ 106 8 @
Net income (loss) per common share

— Basic $ 1.52 $ 117 $097 $053 $(749 $ (0.29) $ 128  $(0.05

— Diluted $ 1.5 $ 114 $09 $053 $(949 $(0.29 $1.27 $(0.05)
Weighted-average common

shares outstanding (miflions)
— Basic 83.0 83.0 82.9 B2.7 82.6 82,6 B2.5 825
— Diluted 83.4 83.8 83.7 83S 82.6 82.6 B3.2 825

QUARTERLY EARNINGS TRENDS

The improvement in net income in the first quarter of 2007 was due to strengthening margins, cost reductions and mark-
to-market unrealized gains on feedstock derivatives (§17 million after-tax) offset somewhat by the negative impact of the
Canadian rail strike (38 million after-tax). Net income increased in the second quarter due to significant margin
improvement in the Olefins/Polyolefins business unit. While market ethylene and polyethylene price increases were offset
by higher feedstock costs on the U.S. Gulf Coast, NOVA Chemicals' feedstock costs increased only slightly resulting in
improved margins. The Alberta Advantage was significant in the second quarter at approximately 13 cents per pound. In
the third and fourth quarters, the Olefins/Polyolefins business unit reported record EBITDA due to strong domestic and
export demand and improving margins as price increases exceeded feedstock cost changes. Margins improved as
industry price increases, driven by rising market feedstock costs outpaced the Company’s Alberta based feedstock costs.
The Alberta Advantage averaged a record 27 cents per pound by year-end; 17 cents per pound on average for the full
year. As previously mentioned, several non-recurring items also impacted NOVA Chemicals’ eamings in 2007 including
restructuring charges of $55 million after-tax, $25 million impact of a stronger Canadian Dollar, Canadian federal tax-rate
reduction benefit of $45 million, $13 million non-cash tax benefit associated with a Belgium tax case, the Canadian rail
strike negative impact of $8 million after-tax and the sale of the previously shutdown Chesapeake, Virginia, facility and
other incidental land of $14 million after-tax.

The net loss in the first quarter of 2006 was primarily the result of the extended Corunna facility shutdown for
maintenance and modernization work, and the accrued severance costs associated with the closure of the Chesapeake,
Virginia facility. In addition, margins eroded due to selling prices falling ot a faster rate than feedstock costs. Net income
in the second quarter was favorably impacted by Canadian tax rate reductions of $60 million, the Corunna site beginning
expanded operations and improved ethylene and PE margins. The third-quarter loss was primarily related to North
American restructuring costs and the costs associated with the closure of the Carrington, UK site. The third quarter also
saw the highest quarterly EBITDA for the Company’s Olefins/Polyclefins business unit to such date as polyethylene and
ethylene price increases outpaced higher feedstock costs. The fourth quarter net loss was largely due to the one-time,
non-cash write-down of the STYRENIX business unit assets, however business operating performance also suffered.
Despite unusually high sales volumes in the Olefins/Polyolefins business unit, PE and ethylene pricing declined from the
third quarter by 16% and 12%, respectively. This was due in large part to de-stocking as converters worked off excess
inventories in anticipation of the 2004 hurricane season, which did not result in disruptions as in 2005. Similarly, styrene
and the Performance Styrenics unit’s products such as EPS also saw price declines, although not as dramatic as in the
Olefins/Polyolefins business.

FOURTH QUARTER 2007 OVERVIEW

The Company filed its Management's Discussion & Analysis for the fourth quarter of 2007 {the "Fourth Quarter MD&A")
with the Canadian securities administrators and the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission on Jan. 31, 2008. The
Fourth Quarter MD&A, is hereby incorporated by reference into this MD&A for the year ended Dec. 31, 2007.
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. Share Data

Common Shares Issusd and Outstanding

For the period ended
{number of shares) Februnry 7. 2008 2007 2006 2003
Beginning of period 83,054,528 82,561,272 82,364,899 84,258,293
issued upon exercise of options 43,445 493,256 196,373 495,157
Repurchased — — - (2,598,551)
End of period 83,097,973 83,054,528 82,561,272 82,364,899
Employee Incentive Stock Options _

For iho period endod
{number of shares} February 7. 2008 2007 2008 2006
Beginning of period 4,054,567 5,478,697 5,107,611 5,849,131
Granted 223,550 174,100 1,007,259 532,750
Exercised {56,502) (1,547,694) (567,795) (1,257.857)
Cancelled {4,138) (50,534) {68,378} {16,413)
End of period 4,217,427 4,054,567 5,478,697 5,107,611

DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

NOVA Chemicals' management, with the participation of the Chief Executive Officer (CEO} and Chiet Financial Officer
{CFO), has evaluated the effectiveness, as at Dec, 31, 2007, of NOVA Chemicals’ disciosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Rules 13a-15e and 15d-15e under the United States Securities Exchange Act of 1934) and has concluded that
such disclosure controls and procedures are effective.

CHANGES IN INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Thera have been no changes in NOVA Chemicals’ internal contral over financial reporting during the year ended Dec. 31,
2007, that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, its internal control over financial reporting.
Management has determined that no material change in intemal contro! over financial reporting has occurred as a result
of the implementation of the INEOS NOVA joint venture,

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Additional infarmation relating to NOVA Chemicals, including the Annual Information Form, is filed with Canadian
securities administrators and can be accessed through the System for Electronic Document Analysis and Retrieval (SEDAR)
at www.sedar.com. This same information is filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission and can be accessed
via its Electronic Data Gathering, Analysis and Retrieval System (EDGAR} at www.sec.gov/edgar.shtml.
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\_ Trademark Information
A NOVA Chemicals is a registered trademark of NOVA Brands Ltd.; authorized use/utilization autorisée.

Advanced SCLAIRTECH™ and SCLAIRTECH™ are trademarks of NOVA Chemicals.

SURPASS® is a registered trademark of NOVA Chemicals Corporation in Canada and of NOVA Chemicals {International)
S.A. elsewhere.

SCLAIR® is a registered trademark of NOVA Chemicals Corporation in Canada and of NOVA Chemicals {intemational)
S.A. elsewhere; autherized use/utilisation autorissée.

ARCEL® and DYLARK® are. registered trademarks of NOVA Chemicals Inc.

NAS® and ZYLAR® are registered trademarks of INEQS NOVA.

Elemix™, [Mx™ and NOVACAT™ are trademarks of NOVA Chemicals inc.

accel-E™ is a trademark of Accelerated Building Technologies, LLC.

TPF Thermo Plastic Flowforming™ and Sheetless ThermoForming™ are trademarks of LRM Industries, LLC.
LEED® is a registered trademark of the U.S, Green Building Council Non Profit Corporation.

Responsible Care® is a registered trademark of the Canadian Chemical Producers’ Association (CCPA) in Canada
and is a registered service mark of the American Chemistry Council, Inc. {ACC) in the United States.
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\Consolidated Six-Year Review

{millions of U.S. dollars, except per share smounts,

ratics and miscellancous data) 2007 2009 2005 2004 2003 £002
Operating Results
Revenue $6,732 $46,519 $5,616 $5,270 $£3,949 $3.09
Adjusted EBITDA™ $ 885 $ 604 $ 461 $ 570 $ 219 $ 215
Operating income (loss)® $ 553 $(80) % 3 $ 265 § (94 $ (7N
Net income {loss) $ 347 $ (703) $ (101 $ 253 $ (14) $ (112)
Total assets $4,836 $4,077 $5,178 $5,047 $4,413 $4,154
Capitalization
Current bank loans $ 3 $ 1 $ 8 — 5 - $ 3
Long-term debt™ 1,794 1,779 1,973 1,714 1,682 1,793
Less: Cash and cash equivalents and

restricted cash and other assets (122) {60) (1566) (317) {284} {64)
Net debt® $1,675 $1,720 $1,808 $1,397 $1,398 $1,732
Shareholders’ equity 1,101 546 1,215 1,484 1,301 980
Total capitalization net of cash and cash

equivalents and restricted cash® $2,776 52,266 $3.023 $2,881 $2,699 $2.712

Cash Flow Data :

Cash provided by {used in) operating activities $ 329 $ 350 $ 338 $ 335 $ (260 § 314

Capital expenditures (net of project advances) $ 156 $ 198 $ 419 $ 227 % 119 $ 70

Net debt {repayments) additions $ (13) % (199) $ 317 $ 15 $ (157 S (307 !

Data per Common Share
Net income (loss)

— Basic $ 419 $(8.52) $(1.22) $ 292 ${0.16) $(1.30)
— Diluted $ 414 $(852 $(.222 $272 $(018 ${1.30)
Common shareholders’ equity at year-end™® $ 133 $ 6.62 $14.76 $16.00  $13.40 $12.40
Ratios
Return {foss) on average common equity™ 43.2% (55.6)% {7.51% 19.2% 08% {11.1)%
Net debt to total capitalization® 60.3% 75.9% 59.8% 48.5% 51.8% 63.9%
Miscellaneous Data
Employees at year-end ¥ 2,820 3.300 3,600 4,100 4,300 4,300
Closing share price
— TSX ($Cdn) $32.27 $32.50 $38.81 $56.70  $35.04 $28.89 |
— NYSE {§U.5.) $32.40 $27.90 $33.40 $47.30 $26.95 $18.30 |
Dividends and distributions

Common shares $ 3 $ 29 $ 27 $ 28 $ 25 $ 23 |

{1} In 2007, NOVA Chemicals changed its scrounting for its interest in the Europesn scoounts recaivable wauritizatian program, undertaken by the Europesn joint wentire in 2006 :
Accounts receivable secusitization trareactions are recorded a3 safes of assets baved on the transier of control to the purchaser as opposed to finanding. Also In 2007, NOVA [
Chamicahs recliisified the current portion of Rock-based compensation and pension a1sets from Defenred credits and long-term llabiities to Accounts payabls and accrued
Rabdities and (nvastments and cther assets, respectivaly, in 2006 and 2005. In addition, $65 million was rectassified from Restricted cash and other sssets to Long-term debt in
2006 and 2005.

[2) in additian 1o providing in dance with Canadian GAAP, NOVA Chemicals presents cartain supplemental mesasures. Thesa measures do not have any standardized
meaning prescribed by Canadian GAAP, and are, thergiore, unlikely to be comparable to messures provided by other companies, Certain of these measurea are dafined on
page 5 of the Marugement's Discussion & Anahha.

{3} Long-termn debt includes current portion of long-term debt,

{£) Commaon sharsholders’ equity divided by outstanding commen shares. Yaars prior 1o 2008 sssume the retracuable prefemmed shares wers exchanged for common shares to 8
maximum of 8.5 million, Effective Septamber 2005, the preferred thares are no longer convertible 1o common shares.

(5} Net income (loes} divided by o *quity.

(8} Excludes spproximately 450 NOVA Chemicals’ employees who have been transferred to INEOS NOVA
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Management’s Report
N\ g

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF NOVA CHEMICALS CORPORATION

The Consolidated Financial Statements and other financial information included in this annual report have been prepared
by management. It is management’s responsibility to ensure that sound judgment, appropriate accounting principles and
methods and reasonable estimates have been used in the preparation of this information. They also ensure that all
information presented is consistent.

Management is also responsible for establishing and maintaining internal contrals and procedures over the financial
reporting process. The internal control system includes an internal audit function and an established business conduct
policy that applies to all employees. In addition, the Company has adopted a code of ethics that applies to its Chief
Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Corporate Controller. The code of ethics can be viewed on NOVA
Chemicals’ website (www.novachemicals.com). Management believes the system of internal controls, review procedures
and established policies provide reasonable assurance as to the reliability and relevance of financial reports. Management
also believes that NOVA Chemicals' operations are conducted in conformity with the law and with a high standard of
business conduct.

During the past year, we have directed efforts to improve and document the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control over external financial reporting. The effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting has been
subjected to audit by the shareholders’ auditors. As at year-end, we have reported that intemal control over financial
reporting is effective. In compliance with Section 302 of the United States Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, NOVA Chemicals'
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer will provide to the Securities and Exchange Commission a certification
related to NOVA Chemicals' annual disclosure document in the U.S. (Form 40-F). The same certification will be provided
to the Canadian Securities Administrators.

The Board of Directors is responsible for ensuring that management fulfills its responsibilities for financial reporting and
internal control. The Board carries out this responsibility principally through its Audit, Finance and Risk Committee. The
Committee, which consists solely of independent directors, reviews the financial statements and annual report and
recommends them to the Board for approval. The Committee meets with management, internal auditors and external
auditors to discuss internal controls, auditing matters and financial reporting issues. Internal and extemnal auditors have full
and unrestricted access to the Audit, Finance and Risk Committee. The Committee also recommends a firm of external
auditors 1o be appointed by the shareholders.

— Z & Hnclomllf

Jeffrey M. Lipton Larry A. MacDonald
Chief Executive Officer Senior Vice President & Chief Financial Officer

February 7, 2008
Calgary, Canada
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Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control
\Over Financial Reporting

The following report is provided by management in respect of NOVA Chemicals’ internal control over financial reporting
{as defined in Rules 13a-15f and 15d-15f under the United States Securities Exchange Act of 1934):

1. NOVA Chemicals’ management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting for NOVA Chemicals.

2. Management has used the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSQ) framework
to evaluate the effectiveness of NOVA Chemicals’ intemal control over financial reporting. Management believes that
the COSO framework is a suitable framework for its evaluation of NOVA Chemicals’ internal control aver financial
reporting because it is free from bias, permits reasonably consistent qualitativa and quantitative measurements of
NOVA Chemicals’ internal controls, is sufficiently complete so that those relevant factors that would akter a conclusion
about the effectiveness of NOVA Chemicals' internal controls are not omitted and is relevant to an evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting.

3. NOVA Chemicals’ Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of the INEQS NOVA joint venture via
proportionate consalidation in accordance with Canadian GAAP. Management is unable to evaluate the effectiveness
of internal control within the joint venture due to the fact that NOVA Chemicals does not have the right or authorsity
to evaluate the internal controls of the joint venture and does not have the access necessary, in practice, to avaluate
those controls. Management's conclusion regarding the effectiveness of internal contrels does not extend to the
internal controls of the joint venture. The 2007 Consolidated Financial Statements of NOVA Chemicals included $920
million and $396 million of total and net assets, respectively, related to the INEOS NOVA joint venture as of December
31, 2007, and $1,005 million and $60 million of revenues and net loss, respectively, {or the year then ended.

4. Management has assessed the effectiveness of NOVA Chemicals’ internal control over financial reporting,
as at December 31, 2007, and has concluded that such internal control aver financial reporting is effective.
There are no material weaknesses in NOVA Chemicals’ internal contro! over financial reporting that have been
identified by management.

5. Ernst & Young LLP, who has audited the Consolidated Financial Statements of NOVA Chemicals for the
year ended December 31, 2007, has also issued a report on internal controls under Auditing Standard No. 5
of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). This report is Jocated on page 70 of this
Annual Report.

— 2 # Preomlls

Jeffrey M. Lipton Larry A, MacDonald
Chief Executive Officer Senior Vice President & Chief Financial Officer

February 7, 2008
Calgary, Canada
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Independent Auditors’ Report on Financial Statements
\ P P

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF NOVA CHEMICALS CORPORATION

Wae have audited the Consolidated Balance Sheets of NOVA Chemicals Corporation as at December 31, 2007 and 2006,
and the related Consolidated Statements of Income {Loss), Changes in Sharehelders’ Equity, Comprehensive Income
{Loss) and Cash Flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2007. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Corporation's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian Generally Accepted Auditing Standards and the standards of the
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform an audit
to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

|
|
Under Canadian Generally Actepted Auditing Standards and the Standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board {United States)

In our opinion, these Consolidated Financial Statements present fairly, in ali material respects, the financial position of
NOVA Chemicals Corporation as at December 31, 2007 and 2004, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for
each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2007, in conformity with Canadian Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles.

As discussed in Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, the Corporation made changes to its methods of
accounting for stock-based compensation, financial instruments and hedges, and has also changed its presentation of
equity and changes in equity, including reporting of comprehensive income. As discussed in Note 21, the Corporation
made changes to its methods of accounting for uncertainty in income taxes and defined benefit pension and other post-
retirement plans. In addition, as described in Note 19, the Corporation has restated its segmented reporting for the years
ended December 31, 2006 and 2005.

We have also audited, in accordance with the Standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), NOVA Chemicals Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on
criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission and our report dated February 7, 2008, expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

éu.ot * ?M;’ AUP
Ernst & Young LLP

Chartered Accountants

February 7, 2008
Calgary, Canada
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\Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Controls

Undor Standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States)

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF NOVA CHEMICALS CORPORATION

We have audited NOVA Chemicals Corporation (NOVA Chemicals or the Corporation) internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatiens of the Treadway Commission {the COSQ criteria). NOVA Chemicals’
management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Qur audit included obtaining an
understanding of interna!l contro! over financial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. A company's internal control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and

fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance
with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3} provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets

that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in canditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures

may deteriorate,

As indicated in Management's Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, management’s assessment of
and conclusion on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting did not include the interna! controls of the
INEQOS NOVA joint venture, included in NOVA Chemicals' 2007 Consolidated Financial Statements and constituting $920
million and $396 million of total and net assets, respectively, as of December 31, 2007, and $1,005 million and $60 million
of revenues and net loss, respectively, for the year then ended. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting of
NOVA Chemicals did not include an evaluation of the internal controls over financial reporting of the INEOS NOVA

joint venture.

In our opinion, NOVA Chemicals maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as
of Decerber 31, 2007, based on-the COSO criteria.

We have also audited, in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards and the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the Consolidated Balance Sheets of NOVA Chemicals Corporation
as at December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the Consolidated Statements of Income (Loss), Changes in Shareholders' Equity,
Comprehensive Income (Loss) and Cash Flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2007,
and our report dated February 7, 2008, expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

&buu: d ?M/, ALP

Ernst & Young LLP
Chartered Accauntants

February 7, 2008
Calgary, Canada
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\Consolidated Statements of Income (Loss)

yoar endod December 31 (millions of U.5. dollars,

except number of shares and per share amounts) 2007 2006 £008
Revenue $6,732 $6,519 $5,616
Feedstock and operating costs 5,598 5,663 4,906
Depreciation and amortization 246 299 290
Selling, general and administrative 199 201 199
Research and development S0 51 50
Restructuring charges (Note 13) 86 985 168
6,179 7,199 5,613
Operating income {loss) 553 (480) ' k}
Interest expense, net (Note 8} {175) (168) (113)
Other gains (Note 14) 20 1 8
{155) {167) (105)

Income (loss) before income taxes 398 (847) (102}
Income tax {expense) recovery {Note 15) {51} 144 1
Net income {loss) $ 347 $ {703) g (101}
Weighted-average number of common shares outstanding (millions)

— Basic 83 83 83

— Diluted 84 83 83
Net income {loss) per common share (Note 10}

— Basic $ 4.19 $(8.52) $(1.22)

— Diluted $ 4.16 $(8.52) $(1.22)

Ses sccompanying Netes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

\_Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss)

year ended Docember 31 (millions of U.S. dollars) 2007 2006 2005
Net income (loss} $347 $(703) $(101)
Other comprehensive income {loss):

Unrealized loss on available-for-sale securities,

net of tax of $0 {1) — —_
Unrealized gain {loss) on translation of self-sustaining
foraign operations 235 54 (29)
234 54 (29)
Comprehensive income (loss) $581 $(649) $(130)
See ying Notes 1o Consolidated Financial Statements.
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\_Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31 (millions of U.S. dollars) 2007 BOOG™
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 118 $ 53
Accounts receivable (Note 3) 608 494
tnventaries (Note 4) 882 669
Restricted cash and other assets 4 7
1,612 1,225
Investments and other assets (Note 5) 177 133
Property, plant and equipment, net {Note é) 3,047 2,719
$4,836 $4,077

Llabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Current liabilities

Bank loans S 3 $ 1
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (Note 7) 1,163 983
Long-term debt due within one year (Note 8) 254 197
1,420 1,181

Long-term debt (Note B) 1,540 1,582
Deferred credits and long-term liabilities {Note 9) 265 333
Future income taxes (Note 15) 510 435
3,735 3,531

Shareholders’ Equity

Common shares 505 497
Contributed surplus 27 25
Accumulated other comprehensive income 612 378
Deficit (43) {354)
1,101 546

24,836 $4,077

Contingencies and commitments {Notes B, 18 and 20)

{3} In 2007, NOVA Chemicals reclassified certain bal shaet pmounts. See Notes 2 and 3,

Ses acoompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Sur

On behalf of the board:

%.;/éé,é\_ —
Kerry L. Hawkins Jeffrey M. Lipton
Director Director
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\Consoﬁdated Statements of Cash Flows

year anded December 31 {miltions of U.S. dollars) 2007 2006 2005™
Operating Activities

Net income (loss) $ 347 $(703) $0101)
Depreciation and amortization 246 299 290
Future income tax recovery (Note 15) (58) (219) (69
Other gains (Note 14) (20} (M ®
Stock option expense (Note 11) 2 8 8
Unrealized (gain) loss on derivatives (21} 20 (12
Non-cash restructuring charges (Note 13} 61 907 161
Changes in non-cash working capital {113} 2 143
Changes in non-current assets and liabilities {115} 37 (74)
Cash provided by operating activities 329 350 338

Investing Activities
Proceeds on sales of assets, investments and

other capitat transactions 5 3 1
Property, plant and equipment additions {156) (198) . 419
Turnaround costs, long-term investments and other assets (42) (48) {176)
Acquisition of production rights (30} — —
Cash used in investing activities (222) (243) (584)
Financing Activities
Increase in current bank loans 2 — 1
{Decrease) increase in revolving debt (4) 108 -
Long-term debt additions 1 5 419
Long-term debt repayments (12) (308) (103)
Affiliate long-term notes - 3 —
Common shares issued 8 3 13
Common shares repurchased - —_ (125)
Options retired for cash (Note 11) {6) (2) (11)
Common share dividends (31) (29) (27)
Cash (used in) provided by financing activities {42) (220) 167
increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 65 (113) (79
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 53 166 245
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $118 $ 53 § 166
Cash tax payments 5 62 $ 33 $ 55
Cash interest payments $172 $ 168 $1N
1) In 2007, NOVA Chemicals raclassified cartain balsnce sheet ta. Swe Notes 2 and 3,

Seu s¢companying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements,
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\_Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity

Aoccumulated

Comnon Hhares Other Reinvestad

{millions of U.S doflars, except (Isgued and Outstanding)  Contributed Comprehonsive Enarnings
number of shares) Bharest Amount Surplus Income (Deflolt) Total
Balance at December 31, 2004 84,268,293 $499 N $353 $ o $1,484
Net loss — — — - {101) (101)
Other comprehensive loss

Unrealized loss on

translation of self-sustaining

foreign operations — — —_ (29) — {29}
Comprehensive loss (130)
Stock option expense (Note 1) — — 8 —_ — g
Issued for cash on exercise of

stock options (Note 11) 570,547 13 (3 —_— — 10
Issued on exercise of stock

options as share appreciation

rights {Note 11} 124,610 - — — — —_
Stock options retired for

cash {Note 11) - - -— —_ 5 (5)
Commen share dividends — —_ —_— —_ (27) 27
Common shares repurchased® (2,598,551} (18) —_ — (107) {125}
Balance at December 31, 2005 82,364,899 $494 $16 $324 $ 381 $1,215
Net loss —_— —_ -— _ (703) (703)
Other comprehensive income

Unrealized gain on

translation of self-sustaining

foreign operations —_ — — 54 — 54
Comprehensive loss (649)
Stock option expense (Note 11) —_ — ¢ — — 9
Issued for cash on exercise of

stock options (Note 11) 129,007 3 — - —_ 3
Issued on exercise of stock

options as share appreciation

rights (Note 11) 67,366 — — — — —_—
Stock options retired for

cash {Note 11) — - — - (3 (3)
Common share dividends — — —_ — 2%} (29
Balance at December 31, 2006 82,561,272 $497 £25 $378 $(354) S 544
Net income —_ —_ —_ - 347 347

Other comprehensive income

Unrealized loss on
available-for-sale securities - - — {n — (1)

Unrealized gainon
transtation of self-sustaining

foreign operations — — - 235 — 235
Comprehensive income 581
Stock option expense (Note 11) _ — 2 — —_ 2
Issued for cash on exercise

of stock options (Note 11) 357,683 8 — — — 8

Issued on exercise of stock
options as share appreciation

rights {(Note 11) 135,573 - — — — —
Stock options retired for

cash (Note 11} - — -— —_ {5) (5)
Common share dividends — —_— — — (31) {31}
Balance at December 31, 20077 83,054,528 $505 $27 $612 € (43) $1,101

Sec sitompenying Notes to Comolidaned Financial Statements,

{1} Unlimited numbar of suthorired voting common shares without par vatue, non-voting first preferred shares, and non-voting secend prefetred shares. Currently only commen
shares are issued and outstanding.

{2 in 2007 and 2008, the Corporation did not repurchase any comimen thares. In 2005, the Corporation repurchased 2,598,551 of it corrmon thares, with a carying value of $18
million, on the Toronts Stock Exchange for cash of $125 million. The difference betwesan the cash paidt snd the carying value of the shares was charged to reinvested eamings.

(3} Stated common thare capita! for legal purposes at Dec. 31, 2007, is 31,640 million.
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\_Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements

All amounts in U.S. dollars, unless otherwise noted.

\_ 1. Basis of Presentation

NOVA Chemicals is incorporated under the laws of the Canada Business Corporations Act. Where used in these financial
statements, “NOVA Chemicals” or “the Corporation” or "the Company” means NOVA Chemicals Corporation alone or
together with its subsidiaries and affiliates, depending on the context in which such terms are used. The Consolidated
Financial Statements include the accounts of the Corporation, its subsidiaries and the proportionate share of the accounts
of its joint ventures. Where reference is rade to balances due to and from, and transactions with affiliate; “affiliate”
means INEOS NOVA (see Note S on page 83) and other joint ventures, These transactions arise from business conducted
between NOVA Chemicals and INEQS NOVA and other joint ventures.

These Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared by management in accordance with Canadian Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles {(GAAP). These accounting principles are different in some respects from those generally
accepted in the United States and the significant differences are described in Note 21, “United States Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles” {U.S. GAAP).

The Corporation reports its Consolidated Financial Statements in U.S. dollars.

The preparation of these Consolidated Financial Statements in conformity with Canadian GAAP requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect amounts reported and disclosed in the financial statements and related
notes. Actual results could differ materially from those estimates due to factors such as fluctuations in commodity prices,
foreign exchange rates, interest rates, changes in economic conditions and regulatory changes. Examples of significant
estimates include: the estimated usefu! lives of assets; the recoverability of tangible assets; certain actuarial and economic
assumptions used in determining defined benefit pension costs, accrued pension benefit obligations and pension plan
assets; and estimates of cash flows related to environmental site restoration and clean-up and the resulting asset
retirement obligations.

\\ 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

CHANGES [N ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates, and Errors. On Jan. 1, 2007, NOVA Chemicals adopted new accounting
standards as prescribed by the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants {"CICA”) Section 1506, Changes in
Accounting Policies and Estimates, and Errors, which provides that an entity is permitted to change accounting policies
only when it is required by a primary source of GAAP, or when the change results In a reliable and more relevant
presentation in the financial statements. This new standard applies to fiscal years beginning on or after Jan. 1, 2007,

Financial instruments — Recognition and Measurement (CICA Section 3855). On Jan. 1, 2007, NOVA Chemicals
adopted CICA 3855, which establishes standards for recognizing and measuring financial assets, financial liabilities and
non-financial derivatives. Under CICA 3855, all financial assets must be classified as either held-for-trading, available-for-
sale, held-to-maturity investments or loans and receivables. All financial liabilities must be dassified as held-for-trading or
other financial liabilities. All financial instruments, including derivatives, are included on the Consolidated Balance Sheets
and are measured at fair value, except for held-to-maturity investments, loans and receivables and other financial
liabilities, which are measured at amortized cost. Subsequent measurement and recognition of changes in fair value
depend on the instrument’s Initial classification. Held-for-trading financial instruments are measured at fair value, and all
gains and losses are included in net income {loss) in the period in which they arise. Available-for-sale financial instruments
are measured at fair value, determined by published market prices in an active market, except for investments in equity
instruments that do not have quoted market prices in an active market which are measured at cost. Changes in fair value
are recorded in other comprehensive income (loss) until the assets are removed from the balance sheet. Investments
classified as available-for-sale are written down to fair value through income whenever it is necessary to reflect other-than-
temporary impairment. Realized gains and losses on the disposal of available-for-sale securities are recognized in other
gains and losses. Also, transaction costs related to all financial assets and liabilities are added to the acquisition or issue
cost, unless the financial instrument is classified as held-for-trading, in which case the transaction costs are recognized
immediately in net income (loss).
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CICA Section 3855 also requires financial and non-financial derivative instruments 1o be measured at fair value and
recorded as either assets or liabilities, with the exception of non-financial darivative contracts that were entered into and
continue to be held for the purpose of receipt or delivery of a non-financial item in accordance with NOVA Chemicals’
expected purchase, sale or usage requiraments. Certain derivatives embedded in non-derivative contracts must also be
measured at fair value. Any changes in the fair value of recognized derivatives are included in net income (boss) in the
period in which they arise, unless specific hedge accounting criteria are met, as defined in CICA Section 3865, NOVA
Chemicals included an unrealized gain of $20 million ($0.24 per share diluted) in feedstock and operating costs on the
Consolidated Statements of Income (Loss) for the year ended Dec. 31, 2007, The same accounting treatment applied to
these non-financial derivative contracts prior to the adoption of CICA Section 3855. Fair values for NOVA Chemicals’
recognized commodity-based derivatives are based on the forward prices of the associated market index. No non-
financial derivatives have been recognized as a result of the application of this standard, as all of NOVA Chemicals’ non-
financial derivative contracts have been designated and documented as meeting NOVA Chemicals’ expected purchase,
sale or usage requirements.

As a result of the adoption of CICA Section 3855, NOVA Chemicals has classified at Dec. 31, 2007 and Jan. 1, 2007, its
financial instruments as follows: cash and cash equivalents and derivative instryments (included in Accounts receivables,
Investments and other assets, Accounts payable and accrued liabilities and Deferred credits and long-term liabilities on
the Consolidated Balance Sheets) as held-for-trading; trade accounts receivable, advances receivable from affiliates and
other receivables (included in Accounts receivable on the Consolidated Balance Sheets) and Restricted cash and other
assets as loans and receivables; investments in non-affiliated entities (included in Investments and other assets on the
Consolidated Balance Sheats) as available-for-sale; and trade accounts payable, other accounts payable, certain accrued
liabitities (included in Accounts payable and accrued liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheets), bank loans {line of
credit), long-term liabilities (included in Deferred credits and long-term liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheets) and
long-term debt as other financial liabilities.

Under CICA Section 3855, long-term debt classified as other financial liability is required to be initially measured at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortized cost. As a result, certain deferred debt discount and issuance costs that
were previously reported in Restricted cash and other assets and Investments and other assets on the Consolidated
Balance Sheets have been reclassified, on a prospective basis, and are now reported as a reduction of the respective debt
obligations. In total, $17 million was reclassified on Jan. 1, 2007.

As noted above, certain investments in non-affiliated entities classified as available-for-sale are now measured at fair
market value. Previously, these investments were measured at cost. On Jan. 1, 2007, the impact of this change was not
material to the Consolidated Financial Staterments. During the year ending Dec. 31, 2007, the change in fair value of these
investments resulted in a loss of $1 million, net of tax, which was recorded in Other comprehensive incoma. NOVA
Chemicals’ investments in non-affiliated entities that do not have a quoted market price in an active market are measured
at cost. As of Dec. 31, 2007, these investments totaled $11 million.

In addition, NOVA Chemicals has early adopted the related disclosure and presentation requirements contained in CICA
Section 3842, Financial Instruments - Disclosure and CICA Section 3863, Financial Instruments - Presentation as of Dec.
31, 2007. These two standards replace CICA Section 3861, Financial Instruments — Disclosure and Presentation. The new
standards revise and enhance the disclosure requirements and carry forward, substantially unchanged, the presentation
requirements. These new standards emphasize the significance of financial instruments for the entity’s financial position
and performance, the nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments, and how these risks are managed.
These new standards are applicable to interim and annual periods relating to fiscal years beginning on or after Oct. 1,
2007. NOVA Chemicals has chosen to early adopt these new standards,

Accounting Policy for Transaction Costs (EIC 166). This standard requires an entity to disclose the accounting policy for
transaction costs for all financial assets/liabilities other than those classified as held-for-trading. Transaction costs can
either be recognized in net income or added to the initial carrying amount of the asset/liability it is directly atiributable to.
The same accounting policy must be chosen for all similar financial instruments, but a different accounting policy may be
chosen for financial instruments that are not similar. EIC 166 should be applied retrospectively to transaction costs
accounted for in accordance with CICA Section 3855 in financial statements issued for interim and annual pericds ending
on or after Sep. 30, 2007. NOVA Chemicals’ accounting policy with respect to transaction costs has been to capitalize al}
transaction costs for all financial instruments (except for those classified as held-for-trading). This pelicy did not change as
a result of adopting EIC 166.
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Hedges (CICA Section 3865). The recommendations of CICA Section 3845, Hedges, replaces and expands the guidance in
CICA Accounting Guideline 13 {AcG-13), Hedging Relationships, and the hedging guidance in CICA Section 1650, Foreign
Currency Translation. CICA Section 3865 establishes standards for when and how hedge accounting may be applied as well
as related disclosure requirements. Hedge accounting ensures the recording, in the same period, of counterbalancing
gains, losses, revenues and expenses from designated derivative financial instruments as those related to the hedged itern.
NOVA Chemicals evaluated the impact of CICA Section 3865 on its Consolidated Financial Statements at Jan. 1, 2007, and
determined that a gain on settlement of a derivative instrument that was previously designated as a hedge and deferred on
the Consolidated Balance Sheets should now be reported as an adjustment of the previously hedged long-term debt
instrument. As such, the deferred gain of $4 million was reclassified, on a prospective basis, from Accounts payable and
accrued liabilities and Deferred credits and long-term liabilities to Long-term debt.

Comprehensive Income (CICA Section 1530). Adopted by NOVA Chemicals on Jan. 1, 2007, this standard establishes
standards for reporting and presentation of comprehensive income (Joss), which is defined as the change in equity from
transactions and other events and circumstances from non-owner sources. As a result of adopting CICA Section 1530, two
new staternents, Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity and Consolidated Statements of
Comprehensive Income (Loss), have been presented. Comprehensive income (loss) is composed of NOVA Chemicals’ net
income {loss} and other comprehensive income (loss). Other comprehensive income {loss) includes unrealized gains {losses)
on available-for-sale financial assets, foreign currency translation gains (losses) on the net investment in self-sustaining
foreign operations and changes in the fair market value of derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedges (not
including the amount of ineffectiveness, if any), all net of income taxes. The components of comprehensive income (loss)
are disclosed in the Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity and Consolidated Statements of
Comprehensive Income (Loss). As a result of the adoption of CICA Section 1530, the cumulative translation adjustment,
formerly presented as a separate line item as part of Shareholders’ equity in the Consolidated Balance Sheets, of $378
million as of Dec. 31, 2006, (Dec. 31, 2005 - $324; Dec. 31, 2004 - $353) was reclassifiad to Accumulated other
comprehensive income ("AQCI™).

Equity {CICA Section 3251). CICA Section 3251 establishes standards for the presentation of equity and changes in equity
during the reporting periods. The requirements of this Section have been effected in the presentation of the Consclidated
Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity. This standard was adopted by NOVA Chemicals on Jan. 1, 2007.

Accounts Receivable Securitization (Europe). In the first quarter of 2007, NOVA Chemicals changed its accounting for its
interest in the European accounts receivable securitization program, undartaken by the European joint venture. Accounts
receivable securitization transactions are recorded as sales of assets based on the transfer of control to the purchaser as
opposed to financing (Note 3).

Measurement Date. Effective Jan. 1, 2006, NOVA Chemicals changed the measurement date for reporting related to its
defined benefit plans from Nov. 30 to Dec. 31. This change in measurement date has been used consistently in 2007 and
will be for future periods. The change in measurement date had no significant impact on the 2006 Consclidated Financial
Statements.

Stock-Based Compensation for Employees Eligible to Retire Before the Vesting Date (EIC 162). This standard, issued by
the EIC, clarifies inconsistencies regarding accounting for stock-based awards granted to employees who are either eligible
for retirement at the grant date or will be eligible before the end of the vesting period. Compensation costs for stock-
based awards for employees eligible to retire at the grant date must be recognized at the grant date. Compensation costs
for stock-based awards for employees who will become eligible to retire during the vesting peried should be recognized
over the period from the grant date to the date on which the employee becomes eligible to retire. Application of this
standard has resulted in acceleration of the recognition of stock-based compensation expenses. EIC 162 was applied
retroactively, with restatement of prior periods, and is effactive for interim and annual periods ending on or after Dec. 31,
2006. Accordingly, NOVA Chemicals adopted E£IC 162 in the fourth quarter of 2006. Prior periods presented were
retrospectively adjusted, thereby reducing net loss in 2005 by $3 million ($0.04 per share diluted).

Accounting for Financial Instruments with Characteristics of Both Debt and Equity. On Jan. 1, 2005, the Cerporation
adopted new accounting standards as prescribed by the CICA, which harmonize accounting standards with U.S. GAAP for
certain types of mandatorily redeemable shares and other financial instruments. Beginning on Jan. 1, 2005, these
instruments were required to be reclassified, on a retroactive basis, as liabilities rather than equity. As a result, the
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Series A preferred shares of NOVA Chemicals’ subsidiary, NOVA Chemicals Inc., were reclassified as debt. in addition,
dividends and distributions associated with these preferred shares were reclassified as interest expense.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Short-term investments with initial maturities not greater than 90 days are considered to be cash equivalents and are
recorded at cost, which approximates current market value.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS

Trade accounts receivable are recorded at the invoiced amount and do not bear interest. NOVA Chemicals maintains an
allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated losses of accounts that may become uncollectible. The allowance is based
on the Corporation’s historical percentage of uncollectible accounts, current delinquent customer accounts and
management's assessment of the current business environment and its potential impact an the Corporation’s customers.
NOVA Chemicals considers a receivable delinquent if it is unpaid after the terms of the related invoice have expired. The
allowance is evaluated quarterly based on a review of the aged receivables. Accounts receivable are written off to the
allowance account at the time a customer receivable is known to be uncollectible or are written down to their estimated
net realizable value if not collactible in full.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

NOVA Chemicals' financial results are impacted by both translation and transaction currency effects resulting from
changes in currency exchange rates. The Corporation’s foreign operations are considered self-sustaining and are
translated into U.S. dollars using the current rate method. Resulting translation gains or losses are deferred in AOCI until
thare is a realized reduction of the investment in the foreign operations. Transaction currency effects occur when NOVA
Chemicals or one of its subsidiaries incurs monetary assets or liabilities in a currency different from its functional currency.
These transaction gains and losses are recorded in Feedstock and operating costs in the Consolidated Statements of
Income {Loss).

DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

The Carporation sells petrochemical products at prices denominated in various currencies; purchases energy
commodities; invests in foreign operations; issues short- and long-term debt, including amounts in foreign currencies; and
utilizes a number of stock-based compensation plans. These activities result in exposures to fluctuations in foreign
currency exchange rates, commodity prices, interest rates, and common stock prices. NOVA Chemicals may choose to
modify these exposures by entering into contractual arangements (derivatives), which reduce the exposure by creating
offsetting positions. Derivative instruments are used only for economic hedges of foreign exchange rate, commodity
price, interest rate, and stock price volatility risks. NOVA Chemicals enters into derivative financial instruments with high
credit quality counterparties and diversifies its positions among such counterparties in order to reduca its exposure 1o
credit losses. In addition, the credit risk of financial instruments with a positive fair value is minimized by way of limit
management, which sets individual relative and absolute figures for risk exposure depending on the counterparty’s credit
rating. The Company has not experienced any credit losses on derivatives during the three-year period ended Dec. 31,
2007. Negative fair value is also minimized by way of fimit management. If the aggregate negative fair value is at or above
the corporate market risk limit, the appropriate level of management must be immediately notified and an appropriate
course of action is determined. These derivative instruments are not utilized for trading or speculative purposes.

NOVA Chemicals has 1).5., Canadian and European-based petrochemical operations. The Corporation periodically
manages its exposure to fluctuations in Canadian and Euro dollar exchange rates by using forward exchange contracts.

NOVA Chemicals may choose to use commadity-based derivatives to manage its exposure to price fluctuations on crude
oil, refined products and natural gas transactions. The instruments are used to moderate against adverse short-term price
movements, Occasionally, longer-term positions will be taken to manage price risk for anticipated supply requirements.

When considered approprizte, NOVA Chemicals enters into interest rate swaps in order to manage the fixed and floating
interest rate mix on its long-term debt portfolio. The interest rate swap agreements generally involve the periodic
exchange of payments without the exchange of the notional principal amounts upon which the payments are based.

Equity forward contracts are used to manage exposures to fluctuations in the Corporation’s stock-based compensation
costs, as the costs of the plans vary with changes in the market price of the underlying common shares.

78 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements




Changes in the fair value of derivative instruments are reported in income or AOCI, depending on the use of the
derivative and whether it qualifies for hedge accounting treatment under the provisions of CICA 3865, Hedges.
Unrealized gains and losses on derivative instruments qualifying as cash flow hedges are recorded in AOCI to the extent
the hedges are effective, until the underlying transactions are recognized in Feedstock and operating costs on the
Consolidated Statements of Income (Loss). To the extent effective, unrealized gains and losses on derivative and non-
derivative instruments used as hedges of the Company’'s net investment in foreign operations are recorded in AOCI. The
ineffective portions of cash flow hedges and hedges of net investment in foreign operations, if any, are recognized in
income immediately.

Unrealized gains and losses on derivative instruments designated and qualifying as fair value hedging instruments, as well
as the offsetting unrealized gains and losses on tha hedged items, are recognized in Feedstock and operating costs on
the Consolidated Statements of Income {Loss) in the same accounting peried. Unrealized gains and losses on derivative
instruments that do not qualify or are not designated as hedges are marked to market at the end of each accounting
period with the results included in Feedstock and operating costs on the Consolidated Statements of Income (Loss).

INVENTORIES
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined on a first-in, first-out basis with no
allocation of fixed production overhead.

INVESTMENTS

Investments in debt and marketable equity securities, including warrants, are classified as trading, available-for-sale, or
held-to-maturity. Investments classified as trading are reported at fair velue with unrealized gains and losses included in
income, Irwestments classified as available-for-sale are reported at fair value with unrealized gains and losses recorded in
AQC!. Those classified as held-to-maturity are recorded at amortized cost. Investments in non-affiliated entities that do
not have a quoted market price in an active market are measured at cost. Investments are assessed annually for
potential impairment. .

JOINT VENTURES

NOVA Chemicals applies the proporticnate consolidation method of accounting for its investments in joint venture
operations. Under this method, NOVA Chemicals records, on a line-by-line basis within its financial statements and notes,
its pro-rata share of the joint venture's assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses and cash flows.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (PP&E)

NOVA Chemicals’ PP&E consists primarily of land and buildings for producing petrochemicals and manufacturing
equipment. PP&E are valued at historical cost. Financing costs incurred during major construction are capitalized as
part of the cost of the asset until the asset is available for use. Costs related to turnaround activities are capitalized and
amortized over the period remaining to the next turnaround activity, while maintenance and repair costs are expensed
as incurred.

The Corporation periodically reviews the carrying value of PP&E for impairment when circumstances indicate an asset’s
value may not be recoverable. If it is determined that an asset's undiscounted cash flows are less than its carrying value,
the asset is written down to its fair value,

DEPRECIATION

Buildings are depreciated on a straight-line basis over twenty years and equipment is depreciated on a straight-line basis
generally between three and twenty years, depending on the type of equipment. These rates are designed to write-off
assets to their salvage values over their estimated useful lives.

DEFERRED START-UP COSTS

Costs associated with start-up activities on constructed plants are deferred from the date of mechanical completion of the
facifities until the date the Corporation is ready to commence commercial service. Any revenues earned during this period
are recorded as a reduction in deferred start-up costs. These costs are amortized on a straight-line basis over a five-year
period, commencing on the date of commercial service.
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LEASES

Leases are classified as operating or capital depending upon the terms and conditions of the contracts. Leases that
transfer substantially all the benefits and risks of ownership to the Corporation are accounted for as capital leases. Assets
under capital leases are amortized on a straight-line basis over the period of expected use and are classified as PP&E.
Obligations recorded under capital leases are reduced by lease payments, net of imputed interest, and are classified as
long-term debt.

INCOME TAXES

The liability method of tax allocation accounting is used. Under the liability mathod, future tax assets and liabilities are
determined based on differences between the accounting and tax basis of assets and liabilities and measured using the
substantively enacted tax rates and laws that will be in effect when the differences are expected to reversa.

Periodically, future tax assets are evaluated as to the likelihood of their realization. In instances where it is not more likely
than not that the future tax asset will be realized, a valuation allowance is recorded to reduce all or a portion of the future
tax asset to its realizable amount. Changes in the valuation allowance are recorded as a3 component of income tax
@xpense or recovery.

ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATICNS

An asset retirement obligation represents a legal obligation associated with the retirement of PP&E that is incurred upon
the acquisition, construction, development or normal operation of that long-lived asset. The Corporation recognizes asset
retirement obligations in the period in which they are incurred, if a reasonable estimate of fair value can be made. The
associated estimated asset retirement costs are capitalized as part of the carrying amount of the PP&E and depreciated
over its useful life. NOVA Chemicals’ asset retirement obligations are primarily associated with closure of certain assets
used in the chemicals manufacturing process.

EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS
Pension Plans. NOVA Chemicals sponsors both defined benefit and defined contribution pension arrangements covering
substantially all employees.

The cost of defined benefit pensions is determined using the projected benefit method prorated on employment services
and is expensed as employees provide services. Adjustments arising from plan amendments, as well as transitional
pension assets or obligations, are amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated average remaining service lifetime
(EARSL). Adjustments arising from changes in assumptions and experience gains and losses are amortized over EARSL
when the cumulative unamortized balance exceeds 10% of the greater of accrued obligations or plan assets. Gains or
losses arising from plan curtailments and settlements are recognized in the year in which they occur. In the event that
curtailments and settlements occur in the same period, curtailment accounting is performed before settlement
accounting. For purposes of calculating the expected return on plan assets, pension assets are valued at fair value.
Liabilities are measured at market discount rates that reflect the yield at the latest valuation date on a portfolio of high
quality corporate bonds of similar duration as the Corporation’s pension liabilities.

The cost of defined contribution benefits is expensed as earned by employees. NOVA Chemicals makes contributions in
accordance with all plan agreements.

Post-Retirement Benefits Other Than Pensions. In North America, NOVA Chemicals provides medical care and life
insurance benefits to eligible retirees and their dependents. Post-retirement benefit costs are expensed as the employees
provide service.

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

The Corporation uses the fair-value based method of accounting for equity-settled, stock-based compensation awards
granted to employees, such as options, where compensation expense is measured and recognized based on the fair value
of the stock-based award. Amounts ralated to compensation costs are initially credited to contributed surplus and then
transferred to common shares upon exercise of options or reinvested earnings (deficit) upon cancellation or retirement

of options.
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The Corporation uses the liability method of accounting for cash-settled, stock-based compensation awards granted to
employees, such as equity appreciation and restricted stock units. Units granted are marked to market each period based
on the value of NOVA Chemicals’ common stock as reported on the Toronto or New York Stock Exchanges, as applicable.
Changes in value are recorded in income (loss) over the service period or for vested units as such changes arise.

DEFERRED SHARE UNIT PLANS

Units issued under these plans are calculated based on annual management incentive awards or director fees. The cost of
the units earned is expensed as employees and directors provide services. Any adjustments to the value of the units a3 a
result of expected changes in NOVA Chemicals’ common stock value are amortized on a straight-fine basis over the
EARSL of individuals participating in the plans.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The treasury stock method is used to calculate diluted earnings per share. Under this method, the incremental number of
common shares outstanding for the dituted earnings per share calculation is determined assuming that the proceeds from
exercise of dilutive options are used to repurchase common shares at the average market price during the period.

SECURITIZATIONS

Accounts receivable securitization transactions are recorded as sales of assets based on the transfer of control to the
purchasers. Transactions recorded in this manner result in the removal of the sold assets from the Corporation’s balance
sheet. Interest paid, net of servicing fees, on the portfolio of sold receivables is recorded as interest expense.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

The Corporation recognizes ravenue when the earnings process is complete. This generally occurs when products are
shipped to the customer in accordance with the terms of the sales agreement; title or risk of loss has been transferred;
and pricing is fixed or determinable. The Corporation accounts for sales incentives as a reduction in revenue at the time
revenue is recorded.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
Expenditures associated with research and development activities are expensed as incurred.

INVESTMENT TAX CREDITS

The Corporation accounts for investmnent tax credits using the cost-reduction approach. Investment tax credits related to
the acquisition of assets are deducted from the related assets with depreciation calculated on the net amount. Investment
tax credits related to current expenses are included in the determination of income (loss} for the period,

COMPARATIVE FIGURES
Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the current year's presentation.

In 2007, NOVA Chemicals reclassified the current portion of stock-based compensation and pension assets for 2006 and
2005 from Deferred credits and long-term liabilities to Accounts payable and accrued liabilities and Investments and other
assets, respectively (Notes 5 and 7). For 2006 and 2005, $45 million was reclassified from Restricted cash and other assets
and Investments and other assets, respectively, to Long-term debt due within one year related to the Series A preferred
shares {Note 8).
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\3. Accounts Receivable

Deacember 31 imillions of doliars) 2007 2006
Trade™ $366 $304
Affiliate trade™ 44 4
410 308
Allowance for doubtful accounts® (3) (5}
405 303

Trada accruals™ 75 63
Recoverable taxes 14 15
Fair value of commodity-based derivatives™ 14 1
Fair value of foreign currency swaps® 1 —
Other™ 29 45
Due from affiliate™ &2 51
602 a78

Income taxes receivable [ 18
$608 $496

Carrying amounts are classified into the following categories:

December 31 (millions of dollars) 2007
Loans and receivables (Note 20) $552
Held-for-trading (Note 20) $ 15

(1) Classifind a3 loans and receivables snd carried at amortized cost which approximates fair value, See Note 20

{2) Classibad at held-for-trading and carrind at fair value, Ses Note 20.

) $30 mblion classifie<d as loans and receivables and carried st amortized cont which approximates fair valus. See Note 20.

{4) Includes advances and notes recelvable from affiliate. $60 million {2006 - $44 million) in urnsecured nates recsivable besting Intorast st 4.5% pes ennum,

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE SECURITIZATION PROGRAMS

The Corporation sells undivided interests in certain trade accounts receivable pursuant to revolving securitization transactions
in which the Corporation retains servicing responsibilities. The receivables are sold at a discount approximating the
purchaser’s financing cost of issuing commaercial paper backed by the accounts receivable. The Corporation pays a fee on
this same basis, plus a margin that varies with the Corporation’s interest coverage ratio. The sale of receivables is reflected
as a reduction of accounts receivable and in operating cash flows. As the purchaser receives collections on the previously
sold interests, new accounts receivable are sold by the Corporation to a maximum amount equal to the lesser of eligible
receivables or $350 million (2006 - $350 million and 2005 - $300 million). Recourse on sold receivables is limited to the
receivables and certain reserves provided to cover credit losses and dilution {such as discounts, rebates, and other non-
cash reductions). During 2007, there were no changes to the securitization programs’ size or expiration dates. During
2006, the Corporaticn amended its securitization programs to increase the size of the facilities from $300 million to $350
million. During 2005, the Corporation amended its securitization programs to extend the maturity to June 2010 and to
increase the size of the facilities from $250 million to $300 million.

Information regarding the Corporation’s securitization programs is as follows:

December 31 (millions of doliars, unless otherwise noted) 2007 2008 2005
Amount sold at end of year $264 $247 $153
Loss, dilution and other reserves (as a % of eligible accounts receivable) 23% 22% 16%
Intarest expense, net of servicing fees $ 20 $ 14 $ 8

One of the Corporation’s securitization programs involves the use of a special purpose entity (SPE). In that program, the
Corporation sells certain trade accounts receivable to the SPE, which then sells interests in such receivables to a purchaser.
The SPE is legally separate from the Corporation. The assets of the SPE (including the receivables transferred to It) are not
available to creditors of the Corporation, and the transferred receivables are not legally an asset of the Corporation.
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Information regarding the cash flows between the Corporation and the SPE are as follows:

December 31 {millions of dollars} 2007 20068 BOGS
Proceeds from (repayment of) new securitizations $ (23 $ (2 $ 3
Proceeds from collections reinvested in revolving period securitizations™ $1,800 $1.993 $1.933
Servicing fees received® s 2 $ 2 s 2
Other cash flows received™ $ 598 $ 530 § 567
(1) Coliections received by the SPE on accounts receivabls previously sold are usad 10 purchasa Interests in new accounts receivable.

(2) Servicing fwes are ickered to be | ial on an annual bashs and a1 such ars recorded &3 recwived.

(3) Sales proceeds from trade recalvables that e ineligibla under the terms of the banks securitization sgraement due 10 item such 83 age.

In 2006, the INEOS NOVA joint venture (formerly NOVA Innovene) entered inta an accounts receivable securitization
program for the sale of its European trade receivables to a maximum of 120 million eures. This program expires in
November 2011. The INEQS NOVA joint venture has no right to any cash collected from the sold receivables and control
of the accounts receivable has been effectively transferred to the purchaser; therefore, neither the receivables nor any
obligation to the purchaser is reflected in NOVA Chemicals' Consolidated Financial Statements. In 2007, NOVA Chemicals
changed its accounting for its interest in the European accounts receivable securitization program to reflect that the
accounts receivable securitization transactions are recorded as sales of receivables and not a financing arrangement. To
properly reflect this change, NOVA Chemicals restated the 2006 Consolidated Balance Sheets by decreasing Cash and
cash equivalents by $22 million and Accounts receivable by $11 million and decreasing Long-term debt by £33 million.

Information regarding NOVA Chemicals’ share of INEQS NOVA's securitization program is as follows:

December 31 {millions of surcs} 2007 2004
Amount sold at end of year 37 9
Interest expense ' 5 —

\4. Inventories

December 31 !mil'!ions of dollars) 2007 2008
Materials and supplies $ 5 $ 48
Raw materials 474 325
Finished goods 357 296

$882 $669

\5. Investments and Other Assets

Dacember 31 (millions of dollars) 2007 EOOS
Investmants™ $ 30 $ 33
Advances receivable from affiliate™* 15 13
Other assets™ - 132 87

$177 $133

(1) Includes an investmant of $15 milion (2004 - $15 million) In an affillated special purposs eniity with respect to the accounts receivable securitization program described in
Noto 3. Alsa inclucles s 511 million (2008 — $11 million} investment in sEnergy, classified a3 available-forsale securities with no active market and recorded at cost; $4 million
investment in common shams of Envirokars Tech Inc. (2006 ~ 35 million), dassified 83 available-for-ssle securities and recorded at falr market value; snd other miscellsnsous
rvastments classilied o avallsble-for-sale securities with no active market and recorded at cost.

! 12) $5 millign (2006 - $5 million} of the advances is subordinated to certsin notes recetvable.
(3) Classified a3 loans and receivables and carried st amortized cost which approximates {ais value. Sea Note 20
{4) See schedule of Other Assaty on page 84,
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OTHER ASSETS
Other assets are comprised of the following:

December 31 {millions of doflars) 2007 2006
Deferred debt issue costs™ $ - $14
Deferred start-up costs® 27 30
Fair value of commodity-based derivatives™ 7 -
Pension asset 54 20
Note receivable'™ 13 —
Other assets and deferred costs n 23
$132 $87

Carrying amounts are classified into the following categories:
Dacember 31 {millions of dollars} 2007
Held-for-trading {Note 20} $7
Loans and receivables (Note 20) $28
Available-for-sale (Note 20) $15
(1) Dabt issue costs are smortized on & Rraight-line basis over the torma of the related debt instrumaents, In 2007, certain deferred debt discount and issusnce costs that were

previously induded in Othar asets sre now reported a3 a reduction of the respective detn cbligations and recognized in i wsing the eflective interest rate method.

Sew Notwe 2,

{2) Start-up costs consist of the unamortized portion of costs incurred in 2004 and 2005 associated with the start-up of the Conunas facility sfter the maintenance tumanound and
sxpansion and modernization project, as well as the unamortized portion of aparsting costs, net of incidental revenues, Incurred during the pre-aparsting pedod on
constructed sisets a1 Jofire, Albertas,

3] Clpasified] a3 he'ld-for-trading and carried at fair valua. See Note 20.

{4) Note receivable in connection with the sale of the Chesapeake, Virginia, facility in 2007, The note bean interest st 8.75%, requires a balloon payment in November )12 and is

d by the Chetapeske, Virginia, facility.
{5) Chassified a3 loars and recaivables and camied st amontized cost which appraxi txir value. Sew Note 20,

JOINT VENTURES

On Oct. 1, 2005, the Corporation contributed its European styrenic polymer assets, comprised of manufacturing facilities,
accounts receivable and inventory, to the NOVA Innovene joint venture with Innovene (now INEOS) in exchange for a 50%
interest in the joint venture. The joint venture produces styrenic polymers from NOVA Chemicals’ contributed plants and
INEQS' contributed plants. NOVA Chemicals accounted for its contribution to the joint venture as an exchange of 50% of its
contributed non-monetary productive assets for a 50% interest in similar productive assets of INEOS. Consequently, the
exchange was recorded at the carrying value of the assets given up, with no gain or loss recognized.

On Oct. 1, 2007, NOVA Chemicals” expanded its existing 50:50 European joint venture with INEQS (renamed INEQOS NOVA
joint venture), to include NOVA Chemicals’' STYRENIX assets and other North American styrenic polymer assets and INEQS'
North American styrene monomer and styrenic polymer assets. The Corporation contributed its STYRENIX property, plant
and eguipment with a book value of $250 million and other North American styrenic polymer assets and working capital
with a book value of $150 million to the joint venture in exchange for a 50% interest in the joint venture. The joint venture
produces styrenic polymers from NOVA Chemicals’ contributed plants and INEOQS' contributed plants, The exchange of 50%
of its contributed non-monetary productive assets for a 50% interest in similar assets of INEOS was recorded at the carrying
value of the assets given up, with no gain or loss recognized.

Prior to expanding the INEQS NOVA joint venture, NOVA Chemicals sold to the European joint venture 50% of its styrene
monomer requirements and certain styrenic polymer products for distribution in Europe. During 2007, 2006 and 2005,
NOVA Chemicals recognized revenues of $207 million, $254 million and $60 million, respectively, from the sale of these
products to the European joint venture.

Subsequent to expanding the INEOS NOVA joint venture, NOVA Chemicals sells benzene and ethylene to the joint venture
for use in manufacturing styrene monomer. Ouring 2007, NOVA Chemicals recognized revenues of $76 million from the sale
of these products to the joint venture.
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NOVA Chemicals has provided a guarantee of $25 million to a financial institution to secure various obligations of the
INEOS NOVA joint venture.

In 2006, the Corporation formed a 50:50 joint venture with Dietrich Metal Framing (a Worthington Industries company)
called Accelerated Building Technologies, LLC. This joint venture develops and manufactures durable, energy-saving
composite construction products and systems using NOVA Chemicals’ expandable polystyrene (EPS) technalogy and steel.
Each party contributed cash and/or equipment of $1 million to form the joint venture,

On Oct. 1, 2005, the Corporation and Grupo IDESA formed a 50:50 joint venture in Mexico called NOVIDESA,
S.A. de C.V. The joint venture produces EPS from an existing Grupo IDESA facility for construction and packaging
applications in the growing Mexican market. It also produces applications such as insulating concrete forms (ICFs)
and distributes INEOS NOVA's solid polystyrene in Mexico.

In addition to its interests in recently formed joint ventures, NOVA Chemicals owns a 50% interest in the Joffre E3 ethylene
plant, a 50% interest in LRM Industries, LLC {a 50:50 joint venture with Envirokare Composite Corp. (a subsidiary of
Envirokare Tech Inc.) and a 20% interest in a cogeneration facility located at Joffre, Alberta.

The following is summarized financial information for NOVA Chemicals’ interests in its joint ventures:

year ended December 31 (millions of dollars) 2007 2008 200D
Revenua $ 1,480 $ 1,099 $518
Operating expenses, depreciation and income taxes {1,430) (1,043} (499}
Net income $ S0 $ 56 $19
Decambar 31 (millions of doliars} 2007 2008

Current assets $ 685 $ 234

Plant, property and equipment and other assets 829 547

Current liabilities (548) (181)

Long-term Yabilities (53) (68)

Venturers' equity $ 93 $ 532

year ended December 31 (millians of dollars) 2007 2008 2005
Cash inflows (outflows) from:

Operating activities $ 139 $ a9 $127
Financing activities $ {48) $ (10 $(32)
Investing activities $ {8) $ 2 $ (3}

\ 8. Property, Plant and Equipment

Decembar 31 {millions of dollars) 2007 2008'"
Plant and equipment $ 6,382 $ 6,268
Assets under capital lease 24 20
Land 26 29
Under construction®™ 195 356
6,627 6,6M

Accumulated depreciation™ (3,580) (3.952)

$ 3,047 $2.719
{1} See Nete B for disoussion of the coflatera! provided under the itted cracit facility.

(2) Assets under construction are nol deprecisted untll such tme a3 commercial production is schisved.

{3} Accurmilated depreciation for assets uncer capital lesse a1 Dac. 31, 2007, was $8 million (Dec. 31, 2004 - £4 million). Accumulated depracistion for plant and squipment at
Dec. 31, 2007, was $3.572 million {Dec. 31, 2006 = $3,948 milllon),

{4) Swe Noto 11 for discussion of impairment charga related te plant and equipment, which was recordad a3 an increase in accurmilated depreciation in 2008,
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During 2004, the Corporation sold its 100% interest in an ethylene delivery system in Alberta and entered into a pipeline
transportation agreement to lease back the pipeline. Net cash proceeds of $19 million were received from the sale,
resulting in a gain of $19 million. The gain realized on the sale has been deferred (see Note 9) and is being amortized to
income on a straight-line basis over the term of the pipeline transportation agreement, which expires in 2016.

\7. Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities

Dacember 31 {millions of doflars) 2007 2006

Accounts payable
Trade™ $ 632 $596
Accrued taxes 15 4
Other™ 34 18
681 623

Accrued liabilities
Interest™ 51 N
Dividends™ . 8 7
Pension and post-retirement benefit obligations 26 4
Equity appreciation plan obligations {Note 11) 27 24
Deferred share unit plan obligations {Note 12) 22 25
Restricted stock unit plan obligations {Note 11} 7 8
Accrued mark-to-market fiability on equity derivative™® 19 -
Fair value of commodity-based derivatives™ 1 1
Deferred revenue 17 5
Deferred gains on interest rate swaps™ — 2
Deferred gain on sale of asset™ 3 2
Site clean-up and restoration™ -~ 3
Advances and notes due to affiliate™ 32 ?
; Notes payabfens 43 39
' Trade accruals and other accrued lisbilities™ 226 200
482 160
$1,163 3983

Carrying amounts are classified into the following categories:

December 31 (millions of dollars) £007
Other Liabilities {Note 20} $1,026
Held-for—trading {Note 20} $ 20

1) Clazstind 3s othar Sebilities snd carried st amortired coat, which spproximates fair value, Ses Note 20,

(2) Classified a3 held-for-trading and caried st [air value. S Note 20,

{3 0 2007, equity detivitive was reclsssified from Deferred credits and long-tenm lisbilities 1 Accounty payzidle and sccnurd liabiliges. See Note 9.

{%) Represants the portion of deferred gains realized on liquidation of floaring-{or-fixed interest rate Fwaps to be recognized wittdn ore year {see Note 20), In 2007, deferred gaina
on interest rate swaps have been raclassified to Long-term dalst {see Notes 2 and 8).

{5 Represants the current portion of deferred gains realized on the 2003 sale of & SO% interest in Fort Saskatchewan Ethylens Storage Limited Partnership. The deferred gain s
being recognized in income {loss) on a straight-line basis over the 20-year storage conract sniered into immadiately Tallowing the sle.

(4] Incluces $43 million (2004 — $39 milkon) of umsocured notes payable, bearing interest at 4.5% per annum,
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8 Long-Term Debt

December 31 {millions of doffars, unless otherwise noted) 2007 2008
Weighted- Weightad-
Averngo Average
Year-End Year-End
Interest Intereat
Maturity Debt Rats __Debt Rats
Revolving credit facilities™ 2008 - 2011 $ 106 71% $ 110 7.7%
Unsecured debentures and notes? 2008 - 2028 1,278 7.4% 1,240 7.6%
Medium-term notes™ 2009 250 7.4% 250 7.4%
Preferred shares™ 2008 126 6.9% 133 8.1%
Other unsecured debt® 2008 - 2020 40 7.8% 46 7.6%
Transaction costs and other” {6 - — —
1,794 1,77%
Less amounts due within one year (254) {197)
$1,540 $1,582
Carrying amounts are classified into the following category:
December 31 {millions of doflars} 2007
Other liabilities (Note 20) $1,782

1) Classifind a3 other liabilites lexchuding obligations under capital lesses 2007 - $18 million) and carried st smortized cost. See Note 20.

') Compasad primarily of non-recourss joint venture secured dabt (2007 - $22 milkon, 2006 - $24 million), whereby security is limited w0 NOVA Chemicals' net imeeistmaent in the
Joffre co-generation joint venturs, and obligations under capitsl leases [2007 - $18 million st 6.85%, 2004 - $22 million st 7.57X). The non-recourss joint vantune debn &

classified as cthar lizbilities and carried at amortized cost. See Note 20,

*3) Certain defarred debt discount and issuance costs and deferred gains on interest swaps have been rectasaified on a prospective basis in accordance with CICA Section 3855.

Sas Note 2.

UNSECURED DEBENTURES AND NOTES

The remaining debentures and notes are unsecured borrowings, which rank pari passu in all respects with other unsecured

and unsubordinated debt of the Corporation.

Terms of the outstanding unsecured debentures and notes are as follows:

Decamber 31 {millions of doliars, uniess otherwise noted) 2007 2006
Maturity Stated Intercst Rato (%)
200" 7.85 § 253 $ 215
20122 6.5 400 400
20139 Floating™ 400 400
2023% 7.875 100 100
2028% 7.25 125 125
$1.278 $1,240

1) $250 mitlion Canacian; callahls at the sption of the Corporation at any time.

12} Calable at the option of the Corporation st any Lime,

3) UBOR + 3.125%; 7.8625% a1 Dec. 31, 2007 (8.502% at Dec. 31, 2006).

‘&) Callable at the option of the Corporstion on or after Sep. 15, 2005.

'S} Redasmable st the option of the hoiders on Aug. 15, 2008, thus dassified a3 current debt.
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REVOLVING CREDIT FACILITIES

The Corporation has $590 million of revolving aredit facilities which expire on the following dates: $100 million on Mar. 31,
2008; $465 million on Mar. 20, 2010; $325 million on June 30, 2010; and $100 million on Mar. 20, 2011. As of Dec. 31, 2007,
NOVA Chemicals had utilized $156 million of the facilities, of which $50 million was in the form of letters of credit. The
$100 million facility expiring on Mar. 31, 2008, and the $325 million facility are governed by the same financial covenants.
The remaining $100 million facility and the $45 million facility have no financial covenants assaciated with them.

On Dec. 31, 2006, NOVA Chemicals negotiated an amendment to its financial covenants governing the $100 million facility
expiring on Mar. 31, 2008, and the $325 million facility, as well as the U.S. and Canadian accounts receivable securitization
programs and the total return swap. The amendment allows for an exemption, in determining Shareholders’ Equity, of
any write-down of the STYRENIX assets up to $950 million and for the Debt-to-Capitalization Ratio financial covenant to be
raised from 35% to 60%. Both amendments are in effect until Mar. 30, 2008.

At Dec. 31, 2007, NOVA Chemicals was in compliance with alf required financial covenants under the credit facilities.
There were no events of default during 2007.

$1.2 billion (2006 and 2005 - $1.2 billion) in net book value of assets in Canada, including real estate, is pledged as
collateral for the $325 million facility. The remaining credit facilities are unsecured.

As a result of the STYRENIX asset write-down in 2004, the amount of secured debt permitted under the terms of NOVA
Chemicals” public indentures was reduced. Accordingly, the secured revolving credit facility was reduced from $375 million
to $325 million, effective Feb. 5, 2007, The remaining three unsecured revolving credit facilities were not affected.

MEDIUM-TERM NOTES
The notes are unsecured borrowings ranking pari passu with all other unsecured and unsubordinated debt of the
Carporation. The $250 million 7.4% notes are due in April 2009 and are redeemable by the Corporation at any time.

SERIES A PREFERRED SHARES

In connection with the acquisition of styrenics assets from Huntsman Corporation in 1998, a subsidiary of the Corperation
issued retractable preferred shares with a liquidation preference of $198 million as partial consideration. Holders of the
retractable preferred shares originally had the right, on or after Apr. 1, 2001, to exchange the shares (a retraction) for
NOVA Chemicals' common shares (plus preferred shares if the market value of such common shares was less than $198
million). In September 2005, the terms of the retractable preferred shares were amended to eliminate this right. in
connection with this amendment, the retractable preferred shares were redesignated as Series A preferred shares.
Additionally, in December 2005, the dividend rate was reduced from 2% to 0.5%.

NOVA Chemicals has the right to repurchase the Series A preferred shares at any time; however, any such repurchase may
obligate NOVA Chemicals to pay an early termination fee under the terms of the total retum swap discussed below.

NOVA Chemicals also entered into a total retun swap with respect to the Series A preferred shares, which is scheduled o
terminate on Qct. 31, 2008. On the initial closing date of the total return swap in 2001, the counterparty through its
hedge providers purchased the Series A preferred shares from Huntsman Comporation for $191 million plus accrued
unpaid dividends. NOVA Chemicals subsequently posted $45 million of cash collateral with the counterparty that is held
by the counterparty as a prepayment against settlement. Accordingly, the equity notional amount of the Series A
preferred shares is now sat at $126 million and on settlement of the total return swap at the end of the term, NOVA
Chemicals will owe the counterparty $126 million. At Dec. 31, 2007 and 2006, the Series A preferred shares were
classified as current debt.

Under the terms of the total return swap: (i} the counterparty pays NOVA Chemicals the total return on the Series A
preferred shares (periodic dividends plus positive changes in the equity value of Series A preferred shares) upon
termination of the swap; and (i) NOVA Chemicals pays the counterparty a spread to LIBOR, as well as any negative
changes in the equity value of the Series A preferred shares upon termination of the swap, Because of its short-term
nature and immaterial balance sheet effect, the derivative feature of the total return swap is reported as part of the Series
A preferred shares and is not accounted for separately. All periodic dividends, changes in equity value of the Series A
preferred shares and interest payments are changed to eamings as incurred.
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if the equity value of the Series A preferred shares decreases by approximately 24% or more at any time, NOVA Chemicals
is required to post maintenance collateral. Once the margin-posting requirement is triggered, if the equity value of the
Series A preferred shares increases by 5% or more, any excess margin may be returned to NOVA Chemicals. Changes in
the equity value of the Series A preferred shares during the term of the swap will be determined based on changes in the
average price of the outstanding 6.5% Senior Notes due 2012, issued by NOVA Chemicals. As of Dec. 31, 2007, NOVA
Chemicals has posted $65 million as maintenance collateral and has legal right of offset against the obligation. The Dec. 31,
2006 balance sheet has been restated to reflect such offset.

if NOVA Chemicals defaults on other debt with an aggregate principal amount of $25 million or more, or the closing price
of the Corporation’s common shares is $12.00 U.S, or less, and upon certain other events, the counterparty would have
the right to sell the Series A preferred shares to a third party and terminate the swap. NOVA Chemicals would then owe
the counterparty the difference between the actual sale price received by the counterparty and $126 million ($191 million
fair value less $65 million posted as cash collateral which legally offsets the obligation).

REPAYMENT REQUIREMENTS

Repayment requirements in respect of long-term debt are as follows:

{millions of doflars)

2008 : $ 254

2009 . 253

2010 n?

2041 48

22 408

Thereafter 520

$ 1,800

INTEREST EXPENSE

year ended Decembaer 31 (millions of doflars) 2007 2008 2005

Interest on long-term debt $142 $146 $117

Interest on bank loans, securitizations and other 44 30 14

184 176 131

Interest capitalized during plant construction (1) 3 (14}

Interest income {10} () (4}
$175 $168 $13
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\__9- Deferred Credits and Long-Term Liabilities

December 31 {millions of dolfars} 2007 2006
Deferred credits
Defarred income s 21 $ 29
Deferred gain on sale of investments™ 38 35
Deferred gain on sale of asset® 15 14
Deferred gains on interest rate swaps™ - 2
Deferred gain on sale of railcars 7
Other deferred credits 4
85 94
Long-term liabilities
Pension and post-retirement benefit obligations (Note 16) 98 19
Accrued mark-to-market liability on equity derivative (Note 20y® - 35
Asset retirement obligations (Note 17) 23 20
Restricted stock unit plan obligations (Note 11) 19 &
Fair value of commodity-based derivatives™ - 2
Other long-term liabilities* 40 57
180 239
$265 $333

Carrying amounts are classified into the following category:

Dacember 31 (millions of dollars) 2007

Other liabilities (Note 20} $ 40

{1) Reprasents the long-tsrm portion of deferred gains realized on the 2003 sale of » 50% interest in Fort Saskatchewan Ethylene Storsge Limited Partnership, Tha defermed gain is
baing recognized in income (loss) on » straight-line basis over the 20-yesr storage contract entered inte immedistely following the sale.

(2} Reprasents the long-tarm portian of a defermed gain realized on the sale of an sthylene pipefine system, Ses Note 6.

(3) Represents the long-term portion of deferred gains realized on liquidation of floating-for.fixed interest rate swags. See Note 20. In 2007, delerred gaira on interest rate swips
have been reclassified to Long-term debit. Sae Note 2,

(4) 1n 2007, the equity derivative was rechassified to Accounts payable and accrued liabilities because it expires in November 2008, Sex Mote 7.
15) Classified 23 held-for-rading and canied at fair value. Sew Note 20,
{4) Classifiad as other Gabilities and carried st amortized cost, which appraximates fir value. See Note 20.

\10. Common Shares

Shares Reserved For Future Issue

Dacember 31 (numbar of shares) 2007 2008 2005
Under the employee incentive stock option plan™® 7,185,096 7,678,352 7,874,725
Under the director compensation plan 47,800 47,800 47,800

7,232,896 7,726,152 7,922,525

1) Under the employss incentive stoxk option plan, options are outstanding to officers and amployess 1o purchase 2,026,041 shares at prices ranging from $24.35 to
$58.24 (Canadisn dollar TSX pricing) and 1,228,526 shares st prices ranging from $31.09 to $47.00 (US doltar NYSE pricing) par share, with sxpirstion dates bareeen
July 3, 2008, and Feb. 8, 2017. A tota! of 3,130,529 common shares ars ressrvad but unallocatsd. See Note 11 for further details reganding the plan,

{2} A total of 13 million common shares was spproved by shareholders for insuance under the smployes incentive stock option plan, No changes have been made since
this approval,
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NET INCOME (LOSS) PER SHARE
The following table outlines the calculation of basic and diluted net income (loss) and net income (loss) per common share:

yest ended December 31 (millions of doflars, 2007 2007 2006 2006 £2000 2005
except per share amounts) Basic Diluted Hagio Diluted Baslo Diluted
Net income {loss) $ 347 $ 347 $ (703} $(703) \ $101) $ (101}
Weighted-average common shares outstanding 82.9 829 B2.5 82.5 B2.6 82.6
Add effect of dilutive items:™

Stock options —_ 0.6 —_ _— — —
Weighted average common shares for EPS calculation 82.9 83.5 82.5 825 82.4 82.6
Net income {loss) per common share $4.19 $4.16 $(8.52) $(8.52) $1.22) $01.22)

[1) No stock optiorns wary excluded from the compuiation of diuted ramings per shere for the yesr ended Dec. 31, 2007, A total of 3.5 milllan and 4.8 million stock optians have
bean sxtiuded from the computation of diluted samings par shara for the years ended Dac. 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively, ss thair impact would not be diknive. As of Sep.
30, 2005, the Series A prafared shares are 5o longer convertible to NOVA Chemicals’ common shares and, therafors, are no longer » difutive factar in the samings par thare
calculation. No restatements wers mada to prior years.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS PLAN

In May 1999, NOVA Chemicals' shareholders approved a shareholder rights plan where one right was issued
for each outstanding common share. The rights remain attached to the shares and are not exercisable until the
commencement or announcement of a takeover bid for NOVA Chemicals’ common shares or until a person
acquires 20% or more of NOVA Chemicals’ common shares. The plan expires in May 2009.

\11. Stock-Based Compensation

In 2006, the Corporation adopted accounting recommendations related to stock-based awards granted to employees who
are eligible for retirement at the grant date or will be eligible before the end of the vesting period. Application of this
recommendation results in acceleration of the recognition of stock-based compensation expenses (see Nota 2).

|
EMPLOYEE INCENTIVE STOCK OFPTION PLAN
The Corporation may grant options to its employees for up to 13 million common shares. During 2005, the Corporation
amended its Employee Incentive Stock Option Plan such that options may be granted which are exercisable based on the
Corporation's New York Stock Exchange {NYSE) common share price. Accordingly, the exercise price of an aption may equal
the closing market price on the Toronto Stock Exchange (TSX) or the NYSE of the Corporation’s common stock on the date
of grant. Options may be exercised over a 10-year period, and generally 25% of the options vest at the grant date with
further vesting of 25% in each of the next three years.

All options granted since Jan. 1, 2002, are accounted for using the fair-value method. The fair value of stock options are
expensed over their vesting period and reflected in earnings as the related services are provided, with a corresponding
amount recorded to contributed surplus, On exercise of options for common shares, amounts previously recorded to
contributed surplus for compensation costs are transferrad to the common share account. On retirement or cancellation
of options, amounts previously recorded to contributed surplus for compensation costs are transferred to reinvested
earnings (deficit). The Corporation uses the Black-Scholes option-pricing model to calculate the fair value of options at the
date of grant.

Options may be settled by issuance of commeon shares or retired, whereby the option premium (the differential between
the market price and the exercise price) is paid in cash. Amounts paid are recorded as a charge to reinvested earnings
{deficit), net of related tax benefits. Options also may be settled periodically as share appreciation rights (SARs), whereby
the option premium is settled by issuance of common shares. Options settled by issuance of shares are cancelled,
whereas options settled by other means are returned to the unallocated pool of options available for issue.
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A summary of the status of the Corporation’s employee incentive stock option plan for options based on TSX pricing, as

of Dec. 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, and changes during the years then ended is presented below:

rear ended December 31 2007 2000 2005
Weighted- Weighted- Wotghtad-
Averago Awverago Average
Exerclse Exercizs Exorcine
Price Prioe Price
Optiona  (Canadian $) Options  (Cansdlan §) Optiona  (Canadian §)
Cutstanding at beginning of year 4,286,234 $29.48 4,667,898 $28.69 5,849,131 $27.95
Granted 97,200 $36.69 232,059 £38.11 9,450 $58.14
Exercised - settled in shares (357,683) $25.25 {129.007) $23.70 {570,060) $26.93
Exercised - ratired for cash (670,781) $29.28 {259,003) $27.84 (469,091) $29.21
Exercised - settled as SARs™ {507.221) $28.03 (179,783} $23.93 {218,219) $24.80
Cancelled {21,708) $43.19 (45,928) $39.48 {15,213) $29.15
Qutstanding at end of year 2,826,041 $30.47 4,286,234 $29.48 4,667,898 $28.69
Exercisable at end of year 2,640,162 $29.84 4,043,465 $28.83 4,249,162 $28.18

{1} tn 2007, 135,577 shares werw iszued 10 settle options eaecised a3y SAR (2004 - 67,368 and 2005 - 124,610).

The following table summarizes information about employee incentive stock options, based on TSX pricing, outstanding

at Dec. 31, 2007:
Options Qutatanding Options Bxercisablo
Weightad-
Average Welghtad- Weighted-
Remaining Average Average
Number Contractual Exercise Price Number Exercise Price
Range of Exercise Prices (Canadian 8) Outstanding Life {(years) (Conadian §) Exerciaahls  (Canndian 8)
$26.35 -$28.05 1,661,170 2.6 $26.17 1,661,170 $26.17
$30.75 - $58.24 1,164,871 5.3 $36.59 978,992 $36.07
2,826,041 2,640,162

A summary of the status of the Corporation’s employee incentive stock option plan, for options based on NYSE pricing, as

of Dec. 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, and changes during the years then ended is presented below:

yaar ended December 31 2007 2006 20086
Walghtod- Welghted- Woightod-
Average Averagoe Average
Exercise Exerciss Exercise
Prioce Price Prioe
Options (U.3. §) Options (U.5. §) Options (U.B. 8)
Outstanding‘ at beginning of year 1,192,463 $38.60 439,713 $46.78 - $ -
Granted 76,900 $31.05 775,200 $33.95 441,300 $456.78
Exercised — settled in shares - 5 — — s — {497) £47.00
Exercised - retired for cash {12,011) $33.57 —_ $ — _ $ —
Cancelled (28,826) $39.25 {22,450} $38.44 (1,100} $47.00
Outstanding at end of year 1,228,526 $38.16 1,192,463 $38.560 439,713 $46.78
Exercisable at end of year 711,965 $39.60 428,538 $40.63 111,885 $46.78
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The following table summarizes information about employee incentive stock options, based on NYSE pricing, outstanding
at Dec. 31, 2007:

yaar anded December 31 Optlons Outstanding Options Exervisable
Welghtad-

Average Welghtad- Weighted-

Ramaining Averags Avorngo

Number  Contractual Excrvise Price Number Exerciss Price

of Exeroise Pricea (U.8. §) QOutstanding Life (years) {UB. §) Exsrcisshle (U.B. §)

$31.05 - 547.00 1,228,526 7.8 $38.16 711,945 $39.60

In 2007, 2004 and 2005, the Corporation recognized total compensation cost of $2 million, $9 miltion and $8 million,
respectively, for stock-based employee compensation awards.

The fair value of each stock option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model
with the following weighted-average assumptions used for stock options granted:

Weightad-Average Assumptions 2007 2008 2005
Expected dividend yield (%) 1.1 1.3 0.7
Expected volatility (%) 33.6 3341 NS
Risk-free interest rate (%) 4.4 4.5 38
Expected life (years) 4.0 4.0 4.0
' Fair value of options grantad during the year (U.5. $) $ 9.3 $10.0 $13.4
| EQUITY APPRECIATION PLAN

The Corporation has an equity appreciation plan in which units are granted to employees. The redemption price of a unit
is determined by the closing market price on the NYSE of the Corporation’s common shares on the date of grant. Units
may be redeemed for cash over a 10-year pericd, and generally 25% of the units vest at the grant date with further
vesting of 25% in each of the next three years. In accordance with EIC 162 {see Note 2), the stock-based compensation
expense is accelerated for units granted to employees who are eligible for retirement at the grant date or will be eligible
before the end of the vesting period. The value of a unit on tha redemption date is the difference between the closing
price of the Corporation’s common shares on that date and the redemption price.

At Dec. 31, 2007, the mark-to-market value of the vested units was approximately $27 million (2006 ~ $24 million). The
entire liability was classified as current as of Dec. 31, 2007 and 2006.
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A summary of the status of the Corporation’s equity appreciation plan as of Dec. 31, 2007, 2004 and 2005, and changes

during the years then ended is presented below:

year ended Dacember 31 2007 2008 RDOS
Welghted- Waighted- Weighted-
Averngo Average Average
Redemption Rodemption Redemption
Price Price Price
Equity Appreciation Units Units (G.5. 8) Units {UB.$) Unita (0.8.8)
Outstanding at beginning of year 3,505,591 $21.20 3,618,678 $21.18 3,801,143 $21.08
Granted — $ - ' -— $ — 9.000 $30.59
Redeemed (930,514) $18.78 (109,823} $20.26 (190,040} $19.69
Cancelled (725) $27.%0 (3,264) $27.90 {1.425) $24.77
Outstanding st end of year 2,574,352 $22.08 3,505,591 $21.20 3,618,678 $21.18
Exercisable at end of year 2,574,352 $22.08 3,276,259 $20.73 2,786,063 $20.54

The following table summarizes information about equity appreciation units outstanding at Dec. 31, 2007:

Units Outstanding Unlts Exsreizable
Welghtad- Weighted- Welghted-
Avarage Average Avarags
Remaining  Redemption Rodemption
Number  Contractual Prico Number Price :
Range af Rademption Prices (0.8, §) QOutstanding Life (years) {U.B. §) Exercisable (UB. §)
$17.42-%21.72 1,741,675 3.9 $19.33 1,741,675 $19.33
$23.49 - $30.59 832,677 8.1 $27.82 832,677 $27.82
2,574,352 2,574,352

RESTRICTED STOCK UNIT PLAN

The Restricted $tock Unit Plan is 2 phantom stock plan wherein the value of a restricted stock unit {RSU) is determined by
the value of the Corporation’s commeon shares on the vesting date and is paid to employees in cash or open market
shares at the Corporation’s discretion, The value of an RSU is determined using the NYSE price for U.S. residents and the
TSX price for residents of all other countries. Generally, the units vest and proceeds are distributed three years from the
grant date. The value of any common share dividends declared during the vesting period is credited to each RSU
account. The value of the RSUs is expensed over the vesting period and is marked to market.

A summary of the status of the Corporation’s restricted stock unit plan as of Dec. 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, and changes
during the years then ended is presented below:

yeor ended Dacemnber 31 2007 20068 £005
Restricted Stock Units Units Units Units
Qutstanding at beginning of year 591,377 417,730 196,178
Granted 554,850 231,470 229,395
Dividend equivalents credited 10,127 6,460 3,385
Redeemed {131,006} {57.838) (2,403)
Cancelled {30,368} (6,447) {1,825)
Qutstanding at end of year 994,980 591,377 417,730

The mark-to-market liability for the RSU plan was $26 million at Dec. 31, 2007 (2006 — $14 million). Of the total liability,
$7 million (2006 - $8 million) was classified as current.
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\_12. Deferred Share Unit Plans

Under the Corporation’s Deferred Share Unit Plans (DSUP), key employees and non-employee directors may elect on
an annual basis to receive all or a portion of their management incentive award or fees, respectively, in deferred share units
(DSUs).

The amount of the management incentive award that a key employee elects to have participate in the DSUP will be
converted to an equivalent number of DSUs based on the average closing price, on the TSX for Canadian employees
and on the NYSE for U.S. employees, of NOVA Chemicals’ common shares for the last five consecutive trading days of
the month of December prior to the performance period.

The amount of fees that a non-employee director elects to have participate in the DSUP will be converted to an
equivalent number of DSUs based on the average closing price, on the TSX or NYSE, of NOVA Chemicals” common
shares for the last five consecutive trading days preceding the end of each fiscal quarter in which the fees are eamed.
The units are redeemable upon retirement or termination from the Corporation {see Note 7).

A summary of the status of the Corporation’s deferred share unit plans as of Dec. 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, and changes
during the years ended on those dates is presented below:

year endod December 31 2007 2008 £005
Weightad- Welghtsd- ’ Weightad.
Average Averaga Average
Price Prioe Price
Employes Defarred Share Unita Units (U.S. §) Units s e Unita (U.8. 8)
Qutstanding at beginning of year 547,643 $19.90 520,885 $19.18 508,593 $18.75
Earned 179,249 $28.07 26,758 $34.04 12,292 $36.82
Redeemed {162,191} $23.65 — 5 — -— $ —
Outstanding at end of year 564,701 $21.42 547,643 $19.90 520,885 $19.18
yoar ended December 31 2007 2006 £005
Weighted- Welghted: Weighted-
Average Average Averagn
Price Price Prico
Non-Employee Directors Deferred Share Units Unite  {Canadian §) Units  (Canadian §) Unita {Canadian §)
Outstanding at beginning of year 101,131 $31.35 83,075 $31.01 79,938 $29.80
Earned 18,023 $34.09 18,056 $32.93 8,329 $42.13
Redeemed {1,727} $33.87 —_ s — (5,192) $30.24
Outstanding at end of year 117,427 $31.73 101,131 $31.35 83,075 $311.01

The amount expensad in aggregate related to the award of units was approximately $1 million (2006 - $1 million and
2005 - $1 million).

\ 18. Restructuring Charges

2007
in 2007, NOVA Chemicals recorded restructuring charges of $86 million before-tax (355 million after-tax) related to the
following:

In May 2007, the Company accrued $7 million of restructuring costs associated with the elimination of approximately %0
positions in the U.S. and Europe. As of Dec. 31, 2007, $4 million of the severance costs had been paid to employees.

In September 2007, NOVA Chemicals announced that it had acquired the exclusive production rights from Sterling
Chemicals’ Texas City, Texas, styrene plant on behalf of the INEOS NOVA joint venture. These rights were assigned to
INECS NOVA on Oct. 1, 2007. In November 2007, Sterling Chemicals announced its plans to permanently shut down the

Notes to Consolidated Financial Stataments 85




Texas City plant as a result of INEOS NOVA's nomination of zero production volumes. As a result, NOVA Chemicals
recorded a $29 million restructuring charge which represents NOVA Chemicals’ 50% share of the charge. Sterling is
responsible for all related plant closure and severance costs.

In October 2007, INEOS NOVA announced its plans to shut down the Montréal, Quebec, polystyrene site by the end of
2007. NOVA Chemicals recorded a $3 million charge related to its share of closure and severance costs incurred by the
INEQS NOVA joint venture. No asset write-down was necessary as there was no remaining book value for this plant. None
of these closure costs were paid as of Dec. 31, 2007.

ln Novermber 2007, INEOQS NQVA announced that it would cease polystyrene production at its Belpre, Ohio, polystyrene
plant and permanently shut down the plant in 2008. As a result, NOVA Chemicals recorded $32 million, its share of the
impairment charge, as an increase in accumulated depreciation. In addition to the plant write-down, a $3 million charge
was recorded related to NOVA Chemicals’ share of the saverance costs associated with the closure of this plant. None of
these closure costs were paid as of Dec. 31, 2007.

NOVA Chemicals also accrued $3 million of restructuring charges related to additional actions taken in Europe by the
INEOS NOVA joint venture. As of Dec. 31, 2007, $1 million had been paid.

The remaining $9 million relates to INEOS NOVA and NOVA Chemicals’ other restructuring actions to reduce costs.

2006
tn 2006, NOVA Chemicals recorded a restructuring charge of $785 million before-tax {$861 million after-tax) related to
the following:

The Company recorded an impairment charge of $860 million related to the STYRENIX business unit assets. The
STYRENIX business unit included the Styrene Monomer, North American Solid Polystyrene and NOVA Innovene European
joint venture segments. The STYRENIX business unit had not been profitable due to poor market conditions, and in
racent years leading up to the impairment charge both NOVA Chemicals and the NOVA Innovene joint venture had
raduced production capacity through plant closures. In July 2006, NOVA Chemicals announced it would investigate
various alternatives for the STYRENIX business unit, including sale, formation of a joint venture with other producers, or
spin out. NOVA Chemicals assessed the recoverability of the STYRENIX assats and determined that the carrying value
enceeded the estimated future cash flows from these assets. Based on this analysis, the fair market value of these
STYRENIX facifities was determined to be $242 million. In October 2007, the STYRENIX business unit assats were
contributed to the INEQS NOVA joint venture (see Note 5).

NOVA Innovene permanently dosed its Carrington, UK, solid polystyrene facility in October 2006. The Company recorded
a restructuring charge of $56 million related primarily to non-cash asset write-downs of the plant including $8 million
related to total expected severance and other departure costs. As of Dec. 31, 2007, substantially all of the severance and
other departure costs were paid.

Buring 2006, NOVA Chemicals restructured its North American operations to better align resources and reduce costs.

As a result, the Company recorded a $53 milfion restructuring charge related to severance, pension and other employee-
related costs. Of this amount, $10 million related to one-time pension curtailment and special termination benefits. Of the
remaining $43 million, $33 million had been paid as of Dac 31, 2007,

A $15 million charge was recorded related to the accrual of total expected severance costs for the Chesapeake, Virginia,
polystyrene plant, which was closed in 2006. As of Dec. 39, 2007, §9 million had been paid to former employees.

Lastly, $1 million (less than $1 million after-tax) of restructuring costs related to actions taken by NOVA Innovene were accrued.

Impairment charges totaling $907 million during 2006 related to non-cash write-downs of plant and equipment were
recorded as an increase in accumulated depreciation.

2005
During 2005, the Corporation provided for $148 million in restructuring charges related to the following:

A §76 million write-down of the Berre, France, EPS plant and the Carrington, UK, EPS plant was recorded, following the
announcement by NOVA Innovene to cease EPS production at Berre and permanently shutdown the EPS plant at
Carrington, These actions were completed in 2006. In addition to the plant write-downs, a $7 million charge related to
NOVA Chemicals’ share of the severance costs incurred by the NOVA Innovene joint venture associated with these
closures was recorded. All severance costs owing have been paid by the joint venture.
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A $76 million write-down of the Chesapeake, Virginia, plant value was the result of NOVA Chemicals’ decision to
permanently close the plant. In addition, a $9 million charge was taken associated with the write-off of cenain other

nonproductive assets.

Restructuring activities are a corporate responsibility and are classified accordingly as Corporate in segmented reporting.

\ 14. Other Gains

year ended Decembar 31 (miitions of dollars) 2007 £004 2008
Before-Tax Aftar-Tax Before-Tax  Aftar-Tax Before-Tax After-Tax
Tax related settlement™ $— $— $— $— $6 $4
Gain on sale of Chesapeake® 17 12 -_ — — _
Gain on sale of Cambridge 1 L] — - - —
COther 2 1 1 1 2 1
$20 $14 $1 $1 $8 $5

(1) The Corporation recorded -gain'mms:dnodtomo&\drvwluﬁond-u:d'np\m.Thodmcmubudtodmd.dmﬂiﬁtyoffocﬁgnmnh::mhmnmﬁlednhh

the United States Intemal Revenue Service price to 1982,
{2) The Corporatian sold the land and plam facility #1 Chasapesks, Virginia which had cesssd operations in June 2006,

\ 15. Income Taxes

Income tax expense (recovery) varies from amounts computed by applying the Canadian federal and provincial statutory
income tax rates to income (loss) before income taxes as shown in the following table:

{millions of dollars, except as notad) 2007 BOOB 2005
Income (loss) before income taxes $398 $(847) $(102)
Statutory income tax rate 32.12% 32.49% 33.62%
Computed income tax expense {rocovery) $128 $(275) $ (39
Increase {decrease) in taxes resulting from:
{Higher) lower effective foraign tax rates (9 (37} 9
income tax rate adjustments™ (65) (60} -
Tax benefits not recognized™ 14 224 16
Reduction in tax reserve™ (13) - —
Other (4) 2 8
Income tax expense (recovery) $ 51 ${144) $ ()
Current income tax expense $109 $ 75 $ 68
Future income tax recovery (58) (219 (69
Income tax expense (recovery) £ 5 $(144) $

{1) In 2007, the Federa) Canadisn Governmant (2004 — Albarts snd Fedsral Cansdisn Governments) enacted a ax cate reduction, which reduced income tax accrusls for future tax
Kabilities by $65 millkon (2006 - $60 million and 2005 - 30). Thezs banafits have been recorded a3 & reduction of income tax s4perse,
{2) The tax banefic of certain costs have net baen recerded dus to the uncertality that tax benefits will be realized prior to the expiration of the lons carryforwands in the US.

[3) Dus to the tentiemont of & tex dispute, B previously recorded tax reserve was no longer required and resulted in & decrease in tax expents.

The following table cutlines the principal temporary differences comprising the future income tax assets (fiabilities):

{millions of dollars) 2007 2008
Basis difference in plant and equipment ${6248) $(493}
Unrealized foreign exchange gains 1) 42)
Reserves not currently deductible 114 108
Losses available to be carried forward 259 202
Other 60 35
Valuation sllowance {258) (245)
Net future income tax Gability $(510) ${435)
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At Dec. 31, 2007, the Corporation has U.S. Federal net operating loss carryforwards (NOL's) of $493 million. The
U.S. NOU's will begin to expire in 2021 and fully expire in 2026. In addition, NOVA Chemicals has $353 million of NOL's in
Switzerland, with expiration dates from 2008 to 2013,

The Company's valuation allowance of $258 million at Dec. 31, 2007, relates principally to the uncertainty of the utilization
of certain deferred tax assets, primarily tax loss and credit carryforwards in the U.S. and Switzerland.

The following table outlines the income tax expense (recovery) arising fram Canadian and Foreign operations:

year onded Dacember 31 (millions of dollars) 2007 2006 2008
Income (loss) before income taxes
Canadian $480 $ 155 $200
Foreign (82) {1,002} (303)
$398 $ (8a7) $(102)
Current income tax expense [recovery)
Canadian $105 L IS | s 8
Foreign 4 4 (13)
$109 $ 75 $ 48
Future income tax recovery
Canadian $(28) $ 09 $ (14)
Foreign (30 {140} (55)
$(58) $ (219 $ (69
Total income tax expense (recovery) $51 $ (144) $ ()

\16. Employee Future Benefits

PENSION PLANS
NOVA Chemicals sponsors both defined benefit and defined contribution pension arangements,

Defined benefit pensions at retirement are mainly related to years of service and remuneration during the last years of
employment with some plans having limited or conditional indexing provisions. One plan has provisions whereby the
benefits are related to career average salaries. Actuarial reports are prepared regularly by independent actuaries for
accounting and funding purposes using the projected unit credit method. The last actuarial valuation for all significant
plans in Narth America and Europe was as of Dec. 31, 2006,

Plan assets are measurad at fair value while pension obligations are discounted using current yield rates of high quality
corporate bonds with terms to maturity that approximate the duration of the Corporation’s pension liabilities, The plans’
assets consist primarily of publicly traded equity and fixed income securities. The Corporation used a measurement date
of Nov. 30 for its 2005 pension and post-retirement plans, Effective Jan. 1, 2006, the Corporation changed its
measurement date of Nov. 30 to Dec. 31 for its pension and post-retirement plans. The Dec. 31 measurement date was
used in 2007 and will be used consistently in future periods.

On Sep. 28, 2007, NOVA Chemicals amended certain U.S. defined benefit plans. The amendments provided for benefits
to be frozen as of Jan. 1, 2008, and provide transition relief to plan participants meeting certain age and service
requirements. At the same time, NOVA Chemicals also enhanced benefits under one of its U.S. defined contribution
plans. The defined benefit option of certain Canadian pension plans was closed to new entrants on Jan. 1, 2000.

The restructuring that occurred in 2007 (see Note 13) and the defined benefit pension plan amendments described above
triggered one or more of the following charges (benefits) during 2007: a curtailment charge (benefit}, a special
termination charge and a settlement charge. A curtailment charge (benefit) results from either the termination of
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employment earlier than previously assumed or the significant reduction in future benefit accruals and requires the
immediate recognition of unrecognized amounts that were scheduled to be reflected in future accounting periods.

A special termination charge results from the enhancements provided under the voluntary programs {e.g., additional years
of age and service). A settlement charge results when the total lump sums paid during a given year exceed a certain
threshold. In 2006, the North American restructuring and redesign of certain European plans triggered one or more of the
aforementioned charges (benefits). The impact of these charges is reflected in the tables on pages 99 and 100.

Upon commencement of the NOVA Innovene joint venture (subsequently expanded to include North American assets
and renamed INEOS NOVA joint venture) in October 2005, the defined benefit pension plans of each pre-joint venture
entity were transferred to the NOVA Innovene joint venture with the financial responsibility for pre-close assets and
liabilities retained by the pre-joint venture company and the financia! responsibility for post-close assets and liabilities
assumed by the NOVA Innovene joint venture. There is a specific arrangement to identify and apportion the pre- and
post-close assets and liabilities. Therefore, the amounts presented in the defined benefit pension tables represent NOVA
Chemicals’ assets and obligations, for which it has provided an indemnity, and its share of the post-close assets and
obligations of NOVA Innovene subsequent to Qct. 1, 2005.

Pension and post-retirement expense (included in operating and selling, general and administrative costs) for all
significant defined benefit plans consisted of the following:

Pension Plans FPost-Retirement Plans
year ended Decemnber 31 (millions of doHars) 2007 20048 2008 2007 2008 2005
Current service cost $25 $27 $26 '$ 2 $2 $2
Interest cost on accrued benefit obligations asé 43 39 5 5 4
Actual loss (return) on plan assets 2 (87) {55} -_— — -
Actuarial loss on accrued benefit obligations 5 28 2 - — —
Costs arising in the period 78 " 12 7 7 6
Differences between costs arising in the peried '
and costs recognized in the period in respect of
the long-term nature of employee future
benefit costs:
(Retum) loss on plan assets (58) 42 18 -_ —_ —
Transitional (asset) obligation (&) 6) (5 1 1 1
Actuarial [oss {gain) 4 (18) 5 1 1 1
Past service and actual plan amendments — _— 1 {1} {1} —
Net defined benefit cost recognized 18 29 kY| 8 8 8
Curtailment / special termination {¢redit) charge (4} 9 —_ —_ 5 _
Settlement charge — 3 —_ —_ — —
Tetal benefit cost recagnized $14 $M $3 $8 $13 $8

Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements 99




The status of all significant defined benefit pension and post-retirement plans is as follows:

Pension Plans Poat-Retirement Plana
year anded December 31 {mitlions of dollars, except as noted) 2007 2006 2007 2008
Change in benefit obligations
Benefit obligation at beginning of year S8 $7%7 $e3 $70
Current service cost 25 27 2 2
Interest cost 46 43 S 5
Experience loss 14 23 7 13
Plan amendments — (8) 10 (10
Curtailment/special {benefits) charges (20) (3} 1 [
Settlement gain (3) (33) — _—
Employee contributions 4 8 — 1
Acquisition/divestiture 1 —_ — —_
Benefits paid 57 (43) (5} (4)
Foreign currency exchange rate loss 119 12 7 —
Benefit obligation at end of year $ 950 $821 $ 90 $83
Change in plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $ 685 $ 585 $— s —
Actual (loss) return on plan assets {2) 87 - —
Employer and employee contributions 58 83 5 4
Settlement loss (3) (35) - —
Acquisition/divestiture 1 —_— — —
Benefits paid {57 (a4) (5) (4}
Foreign currency exchange rate gain 102 9 - —
Fair value of plan assets at end of year $ 784 $ 685 L $—
Funded status
Plan assets in deficiency of benefit cbligation ${166) $136) $(90) $(83)
Unrecognized net transitional (asset) obligation (39 (38} 9 8
tinrecognized prior service cost ()] 0] )] 8
Unrecognized net actuarial loss 229 155 30 23
Nat amounts recognized in consolidated balance sheets $ 18 $ (23} ${68) $(60)
Weighted-average assumptions used to determine
end of ob ons 2007 2008 2007 . 2008
Discount rate 5.4% 5.1% 5.8% 5.7%
Assumed long-term rate of retum on plan assets™ 7.5% 7.4% — -
Rate of increase in future compensation 3.9% 3.2% - -
Long-term health care inflation® — — 5.0% 49%

{1) NOVA Chemicals establishes an appropriste long-tarm rate of return for sach pian's assets which reflacts assot allocations within sach plan a3 well as independent vieva of
long-term rate of retum expectations for each asset dass.

(2) Ultimate trend rate, expected to ba achieved by 2013 for Canadizn plams snd 2014 for U.5. plans. The sssumed heatth care cost trend rate used to messure the 2007 expected
cost of benefis covered by the plans is 9% on average.

POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

NOVA Chemicals recorded a hiability of $5 million in 2007; $5 million in 2006; and $4 million in 2005 for the following:
heatth and welfare benefit continuation to disabled individuals and dependents until the earliest of the disabled’s
atainment of age 65, death or recovery; short-term disability income continuation; and COBRA continuation for medical
and dental benefits. This liability is not included in the table above. A formal actuarial valuation is performed every three
years with the most current evaluation having been performed as of Dec. 31, 2005.
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The plans are presented on the basis of accrued benefit obligations, rather than accumulated benefit obligations. The
accrued benefit obligations and fair value of assets for NOVA Chemicals’ pension plans in which the accrued benefit
obligations exceed the fair value of plan assets, as of each year end, are shown below:

Aocrued Benefit Fair Valuo of

[milkons of doflars) ) OCbligation Ansets
December 31, 2007 $901 $127
December 31, 2006 3694 $5591

Expected benefit payments for the defined benefit pension plans and the post-retirement plans are as follows:
Pension Plany  Post-Retirement

{millions of dollars) Flana
2008 $ 70 $6
2009 $ 39 $6
2010 $ 40 $7
2011 $ 42 $7
N2 $ 46 $7
Five Years Thereafter . $282 $3%

In 2008, NOVA Chemicals expects to fund its defined benefit pension plans by $40 million.

DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN ASSETS

The investment strategy for NOVA Chemicals’ defined benefit plans is determined by the trustees for each plan after
taking into consideration the plan structure, nature of the liabilities, the funded status and cash flow requirements of the
plan; the size of the assets; and the financial situation of the Corporation and its ability to withstand fluctuations in
pension contributions. For the significant plans, asset-liability modeling has been utilized to assist in setting the
investment strategy. The assets of each plan are invested in a variety of traditional financial instruments such as equities
and fixed income securities using a combination of active and passive strategies. Non-traditional assets such as real estate
and venture capital may also be considered in certain situations. Although the Corporation does not consider derivatives a
separate asset class, they are permitted in order to manage the allocation of investments across asset classes, markets
and currencies. However, under no circumstances can they be used for speculative purposes or have the effect of
leveraging the assets.

While most of the benefits of diversification are achieved by allocating across different asset classes, the Corporation alsa
believes it may be appropriate to further diversify by using multiple investment managers and employing different
management styles within an asset class.

NOVA Chemicals’ Canadian and U.S. plans are the most significant to the Corporation with 85% of total pension assets.
The asset allocation for these pension plans at the end of 2007 and 2006, and the target allocation for 2008, by asset
category, follow. This information has been aggregated within a geographic segment as asset allocations are similar for
the Canadian and U.S. plans.

North American Plans

Anset Category Target Allocation Peroentagos of Plan Axzata
Year ended December 31 2008 2007 2008
Equities 60% 58% 61%
Fixed Income 40% 42% 39%
Total 100% 100% 100%

The investment strategies for the pension plans in Europe {most of which are sponsored by INEQS NOVA) differ
significantly across countries and from NOVA Chemicals’ North American plans. The different strategies reflect
considerable variations in plan membership, plan liability structure, pension arrangements and plan asset size. Some
European plans are re-insured with the investment strategy and asset allocation determined or heavily influenced by
the re-insurer.
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POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS

The Cerporation provides medical care and life insurance benefits to eligible retirees and their dependents in North
America. The Corporation accrues the cost of providing post-retirement benefits as the employees provide services.
Post-retirement costs are funded as they are incurred.

A 1% increase in the health care inflation rate would have increased the post-retirament benefit obligation by an
additional $8 million at Dec. 31, 2007, for Canadian plans and $4 million for U.5. plans. A 1% decrease in the same
health care inflation rate would have decreased the post-retirement benefit obligation by $7 million and $3 miliion for
the Canadian and U.5. plans, respectively.

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION ARRANGEMENTS

NOVA Chemicals has a number of defined contribution arrangements providing pension benefits to certain groups of
employees. The total expense for the Corporation's contribution to these plans was $8 million in 2007; $8 million in 2006;
and $7 million in 2005. In 2008, NOVA Chemicals expects to fund its defined contribution plans by approximately $14
million. This increase in funding reflects the Corporation’s decision to freeze the U.S. salaried defined benefit plan and to
enhance contributions to the U.S. defined contribution plan.

\_ 17. Asset Retirement Obligations

The Corporation’s asset retirement obligations are comprised of expected costs to be incurred upon termination of
operations and the closure of active manufacturing plant facilities. The total undiscounted amount of estimated cash flows
expected to be incurred on closure of active plants in 25 to 40 years is between $225 million and $250 million. This
amount is based on third-party cost estimates obtained from reputable sources after an in-depth review of active plant
sites and required clean-up and restoration activities. In arriving at the estimated asset retirement obligation, a credit-
adjusted risk-free rate of 10.5% was used to discount the estimated future cash flows. The estimated asset retirement
obligation liability of $23 million at Dec. 31, 2007, will increase, or accrete, each year over the lives of active plants until it
equals the $225 million to $250 million expected to be incurred on closure of the plants.

The following is a reconciliation of the aggregate esset retirement abligations:

year ended December 31 2007 2008
Baginning of year $20 $18
Obligations contributed to INEOS NOVA joint venture {3) -
Increasa in present value of the obligations (accretion expense) 2 2
Liabilities recorded from INEQS NOVA 4 -
End of year $23 $20

\_ 18. Contingencies and Commitments

Various lawsuits and claims are pending by and against the Corporation. It is the opinion of management that final
determination of these claims will not materially affect the financial position or operating results of the Corporation.

The Corporaticn leases office space and transportation equipment under various operating leases. The minimum lease
payments are approximately $490 million in total with annual amounts of $51 million in 2008, $48 million in 2009, $45
million in 2010, $39 million in 2011, $37 million in 2012, and $270 million thereafter. Rental expense under operating
leases was $61 million in 2007 (2006 - $62 million and 2005 ~ $43 miillion).

The Corporation has entered into agreements for the purchase of minimum amounts of feedstock and other raw materials
for short- and long-term supply. The resulting obligations, based on year-end market prices, are approximately $8,990
million in total with annual amounts of $2,811 million in 2008, $1,173 million in 2009, $895 million in 2010, $474 million in
2011, $471 million in 2012 and $3,166 million thereafter.

102 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements




The Corporation is obligated under several long-term ethylene and benzene feedstock supply agreements to supply
INEOS NOVA with up to 441 million pounds of ethylene and 65 million gallons of benzene annually. The agreements run
through December 2022. NOVA Chemicals also agreed to provide IT support and lease office space to INEQS NOVA
through December 2008,

\ 19. Segmented Information

NOVA Chemicals considers both qualitative and quantitative factors in determining reportable segments. Before applying
quantitative analyses, NOVA Chemicals aggregates the business segments with similar economic characteristics and
business segments with similarities in each of the following areas: nature of the product and service, nature of the
production process, type or class of customer, methods used to distribute the products or provide the services and, if
applicable, the nature of the regulatory environment. Based on the aggregation of the operating segments, NOVA
Chemicals performs quantitative tests based on revenue, profit and loss and assets.

NOVA Chemicals has reviewed its reportable business segments as a result of the commencement of the expansion of its
then existing European joint venture with INEOS to include the North American STYRENIX assets (see Note 5). Based on
results of the quantitative and qualitative analyses performed, NOVA Chemicals reduced the number of reportable
segments from seven to five. NOVA Chemicals has collapsed the former STYRENIX segments (styrene monomer, Narth
American polystyrene and European joint venture) into one segment to reflect the way in which the chief operating
decision maker receives information to allocate resources and assess performance prospectively. This change does not
impact the operation of the business units or the previously reported financial position, results of operations or cash
flows. Prior periods have been restated accordingly.

{1) JOFFRE OLEFINS
Products: Ethylene and co-products, including propylene, crude C4 and crude CS hydrocarbons and hydrogen.

Applications: Ethylene is used internally by NOVA Chemicals to produce polyethylene or soid to third parties who use
ethylene to produce polyethylene and other products.

(2) CORUNNA, OLEFINS

Products: Ethylene and co-products, including propylene, crude C4 hydrocarbons, C5 dienes, dicyclopentadiene,
aromatics, C9 resin oils, hydrogen and fuels. Feedstock mix determines the type and volume of co-products
manufactured.

Applications: Ethylene is used intemally by NOVA Chemicals to produce polyethylene or sold to customers who use the
ethylene to make other products. Chemical co-products are building blocks that are used by customers to make items
such as tires, carpet and clothing fibers and household goods. Energy co-products are primarily used by customers for
fuel.

(3) POLYETHYLENE
Products: LLOPE, LDPE and HDPE.

Applications: Polyethylene is sold to customers for production of a variety of end-use industrial and consumer products.
Consumer products include packaging film, plastic bags, bottles and toys. Industrial applications include storage drums,
industrial wrap, retail packaging, and building products.

{4) PERFORMANCE STYRENICS

Products: EPS and Styrenic Performance Polymers which include polymers such as ARCEL® and DYLARK? resins, as well as
downstream business ventures, None of these products exceed the quantitative threshold for separate reportable
segments.

Applications: EPS is sold to customers who make products for end-use applications including packaging for food and
consumer products, and insulation for the building and construction industry. Customers for Styrenic Performance
Polymers make protective packaging, automotive interiors, food packaging, cansumer goods, appliances and
components for the construction industry.
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(5} INEOS NOVA JOINT VENTURE
Products: Styrene, North American SPS, European EPS and SPS, ZYLAR® and NAS® resins.

Agpplications: Styrene fs used intemally by INEQS NOVA to produce styrenic polymers or sold to customers who use
styrene to produce styrenic polymers and other products such as synthetic rubber and unsaturated polyesters. SPS is sold
to customers who make products for end-use applications including electronics and food packaging, small appliances and
construction compenents. EPS is sold to customers who make products for end-use applications including packaging for
food and consumer products, and insulation for the building and construction industry. ZYLAR and NAS are high-clarity
styrene acrylic co-polymers and blends or alloys thereof with added strength. They are used in medical applications, dlear
household appliance applications and computer housings.

CORPORATE

Corporate includes all stock-based compensation and profit sharing costs, all unrealized gains and losses on the
stock-based forward transaction and mark-to-market feedstock derivatives and all restructuring and corporate
operating costs. Beginning in the first quarter of 2007, NOVA Chemicals no longer allocates interest, income taxes
or corporate operating costs to the business segments. Prior periods have been revised to reflect this change.
Operating costs include corporate depreciation.

The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those described in the summary of significant accounting
policies on pages 75 to 81 of the Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Segment performance is evaluated based on measures of profit or loss. Adjusted EBITDA is the measure of profit or loss
used by management and used by investors to evaluate the ability of each segment to generate operating cash flow.

NOVA Chemicals accounts for intersegment sales and transfers as if the sales or transfers were to third parties, that is,
at current market price.
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The following tables provide information for each segment:

Revenue from External Customers®

2007 £006 2005

Joffre Olefins $ 970 $ 881 $ 943
Corunna Olefins 1,334 1,245 897
Polyethylene 2,016 197 1,625
Performance Styrenics 402 375 350
INEOS NOVA Joint Venture 2,080 2,163 1,893
Eliminations {70) 62) {122)
Total revenue from extemal customers $ 6,732 $6,519 $5616
(1) Third-party.
Intercompany and Afflliate Revenue

2007 BOOB £005
Joffre Olefins $ 833 $ 863 $ 741
Corunna Olefins 741 752 533
Polyethylene é 5 3
Performance Styrenics 10 10 3
INEQS NOVA Joint Venture 12 23 44
Eliminatians {1,602) (1,653) {1,324)
Total intercompany and affiliate revenue 5 - $ - s —
Total Revenus*

2007 2008 2005
Joffre Olefins $1.803 $ 1,744 $1.704
Corunna Qlefins 2,075 1,997 1,430
Polyethylene 2,022 1,922 1,628
Performance Styrenics 412 385 363
INEOS NOVA Joint Venture 2,092 2,186 1,937
Eliminations {(1,672) (1,715) (1,446}
Total revenue $6,732 $6519 $5,616
(1) Before intersagment eliminations.
Adjusted EBITDA™

2007 2008 £005
Joffre Olefins $ 588 $ 587 $ 340
Corunna Olefins 209 93 79
Polyethylene 196 14 23
Performance Styrenics 5) 17 7
INEOS NOVA Joint Venture 17 43) {102}
Corporate {102) (153) (110}
Eliminations (18) (4) 13
Total adjusted EBITDA $ 885 $ 604 $ 4
Restructuring charges (86) (985) {168)
Other gains 20 1 8
Interest expense (175) (168) {113)
Depreciation and amortization {246) (299 {290}
Income (loss) before income taxes $ 398 $ (847} $ (102}

[1) Net Income {loss) before restructuring charges, other gaing, interwst exparss, depreciation and amortization and incoma tazes.
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Operating Income (Loss}

2007 2008 £000
Joffre Qlefins $ 531 $ 517 $ 290
Corunna Olefins 144 36 30
Polyethylene 127 75 172
Performance Styrenics (30) 29) (5)
INEOQS NOVA Joint Venture (4} (149 211)
Corporate 1en (1,148) {286)
Eliminations {18} ()] 13
Total operating income {loss) $ 553 $ (680) $ 3
Interest expense {net) (175} (168) {113)
Other gains and losses (net) 20 1 8
| Income tax {expense) recovery (5%) 144 ]
Net income (loss) $ 347 $ (701 £{101)
Depreciation and Amortization
2007 £006 2008
Joffre Olefins $ 57 $ 50 $ 50
Corunna Olefins 45 57 49
Polyethylene 69 &b 62
Performance Styrenics 25 12 12
INEQS NOVA Joint Venture 21 106 109
Corporate 9 B 8
Total depreciation and amortization $ 246 $ 299 $ 290
Capital Expenditures
- 2007 2006 2000
Joffre Olefins $ 21 $ 25 $ 18
Corunna Qlefins &3 45 204
Polyethylene 32 23 k']
Performance Styrenics 10 81 86
INEOS NOVA Joint Venture 30 24 77
Total capital expenditures $ 156 t 198 $ 419
Angets
2007 £000
Joffre Olefins $ 074 $ 728
Corunna Qlsfins 1,395 1,065
Polyethylene 1170 17
Performance Styrenics 367 392
| INEOS NOVA Joint Venture 483 726
Corporate 378 267
Eliminations (31) (18}
Total assets $4,834 $4,077
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GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION
Revenue from External Customers'?

2007 2008 2008
Canada $2,333 $2,204 $1.976
United States 2,896 2,757 2478
Europe and Other 1,503 1,458 1,162
$6,732 $6,519 $5.616
(1} Based on location of customer.
Assots®
2007 2008
Canada $3,320 $2,827
United States 1,042 857
Europe and Other 474 393
$4,8346 $4,077
{1) Based on location of operating facility.

\_ 20. Financial Instruments

CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Carrying amounts and net gains/(losses) of NOVA Chemicals’ financial instruments are classified into the following
categories: )

December 31 {millions of doflars)

Net gain (loan)
Carrying amounts From interest

inooms Unrealized Not galn

2007 ___ (expenss). net guin (loss) (low3)

Held-for-trading™ $ 120 $ 2 $ 37 $ 35

Loans and receivables® $ 584 2 — 2
Available-for-sale securities™® $ 15 — m {1}
Other financial liabilives™ $ 2,851 {154) —_ . (154)
${154) $ 3 $ (18}

(1) Reported at fair vatue and dassified s haid-for-orading in accordance with CICA Section 2855 and includes: Cash and cash squivalents and derivative stnumants (see Notes 3, 5,
7 and 7).

{2) Reponied st amontizad cost, which approximates i value and includes: trade sccounts recoivable, sdvances recaivable from affillates, ather receivatiies (see Note 3} and note
receivable (see Notes 3 and 5), and Restricted cish and other Bsets.

3) Incudes investmants in non-afiliated entities with quoted market prices in an active market totaling $4 milion and investments in non-sffifated entities thet do nor have quoted
market prices in an active macket totaling $11 milion which are carried at cost (see Nota 5).

{4) Reportad st smortized cost and indudes: trade sccounts payable, other accounts paysble and carain accrued Kabilites (see Nota 7); bank loans; long-term debt, exchuding
obligations uwder capital leases (3eo Note 8); and certain long-tarm lisbilities {see Note 9).

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT FAIR VALUES

Financial instrument fair values represent a reasonable approximation of amounts NOVA Chemicals would have received
or paid to counterparties to unwind positions prior to their maturity. NOVA Chemicals has no plans to unwind these
positions prior to maturity and has no significant exposure to any individual customer or counterparty.

The canying amounts reported on the Consolidated Balance Sheets for Cash and cash equivalents (included in the held-
for-trading category), loans and receivables and other financia! fiabilities (excluding Long-term debt) approximate their {air
value. Fair values and carrying amounts for long-term debt are as follows:

C
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December 31 (millions of dollars) Carrying Amount™" Estimated Falr Value®

2007 2008 2007 2008

Long-term debt $1,794 $1,844 $1,798 $1,81%

11) Includes deb installments dua within one year.

(2} The fair value of tong-term dobst is based on quoted markel prices, where available. Preferrwd shares can nat be vakued from a market perspective, therwfore the valua is based
on their face value, lezs ratated deferred gain.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK MANAGEMENT

NOVA Chemicals has U.S., Canadian and European-based petrochemical operations and a Canadian functional currency.
As a result, the Corporation is exposed to currency risks from its investing, financing and operating activities. Risks from
foreign currencies may be hedged using cash contracts, spot contracts, forward contracts and swap transactions to
minimize the gains and losses due to short-term foreign curmrency exchange rate fluctuations. The exposure that may be
hedged in accordance with the Company's foreign exchange policy is limited to operational transaction exposure and is
generally used only to balance out NOVA Chemicals’ cash positions. Foreign currency risks resulting from the translation of
assets and liabilities of foreign operations into NOVA Chemicals' functional currency are generally not hedged; however,
NOVA Chemicals may decide to hedge this risk under certain circumstances.

Foreign currency risks may also result from certain investing activities such as the acquisition and disposal of investments
in foreign companies, and may be caused by financial liabilities in foreign currencies and loans in foreign currencies that
are extended to affiliated entities for financing purposes. These risks also generally are not hedged.

NOVA Chemicals’ subsidiaries and affiliated entities generally execute their operating activities in their respective
functional currencies. NOVA Chemicals normally does not use currency derivatives to hedge such payments.

At Dec. 31, 2007, NOVA Chemicals had an outstanding foreign currency swap for the purpose of balancing the
Company's cash position. The swap was set up to buy $63 million Canadian dollars (sell $63.6 million U.S. dollars)
for value on Dec. 31, 2007, and sell $63 million Canadian dollars (buy $63.6 million U.S. dollars) on Jan. 2, 2008.
The fair value of the swap was not material to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

At Dec. 31, 2007, INEQS NOVA had several short-term foreign currency swaps outstanding maturing through Feb, 29,
2008. NOVA Chemicals 50% share of the swaps fair value is a gain of $1 million and is included in Feedstock and
operating costs on the Consolidated Statements of Income {Loss).

For the disclosure of market risks including foreign currency risk, commodity price risk and interest rate risk, CICA Section
3852 requires a sensitivity analysis that shows the effects of reasonably possible changes in refevant risk variables on after-
tax income and other comprehensive income. The periodic effects are determined by relating the reasonably possible
changes in the risk variables to the balance of financial instruments at the reporting date.

Currency risks, as defined by CICA Section 3862, arise when a monetary finandal instrument is denominated in a currency
that is not the functional currency. Differences resulting from the translation of the consolidated financial statements into
NOVA Chemicals' reporting currency are not taken into consideration in such sensitivity analysis. Relevant risk variables
are generally all non-functional currencies in which NOVA Chemicals has finandial instruments.

At Dec. 31, 2007, NOVA Chemicals assessed the effect of a reasonably possible change in the Canadian dollar and
Euro relative to the U.S. dollar. There was no material effect on after-tax income and other comprehensive income.

STOCK PRICE VOLATILITY RISK MANAGEMENT

In 2005, the Corporation entered into cash-settled share forward transactions to manage its exposure to fluctuations in its
stock-based compensation costs related to its two cash-settled stock-based incentive compensation plans (the restricted
stock unit plan and the equity appreciation plan). Compensation costs associated with the plans fluctuate as a result of
changes in the market price of the Corporation’s common stock. In 2005, the Corporation entered into forward transactions
for a total of 3,612,100 notional common shares with an average forward price of U.S. $45.66. The forward transactions are
cash-settled at the end of a three-year term (November 2008), or at any time prior to that date, at the option of the
Corporation, based on the difference between the Corporation's common stock price on the NYSE and the average
execution price. If the Corporation's comman stock price is in excess of the average execution price on the settlement
date, the Corporation will receive the difference per share in cash, and if the Corporation’s common stock price is less than
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the average execution price, the Corporation will pay the difference per share in cash. The forward transactions include an
interest component which is accrued and payable by the Corporation on settlement of the forward transactions. The
average execution price is determined by reference to the average forward price, less the interest component, and is
$37.56. If the Corporation’s common stock price is in excess of the average execution price, an unrealized gain is recorded
and if the Corporation’s common stock price is below the average execution price, an unrealized loss is recorded.
Unrealized gains and losses assaciated with the share forward transactions are recorded as part of Selling, general and
administrative expenses, offsetting unrealized losses or gains on the cash-settled stock-based incentive compensation plans,
and as long-term receivables or payables. At Dec. 31, 2007, the mark-to-market value of the share torward transactions was
3 $19 million (Dec. 31, 2006 - $35 million and Dec. 31, 2005 - $15 million) unrealized loss, resulting in a liability. At Dec. 31,
2007, this liability is reported in accrued liabilities (2006 - reported in long-term liabilities), since the forward transactions
are due to expire in November 2008.

COMMODITY PRICE RISK MANAGEMENT

NOVA Chemicals uses commodity-based derivatives to manage its exposure to price fluctuations on crude oil, refined
oroducts and natural gas transactions. The instruments are used to moderate the risk of adverse short-term price
movements. Occasionally, longer-term positions will be taken to manage price risk for anticipated supply requirements.
The extent to which commodity-based derivatives are used depends on market conditions and requires adherence to the
Company’s hedging policy. NOVA Chemicals limits its positions in futures markets to proprietary feedstock requirements
and does not use derivative instruments for speculative purposes.

HEDGING

Commodity swaps are sometimes used and designated as fair value hedges intended to hedge the fair value of NOVA
Chemicals’ crude inventory against adverse changes in the market price. At inception of a hedging relationship, the
Zompany documents the relationship betwéen the hedging instrument and the hedged item, its risk management
sbjective and its strategy for undertaking the hedge. The Company also requires a documented assessment, both at
vedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether or not the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are
aighly effective in offsetting the changes in the fair value of the hedged items. Open commodity-based derivatives as of
Jec. 31, 2007 used to hedge NOVA Chemicals’ crude inventory value matured in January 2008. Unrealized gains and
osses on derivative instruments designated and qualifying as fair value hedging instruments, as well as the offsatting
unrealized gains and losses on the hedged items, are included in income in the same accounting period. There was no
~edge ineffectiveness recognized in consolidated net income during 2007.

In addition, the Company utifizes options, swaps and futures instruments that are effective as economic hedges of
zommodity price exposures, but do not meet the hedge accounting criteria of CICA Section 3865. The Corporation has
-ecognized a net pre-tax gain of $58 million from commodity risk management activities in income {loss) for the year
2nded Dec. 31, 2007 (2006 - $6 million loss and 2005 — $19 million gain}. This net gain (loss) is the result of $38 million
{2006 — $15 miflion and 2005 - $7 million) of net realized gains from settled, crystallized, and liquidated positions and $21
nillion (2006 — $20 million loss and 2005 - $12 million gain} of net mark-to-market gains (losses} on unrealized positions.
Gains and losses on commodity-based derivatives are included in Feedstock and operating costs in the Consolidated
Statements of Income (Loss).

At Dec. 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, there are no outstanding derivative contracts for natural gas or benzene,

At Dec. 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, the notional volume and estimated fair value of outstanding derivative contracts for
crude oil, refined products, and alternative feedstock that do not qualify for hedge accounting are as follows:

Jecernber 31 2007 2006 20O0S
Notional volume™ millions bbls 13.8 17.8 5.4
‘WNeighted-average price per bbl u.s. $53.40 $52.69 $51.56
Estimated fair value® U.S. millions $ 22 $ @ s 19
Mark-to-market™ U.S. millians $ 22 $ (2 $ 19
Term to maturity Months 1-39 1-21 119

11} 2007 inchudes 5.5 milion bbls (2006 - 7.5 milion and 2005 - 2.3 million) of crude contracts and 8.3 million bbls (2004 - 10.3 millien and 2005 - 3.9 miflion) of LPG comuacts.
12) Unveatized gam foss) determined using standard pricing modsis with market-based inputs, Induding snergy futures prica profiles and countarpany price curees,
13) Recogrired before-tax gain (koss), which for 2005 is nat of delerred vamitional gains.
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At Dec. 31, 2007, the notiona! volume and estimated fair value of outstanding derivative contracts for crude oil, refined
products, and alternative feedstock that do qualify for hedge accounting are as follows:

Decembar 31 2007
Notional volume™ millions bbls 0.75
Weighted-average price per bbl U.s. $92.15
Estimated fair value® U.S. millions $ (2
Mark-to-market™ U.S. millions $
Term to maturity Months 1

{1) 2007 incluces 0.75 million bbls crude contracts,
{2) Estimated fax values determined by cakoulating mark-to-market value of hedga positions using market-based energy futures price profiles end counterparty price curess,
(3) Recognized bafore-uax kass.

Variable feedstocks are the single largest component of NOVA Chemicals’ costs and account for 70%-80% of the total
cost of its products. NOVA Chemicals’ primary feedstocks include ethane, propane, butane, crude oil, benzene and
natural gas. Feedstock costs heavily influence the price of the Company's products.

For the disclosure of market risks, CICA Section 3842 requires sensitivity analyses that show the effects of reasonably
possible changes in relevant risk variables on after-tax income and other comprehensive income. The periodic effects are
determined by relating the reasonably possible changes in the risk variables. The following table illustrates how changes
in various feedstock costs could affect NOVA Chemicals' after-tax income and other comprehensive income and are based
an 2007 actual consumption volumes,

Inoreass in

Increase In Otber

After-Tax  Comprehensive

yaar ended December 31, 2007 (millfons of U.S. dollars) lnsome Income
Decrease in natural gas cost by U.S. 10¢ per mmBTU $ 7 $77
Decrease in benzene cost by U.S. 5¢ per gallon 12.2 12.2
Decrease in propane cost by U.S. 65¢ per barrel 1.5 1.5
Decrease in butane cost by U.S. 72¢ per barrel 29 29
Decraase in crude oil/condensate cost by U.S. §1 per barrel 1.8 11.8

INTEREST RATE RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company manages its interest rate risk by balancing its exposure to fixed and variable rates while attempting to
minimize its interest costs. When deemed appropriate, NOVA Chemicals enters into interest rate swap agreements to
manage its interest rate price risk exposure on certain fixed-rate debt. The agreements generally involve the receipt of
fixed-rate amounts in exchange for floating-rate LIBOR-based payments over the terms of the related debt. In 2007, the
Company had no floating-for-fixed interest rate swaps outstanding. In 2006 and 2005, the Company had ficating-for-fixed
interest rate swaps cutstanding on $300 million of medium-term notes, which expired upon repayment of the related
debt in May 2006. These positions had an estimated fair market value of 30 at Dec. 31, 2006.

In prior years, a series of interest rate swaps on $550 million of fixed-rate debt were liquidated, resulting in a before-tax
gain of $40 million in total. The gains have been deferred and are being recognized in income (loss) as a reduction of
interest expense over the terms of the related debt instruments, of which $300 million matured in 2006 and $250 million
matures in 2009. As a result of NOVA Chemicals' adoption of CICA Section 3865 at Jan. 1, 2007, the deferred gain of 34
million was reclassified, on a prospective basis, from Accounts payable and accrued liabilities and Deferred credits and
long-term liabilities to Long-term debt.

For the disclosure of market risks, CICA Section 3862 requires a sensitivity analysis that shows the effects of reasonably
possible changes in relevant risk variables on after-tax income and other comprehensive income, The periodic effects are
determined by relating the reasonably possible changes in the risk variables to the balance of financial instruments at the
reporting date, For purposes of this analysis, long-term debt balances as of Dec. 31, 2007, were used.

Interest rate risk is defined as the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates. Changes in the market interest rates of long-term debt with fixed interest rates only
affects net income if such debt is measured at fair value. All of NOVA Chemicals fixed-rate long-term debt is carried at
amortized cost and therefore is not subject to interest rate risk.
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Changes in market interest rates would affect interest expense of NOVA Chemicals' variable rate, long-term debt which is
included in the sensitivity analysis calculation.

At Dec. 31, 2007, if interest rates at that date had been 1% lower, with all other variables held constant, after-tax income
and other comprehensive income for the year would have been $6 million higher, arising mainly as a result of lower
interest expense on variable rate bormrowings.

LIQUIDITY RISK MANAGEMENT
NOVA Chemicals’ financia! liabilities mature as follows:

Dus batween
Dus within 1 year and Dus aftar
December 31, 2007 (millions of U.S. dollars) 1 gear 5 years 5 years Toial
Bank loans $ 3 s - $ — $ 3
Curront Other liabilities (Note 7) 1,123 - - 1,123
Commodity-based derivatives (Notes 7 and 9) 1 — - 1
Equity derivative (Noto 7) 19 —_— - 19
Long-term debt (Note B)
Revolving credit facilities — 106 — 106
Unsecured debentures and notes 125 653 500 1,278
Medium-term notes - 250 —_— 250
Preferred shares 126 —_ — 126
Other unsecurad debt 3 17 20 40
Other long-term liabilities (Note %} —_ 59 1 180
$1,400 $1,085 $641 $3.126

A liquidity reserve in the form of cash and undrawn revolving credit facilities is maintained to assist in the solvency and
financial flexibility of NOVA Chemicals. Liquidity reserves totaled $552 million at Oec. 31, 2007. Repayment of amounts
due within one year may also be funded by normal collection of current trade accounts receivable and cash on-hand.
Capital markets transactions, such as public debt issuances may also be used in managing the balance between maturing
obligations and avaitable liquidity.

CREDIT RISK MANAGEMENT

Credit exposure on financial instruments arises from the possibility that a counterparty to an instrument in which NOVA
Chenicals is entitled to receive payment of an unrealized gain fails to perform. NOVA Chemicals has established a limit
on contingent exposure for each counterparty based on the counterparty's credit rating, Credit exposure is managed
through credit approval and monitoring procedures. NOVA Chemicals does not anticipate that any counterparties it
currently transacts with will fail to meet their obligations. At Dec. 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, NOVA Chemicals had no
credit exposure for foreign currency, interest rate or share-based instruments, At Dec. 31, 2007, NOVA Chemicals had $20
million credit exposure for commodity-based instruments (2006 — $0 and 2005 - $19 million).

Concentration of credit risk refates primarily to the Corporation’s receivables, as certain customer groups are located in the
same geographic area and operate in the same industry. NOVA Chemicals monitors receivables based on two such
concentrations: North America and Europe. At Dec. 31, 2007, approximately 82% of the Corporation’s receivables were
from North American customers and 18% were from customers in Europe. Trade receivables over 30 days at Dec. 31,
2007, were immaterial and NOVA Chemicals considers its trade receivables to be neither impaired nor past due. There is
no indication as of Dec. 31, 2007, that the debtors will not meet their obligations. Bad debt write-offs during 2007 were
also immaterial. The Corporation manages its credit risk relating to these receivables through credit approval and
monitoring procedures. NOVA Chemicals establishes and reviews limits for all active customers. Such limits are based on
trade information, payment history, credit score, credit rating and financial analysis, where possible. All credit limits are
subject to evaluation and revision at any time based on changes in levels of credit worthiness; sales orders cannot be
processed unless a credit limit has been properly approved. Customer credit risk ratings range from low (companies with
investment grade bond ratings and very strong financial conditions} to high business risk (companies with an unstable
financial condition, a strong possibility of failure and slow payment). Accounts rated low to medium risk are reviewed and
approved every twelve months. Upper level management approval is needed for customers with existing credit limits
above $5 million. Accounts rated high risk are reviewed every six months. It is sometimes necessary to increase existing
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credit limits to accommedate rapid price increases. In those cases, NOVA Chemicals may grant temporary credit limit
increases of up to 25%, subject to meeting certain conditions. High risk and high business risk accounts are not eligible
for temporary credit limit increases. Customer accounts may be placed on "credit watch” when a slow payment trend

is noticed and the account balance consistently goes beyond the approved payment terms or when credit limit review
reveals the customer’s financial condition is weakening. If necessary, NOVA Chemicals can utilize credit insurance programs
to ensura payment. NOVA Chemicals may also request collateral when a customer does not meet the financial qualifications
for the size credit limit requested or there is a political or economical risk of selling in a certain country. The most prominent
forms of security used by NOVA Chemicals are letters of credit and personal or corporate guarantees. Letters of credit
must be issued through acceptable banks with international standing. At Dec. 31, 2007, NOVA Chemicals held collateral
of approximately $21 million in a combination of letters of credit and personal guarantees from various customers.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amounts of the financial assets classified as loans and
receivables as reported on page 107.

\_ 21. United States Generally Accepted Accounting Principles

RECONCILIATION TO ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES GENERALLY ACCEPTED IN THE UNITED STATES

The Corporation prepares its consolidated financial statements in accordance with Canadian GAAP, which, in some respects,
are different from U.S. GAAP, The effect of these differences on the Corporation’s Consolidated Statements of Net Income
{Loss) and Consolidated Balance Sheets are as foliows:

yoar ended Decamber 31 (millions of dollars, except per share amounts) 2007 2008 2005
restated™ restated™
Net income {loss) in accordance with Canadian GAAP $ 347 $(703) $(101)
Add {deduct) adjustments for:
Start-up costs™ 2 3 (13)
Derivative instruments and hedging activities® (1) (2) (3)
Inventory costing™ ' 7 n m
Stock-based compensation™ 3 (1) —
Accounting for uncertainty in income taxes® 6 —_ -
Restructuring™ - 1 -
Other - 1 1
Net income ({loss) in accordance with U.5. GAAP §$ 364 $(698) $(117)
Earnings (loss) per share using U.S. GAAP
— Basic $ 4.39 $(8.46) $(1.42)
-= Diluted $ 4.36 $(8.44) $(1.42)
Comprehensive income (loss) in accordance with Canadian GAAP $ 53 $(649) $0130)
Add (deduct) adjustments to Canadian GAAP net income (loss) for:
Start-up costs" 2 (K)] {13
Derivative instruments and hedging activities® {h 4] {3

Inventory costing™ 7 m {1
Stock-based compensation” 3 (1) _—
Accounting for uncertainty in income taxes® 6 —_ —_

Restructuring® —_ 1 -

Other -_— 1 1

Pension liability adjustments {less tax of $21, ${4) and $6, respectively)” {45) 8 ("
Comprehensive income {loss) in accordance with U.S. GAAP $ 553 $ (636) 3 (155)
Accumulated other comprehensive income )

Unrealized loss on availzble-for-sale securities s M) $ — 5 —

Unrealizad gain on translation of self-sustaining foreign operations 413 357 303

Pension liability adjustmenis® {127) (82) 12)
Accumulated other comprehensive income in accordance with U.S. GAAP $ 485 $ 275 $ 291
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December 31 {millions of dofiars) 2007 2008

Balance sheet items in accordance with U.5, GAAP™ restated™
Current assets™ $ 1,653 $1,265
Investment and other assets"™® ) 150 102
Property, plant, and equipment {netf™™ 3,047 219
Current liabilities™® (1,420} (1,178)
Long-term debt™ (1,539} {1,584)
Deferred income taxesMomussm {409) {394)
Deferred credits and long-term fiabilities™ o= {495} {464)
Common shareholders’ equity™ 5 987 3 446

(1) Start-up Costs. Canadian GAAP provides that when starting up # new facility or entity, sxpenditures incurred during the pra-opersting pariod may ba deferred when cartain
criteria are met. Uncier U.5. GAAP, a¥ costs [except interest on conytructed assats} sssociated with start-up activities must be expensed #3 incurred. Ses Nota 5 for information
on the Corporation’s start-up casts.

(2) Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities. CICA Section 3855 harmanizes Canadian and LS. GAAP by establishing standards for recognition snd mes ant of
financial assots, lisbilities and nan-finsncial derivatives. CICA Section 3865 harmonizes Canadian GAAF with U.S, GAAP SFAS No. 133 by establishing standards for when and
how hedge accounting may be applisd end recorded. See Note 2 for further datails. Certain diffarences that existed before the impl jon of the sbeve siandards on Jan,
1, 2007, pertaining o the termination of interest rate swaps in 2002 continue to be reconciling items betwoan Canadian GAAP ond U.S, GAAP. For information regarding the
Corporation’s use of derivatives and hedging activities under Canadisn GAAF, vee Note 20.

(3) Inventory Costing. Canadian GAAP allaws fiusd overhead costs associated with production activities 1o be expansad during the period whereas U.5. GAAP equires an
allocation of fixed and varable production overhaad to inventory.

(4) Stock-based compensation. Under Canadian GAAP, the Employes Incentive Stock Option Plan is messured viing a fair-value-based mathod, while the Equity Appreciation Plan
and the Restricted Stock Unit Pian are classified s linbilicy ir and are marked-to-market based on intrinsic vohse, U.S. GAAP, SFAS No. 123{R), Accounting for Share-
Based Payment, affective Jan. 1, 2006, requires the share-based compensation transactions 1o be sccounted for using a fairvahue-based mathed, such as the Black-Scholes
mathod. The Company has adopted this standard using 8 modified prospective application. The fair value of awards classifisd #s liability instrumants must be remeasured at fair
value subsequently at aach reporting date through the settiement date. Changes in fair vatua during the requisite service period will be recognized ss compenaation cost over
that pesiod. The cumutative effect for the periods prior to Dec. 31, 2005, of $5 million sfter-tax has been charged to reinvested earnings (deficit) a1 Jan. 1, 2004,

{5} income Taxes. Begioning Jan. 1, 2007, FIN 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in income Taxes, became effactive for U.S. GAAP reparting. FIN 48 clarifies the sccounting for
uncertainty in ingome taxes by prascribing » minimum recognition threshold that a tax position is reguined to mpat before being recagnized. An entity is required to recognize
the best estimate of a tax position if that position is more likely than not to be sustained upon examination, based sclely on the technical merits of the position. NOVA
Chemicals adopted the provisions of FIN 48 on Jan. 1, 2007, at which tima a FIN 48 liability of $36 milkon was mcognized by reclassifying $34 million out of delermed tax
liability snd $4 million from the cument tax fisbility. This rsuied in 3 $6 million increase in the liabifity for urwcogrized 101 benefits and was accounted for a3 » reduction to the
Jan, 1, 2007, U.5. GAAP balance in reinvested eamings. During 2007, thess difarences have reversed and resuited in 3 $6 million decrease in tax expensq for U.5. GAAP
purposes. Alsa, it s NOVA Chamicals’ policy 10 recognize interest and penalties sccrued related to unrecognized tax benefits in income 1 expense, At Dec. 31, 2007, NOVA
Chemicals had approximately $4 million accrued for the payment of interest and penaities.

{6) Restructuring. Due to differences in the cost basis, under U.5. GAAP, of certain assets for which sn impairment charge has been recorded (see Note 13), the resudting charge
lewwsar undler US. GAAPR

4

(11 Pansion Liability Adjustmant. in 2006, for 11.5. GAAP reporting, SFAS No. 158, Employers' Accounting for Defirad Benefit Pension and Other Pasiret it Plans-an it
of FASS Statements No. B7, BS, 104, and 132(R) - was eftective. 5FAS No. 158 requires an employer to recognize the overfunded or underiunded status of a defined benefit
postratirement plan (ather than a multiemployer plan) &9 an asset or Bability In its statement of finarcial pesition and to recognize changes in that funded satys in the year in
which the changes octur through accumulated other comprahensive income. Accordingly, at Dec. 31, 2006, the Corporation has recognized an additions| persion and post.
retiremant Kability of $124 million, resulting in a charge of $82 milfion (net of tax} to accumulated cther compraheriive incoms, in 2006 {prior to sdoption of SFAS No. 158) and
2005, SFAS No. 87, Employer’s Accounting for Pensions, was followed with respect to pension accounting, which required an employer to record an additional minimum liability
{AML] if the unfunded accumulated banwfit obligation excweded the accrusd pension fizbility or if there was s prepaid pension asset with respect to the plan. i an AML was
recognized, an Intanglble asset, in an amount not sxcesding the unrecognized prior service cost, was ako rocognized. The excess of the AML, over the Intangible ssset, If any,
was charged to other comprehensive income, net of income 1ax ofects. At Dec. 31, 2007, NOVA Chemicats increased its SFAS No. 133 pension and post-ratirement liability by
$64 million, resulting in a chargn of $45 million (net of tan) to accumutated other comprehensive incoms.

(8] Joint Ventures. NOVA Chemicals accounts for Its interests In joint vantures using the proportionats consolidation method under Canadisn GAAP. As permitted by spechic
United States Securities and Exchangs Commission axemptions, adjustments to reflect equity accounting, as required under U.S. GAAP, have not been made. The equity
mathod woukl not result In any changes in NOVA Chemnicaly' nat incoma (loss) or shareholden’ equity; however, ol assens, liabifities, ievanue, expenses, and most cash flow
itams would decrasse whan compared with the amounts that sre presanted using propartionate consolidation,

(9} Cartain costs that were previously included as i lable costs ware d in 2007. Prior periods have besn restated,
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\_22. New Accounting Pronouncements

CANADIAN GAAP

CICA 1535, Capital Disclosures, applicable to interim and annual pericds relating to fiscal years beginning on or

after Oct. 1, 2007, specifies disclosures of {1) information about the entity’s objectives, policies, and processes for managing
capital structure; {2) quantitative data about what the entity regards as capital; and {3) whether the entity has complied with
externally imposed capital requirements {for example bank covenants) and if it has not complied, the consequences of such
non-compliance. NOVA Chemicals is currently evaluating the effects of adopting this standard. Because the standard only
affects disclosure requirements, it is not expected to have an impact on the Company’s financial statements.

CICA 1400, General Standards of Financial Statement Presentation, was amended 1o include requirements to assess and
disclose an entity’s ability to continue as a going concern. The new requirements are effective for interim and annua!
financial statements relating to fiscal years beginning on or after Jan. t, 2008. NOVA Chemicals does not expect the
adoption of these changes to have an impact on its financial statements.

CICA 3031, Inventories, replaces CICA 3030, Inventories. The new standard is the Canadian equivalent to Intemational
Financial Reporting Standard IAS 2, Inventories. The main features of CICA 3031 are: {1) measurement of inventories at
the lower of cost and net realizable value, with guidance on the determination of cost, including allocation of overheads
and other costs to inventory; (2) cost of inventories of items that are not ordinarily interchangeable and goods or
services produced and segregated for specific projects assigned by using a specific identification of their individual costs;
(3) consistent use (by type of inventory with similar nature and use) of either first-in, first-aut (FIFO) or weighted-average
cast formula; (4) reversal of previous write-downs to net realizable value when there is a subsequent increase in value of
inventories; and (5) possible classification of major spare parts and servicing stand-by equipment as property, plant and
equipment (CICA 3061 — Property, Plant and Equipment, was amended to reflect this change). CICA 3031, applies to
interim and annual financial statements relating to fiscal years beginning on or after Jan. 1, 2008. NOVA Chemicals
adopted this standard on Jan. 1, 2008. Full absorption inventory costing is estimated to result in a one-time credit on Jan.
1, 2008 to opening reinvested earnings and a corresponding increase in opening inventory of $41 million {$33 million
after-tax} as a result of full absorption costing,

EIC 169, Determining Whether a Contract is Routinely Denominated in a Single Currency, provides guidance on how
under CICA 3855 to define or apply the term "routinely denominated in commercial transactions around the world™ when
assessing contracts for embedded foreign currency derivatives. It also determines what factors can be used to determine
whether a contract for the purchase or sale of a non-financial item such as a commodity is routinaly denominated in a
particular currency in commercial transactions around the world. EIC 169 must be applied retrospectively to embedded
foreign currency derivatives in host contracts that are not financial instruments accounted for in accordance with Section
3855 in financial statements issued for interim and annual periods ending on or after Mar. 15, 2008. NOVA Chemicals is
evaluating the effects of adopting this standard.

CICA 3044, Goodwill and Intangible Assets, will replace CICA 3062, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, and results

in withdrawal of CICA 3450, Research and Development Costs, and amendments to Accounting Guideling (AcG) 11,
Enterprises in the Development Stage and CICA 1000, Financial Statement Concepts. The standard intends to reduce the
differences with IFRS in the accounting for intangible assets and results in closer alignment with U.S. GAAPR. Under current
Canadian standards, more items are recognized as assets than under [FRS or U.S. GAAP. The objectives of CICA 3064 are
to reinforce the principle-based approach to the recognition of assets only in accordance with the definition of an asset
and the criteria for asset recognition; and clarify the application of the concept of matching revenues and expenses such
that the current practice of recognizing as assets items that do not meet the definition and recognition criteria is
eliminated. The standard will also provide guidance for the recognition of internally developed intangible assets {including
research and development activities), ensuring consistent treatment of all intangible assets, whether separately acquired
or internally developed. These changes are effective for fiscal years beginning on or after Oct. 1, 2008, with early
adoption encouraged. NOVA Chemicals is evaluating the effects of adopting this standard.
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The Canadian Accounting'Standards Board (AcSB) has confirmed that the use of International Financial Reporting Standards
{“IFRS") will be required in 2011 for publicly accountable profit-oriented enterprises. IFRS will replace Canada’s current
GAAP for those enterprises. These include listed companies and other profit-oriented enterprises that are responsible to
large or diverse groups of stakeholders. The official changeover date is for interim and annual financial statements relating
to fiscal years beginning on or after Jan. 1, 2011. Companies will be required to provide comparative IFRS information for
the previous fiscal year. NOVA Chemicals is currently evaluating the impact of adopting IFRS.

U.5. GAAP

SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements, defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands
disclosures about fair value measurements. The statement applies also to other accounting pronouncements which require
or permit fair value measurements. The standard is effective for fiscal years beginning after Nov. 15, 2007. NOVA
Chemicals is evaluating the effects of adopting this standard.

SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities, including an amendment to SFAS No.
115, permits entities to choose to measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value. Most of the
provisions of this Statement apply only to entities that elect the fair value option. However, the amendment to SFAS No,
115, Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities, applies to all entities with available-for-sale and
held-for-trading securities. SFAS No. 159 is effective as of the beginning of an entity’s first fiscal year that begins after
Nov. 15, 2007. The adoption of this standard is not expected to have a material impact on NOVA Chemicals' consolidated
financial statements.

SFAS No. 141(R), Business Combinations and SFAS No. 160, Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial
Statements. Effective for fiscal years beginning after Dec. 15, 2008, these standards will improve, simplify and converge
internationally the accounting for business combinations and the reporting of noncontralling interests in consolidated
financia! statements. SFAS No. 141{R) replaces SFAS No. 141, Business Combinations. SFAS No. 141{R) retains the
fundamental requirements in SFAS No. 141 that the acquisition method of accounting (formerly called the purchase
methad) be used for all business combinations and for an acquirer to be identified for each business combination. The
new statement improves reporting by creating greater consistency in the accounting and financial reporting of business
combinations, resulting in more complete, comparable and relevant information for investors and other users of financial
statements. To achieve this goal, the new standard requires the acquiring entity in a business combination to recognize all
(and only) the assets acquired and liabilitias assumed in the transaction; establishes the acquisition-date fair value as the
measurement objective for all assets acquired and liabilities assumed; and requires the acquirer to disclose to investors
and other users all of the information they need to evaluate and understand the nature and financial statement effect of
the business combination. SFAS No. 160 amends Accounting Research Bulletin {ARB)} No. 51, Consolidated Financial
Statements, to establish accounting and reporting standards for the noncontrolling interests in a subsidiary and for the
deconsolidation of a subsidiary. The new statement improves the relevance, comparability, and transparency of financial
information provided to investors by requiring all entities to report noncontrolling (minority) interests in subsidiaries in the
same way — as equity in the consolidated financial statements. In addition, SFAS No. 160 eliminates the diversity that
currently exists in accounting for transactions between an entity and noncontrolling interests by requiring they be treated
as equity transactions and changes the way the consolidated income statement is presented. NOVA Chemicals does not
expect the adoption of these changes to have an impact on its current financial statements; however, these changes may
affect potential future business.
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\Shareholder Value
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(1} NCX paers include DOW, LYO, EMN from 1999-2004. In 2007, WLK was sdded snd LYO was removed from the poer group,

SHARE PRICE PERFORMANCE: 1999-2007

From Jan. 1, 1999, through Dec. 31, 2007, NOVA Chemicals' share price increased 148% on the New York Stock
Exchange. This compares to an average increase of 28% in peer chemical companies’ share prices, and a 19% increase in
the S&P 500.

SHARE PRICE PERFORMANCE: 2007
NQVA Chemicals’ share price increased 16% on the New York Steck Exchange during 2007. This compares to an average
decrease of 6% in peer chemical companies' share prices and a 4% increase in the S&P 500.

NOVA CHEMICALS’ SHARE HISTORY

2007 2006 2OOS

Dividends paid {Canadian $) $ 0.40 $ 0.40 $ 0.40
Market price (NYSE) {U.S. §)

High $41.7¢9 $36.0n $52.20

Low $27.63 $26.61 $29.07

Close $32.40 $27.90 $33.40
Market price (TSX) (Canadian $)

High $43.70 $41.25 $54.25

Low $30.13 £29.50 $36.65

Close $32.27 $32.50 $38.81
Common dividend yield 1.2% 1.2% 1.0%
Shares owustanding

Year-end (millions) a3 83 83

Average {millions) 84 83 83

controlled wood sources. The pape! contains a mix of pulp that is dertved from FSC certified forests, post consumer recycled paper
fibers and other controlled sources. This annual epont is centified by Smarmwood to the FSC standards which promotes environmentally

prropriste, socially beneficial and sconomically visbie management of the world's forosts. Portions of this report are Green Sealed
spproved and Green Power Certified.

[ * Mized Sources ] The NOVA Chemicah Annual Reparnt is printed using racycled paper made from fiber sourcad lor well-managed forests and other
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\ Investor Information

Annual Meeting

Shareholders are invited to attend NOVA Chemicals'
annual meeting on Thursday, Aprit 10 at 10:30 a.m. at
the King Edward Hotel — 37 King Street East, Toronte,
Ontario, Canada.

Shareholder Information

For inquiries on stock-related matters, including dividend
payments, stock transfers and address changes, contact
NOVA Chemicals’ Shareholder Relations, toll free,

at 1-800-641-8684 or via e-mail to:

shareholders@novachem.com.

Requests for Additional Information

For copies of NOVA Chemicals’ quarterly reports, addi-
tional copies of this annual report, or to order a complete
shareholder information package, please send an e-mail

to: publications@novachem.com.

Rapports annuels en frangais
Pour accéder a 'information contenue dans ce
rapport annuel en frangais, veuillez visiter notre site

Web www.novachemicals.com.

Corporata Contact Information:
NOVA Chemicals Carporation
1000 Seventh Avenue S.W.

P.O. Box 2518

Calgary, Alberta, Canada T2P 5C6

NCVA Chemicals U.S. Operating Center
1550 Coraopolis Heights Road
Moon Township, PA 15108 USA

Phone: 403-750-3600 {Canada)
412-490-4000 (United States}
Internet: www.novachemicals.com
E-Mail: invest@novachem.com

Transfer Agent and Registrars:
CIBC Mellon Trust Company

600 The Dome Tower

333 Seventh Avenue 5.W.
Calgary, Alberta, Canada T2P 221
Phone: 403-232-2400

Toll free: 1-800-387-0825

Fax: 403-264-2100

Internet: www.cibcmellon.com

Share Registration

NOVA Chemicals’ common shares are listed on the New
York and Toronto Stock Exchanges under the trading
symbal "NCX.* On December 31, 2007, approximately
83 million common shares were outstanding and there
were approximately 10,800 registered shareholders.
NOVA Chemicals' common shares are transferable at the
Vancouver, Calgary, Toronto, Montréal and Halifax offices
of CIBC Melion Trust Company. The common shares

are also transferable at The Bank of New York Mellon,
Jersey City, New Jersey.

Nen-Resident Investors

Dividends paid to non-resident shareholders are subject
to Canadian withholding tax, generally at the rate of 15%
for the United States and other countries where Cana-
dian tax treaties apply, and 25% for non-treaty countries,
Certain exemptions or refunds may be available to
residents of the United States and other countries where
Canadian tax treaties apply. Under regulations in effect
in the United States, the Company is generally subject to
the U.S. backup withholding rules, which would require
withholding at a rate of 28% on dividends and interest
paid to certain U.S. persons who have not provided the
Company with a taxpayer identification number. Please

consult your tax advisor for more information.

END




